2019-20



BOARD OF DIRECTOR'S

Mr. Hari Om Rai, Chairman and Managing Director

Mr. Shailendra Nath Rai, Whole Time Director

Mr. Sunil Bhalla, Director

Mr. Vishal Sehgal, Director

Mr. Vinod Rai, Independent Director

Mr. Rahul Kansal, Independent Director

Ms. Chitra Gouri Lal, Independent Director

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

Mr. Asitava Bose

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Bharat Mishra

STATUTORY AUDITORS

suresh Surana & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants




To,

The Members,

DIRECTORS' REPORT

Your Directors have pleasure to present the 11" Annual Report together with the
audited Financial Statements for the year ended 31% March 2020.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The working results of the company for the year under report are as under,

(Rs. In millions)

Standalone

Consolidated

Particulars

2019-20 2018-19 2019-20 2018-19
Revenue from Operations 19,277.10 30,663.02 | 52,643.29 51,083.07
Other Income 35.04 51.62 49.55 26.92
Total Revenue 19,312.14 | 30,714.64 | 52,692.84 51,109.99
Earnings before interest, '
tax, depreciation and 865.74 787.91: 1,856.37 1,654.25
amortization (EBIDTA)
Less: Depreciation and

273.30 316.35 330.51 414 95
amartization expenses
Less : Finance Cost (net) 173.42 203.86 253.75 423.70
Share of (profit)/loss of
joint venture, associates - - 5.64 3.50
(net of fax)
Profit before Tax (PBT) 419.02 267.70 | 1266.47 812.10
Less : Current Tax 202.20 195.97 | 224.59 194.11
Less : Deferred Tax

(31.23) (126.49) (35.73) {113.81)
charge/ (Income)




Profit for the year
248.05 198.22 | 1077.61 731.80

(PAT)
Other Comprehensive

0.38 (12.15) | (444.43) (176.22)
income (net of tax)
Total Comprehensive
) 247.67 210.37 . 1522.04 908.02
income {(net of tax)

CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS

During the year under review, there is no change in the nature of business of the

Company.

DIVIDEND
The Company will be utilizing the funds for the current operations and as well as for

upcoming projects, hence Board do not recommend any dividend for the financial
year 2019-20.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES
The Company proposes to retain its profit Rs. 248.05 Million for the year, in the

statement of profit and loss.

CHANGE IN SHARE CAPITAL
During the year under report, the Company has not altered its authorized or paid

up share capital.

SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES
The statement under Section 129 (3) read with rule 5 of Companies (Account)
Rules 2014, in respect of working of subsidiary companies is attached herewith as

Annexure-A.




Pursuant to the provisions of Section 129(3) of the Act, a statement containing
salient features of the financial statements of the Company’s subsidiaries in Form
AOC-1 is attached as Annexure - “A” to the financial statements of the Company.

MEETINGS OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS

During the year under review, 13 (Thirteen) meetings of the Board of Directors

were held. The intervening gap between two consecutive meetings was not more
than the period prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013.

The Board meeting dates are as under:-

S. No. Date of Meeting S. No. Date of Meeting

1 05-04-2019 14-05-2019

3 08-07-2019 09-08-2019

5 04-09-2019 6 18-09-2019

7 08-10-2019 04-12-2019

9 05-12-2019 10 10-12-2019%
i1 24-12-2019 12 22-01-2020
13. 17-02-2020

MEETINGS OF COMMITTEE'S

The Board of Directors of the Company had duly constituted the following
Committees:-

A) AUDIT COMMITTEE

Dates of meeting of the members of the Audit Committee are as under:-

S. No. Date of Meeting S. No. Date of Meeting
1 18-09-2019 2 10-12-2019
3 24-12-2019

B) NOMINATION & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE




Dates of meeting of the members of the Nomination & Remuneration

Committee is as under:-

S. No. Date of Meeting 5. No. Date of Meeting
1 05-04-2019 2 14-05-2019
3 09-08-2019

C) CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE

Dates of meeting of the members of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

are as under:-

S. No. Date of Meeting
1 08-10-2019

D) INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR COMMITTEE

Dates of meeting of the members of the Independent Director Committee are as

under:-

1 17-02-2019

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
The details forming part of the extract of the Annual Return in form MGT 9 is

annexed herewith as Annexure - “B”.

DIRECTORS & KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONALS
In accordance with the provision of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013, read

with the Articles of Association of the company, Mr. Hari Om Rai - Managing
Director and Mr. Vishal Sehgal - Director are liable to retire by rotation and being
eligible to offers themselves for their re-appointment at the forthc ming Annual
General Meeting of the Company.




During the year under review, Mr. Vineet Kumar Jain has resigned from the post of
Independent Director of the Company w.e.f. 19-06-2019.

FIXED DEPOSITS

Since Company has not accepted any deposits covered under Chapter V
(Acceptance of Deposits by the Companies) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
the Rules framed thereunder; the details required to be given in terms of Rule

8(5)(v) & (vi) of Companies {(Accounts) Rules, 2014 are not applicable.

PUBLIC DEPOSITS
The company has neither received nor accepted any deposits described under the

Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made there under.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES AND RELATED DISCLOSURES
List of employees who are in receipt of remuneration in excess of the limits laid
down in Section 197 of the Act read with rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment

and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is annexed herewith in

Annexure — “C”,

STATUTORY AUDITORS AND STATUTORY AUDIT REPORT

M/s Suresh Surana & Associates LLP, Chartered Accountants (FRN: 121750W/W-
100010) have been appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company by the
members in their Annual General Meeting held on 30" December 2019, to hold
office as such for a period of 5 consecutive years. They will continue with their

office.

The Auditors Report on the accounts of the company for the year under review is
self-explanatory and requires no comments. There is no qualification/ reservation/
adverse remark or disclaimer in the Auditors’ Report. The Audit Report is annexed

with the financial statement of the company.



SECRETARIAL AUDITOR AND SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Act and the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Board

of Directors has appointed M/s Kumar Wadhwa & Company, Company Secretaries
for conducting secretarial audit of the Company for the financial year 2019-20. The

Secretarial Audit Report is annexed herewith as Annexure-"D”. The Secretarial

Audit report does not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse remark.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENTS

The particutars of loans, guarantees and Investments under Section 186 of the

Companies Act, 2013 have been disclosed in the financial statements.

TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

None of the transactions with related parties falls under the scope of Section 188(1)

of the Act. Information on transactions with related parties pursuant to Section
134(3)(h) of the Act read with rule 8(2) of the Companies {(Accounts) Rules, 2014
are given in Annexure — “E" in Form AOC-2 and the same forms part of this
report.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The brief outline of the Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Policy of the Company
and the initiatives undertaken by the Company on CSR activities during the year
are set out in Annexure-"F” of this report in the format prescribed in the

Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014,

INSURANCE

All the properties of the Company, including stocks, where necessary, and to the
extent required, have been adequately insured.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY




Proper internal financial controis laid down by the Directors were followed by the
Company and such internal financial controls are adequate and were operating
effectively

POLICY ON DIRECTORS’” APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION AND OTHER
DETAILS

The Company’s policy on Directors’ appointment and remuneration and other
matters provided in Section 178(3) of the Act is as follows: -

i. The Company had a Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board of
Directors of the Company.

ii. The broad terms of reference of the nomination and Remuneration Committee
are as under;

- Recommend to the board the set up and composition of the board and its
committees.
including the “formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications,
positive attributes and independence of a director”. The committee from time
to time will consider reviewing the composition of the board with the
objective of achieving an optimum balance of size, skills, independence,
knowledge, age, gender and experience. ‘

- Recommend to the board the appointment or reappointment of directors.

- Recommend to the board appointment of key managerial personnel (“*KMP”
as defined by the Act) and executive team members of the Company (as
defined by this committee).

- Carry out evaluation of every director’s performance and support the board
and independent directors in evaluation of the performance of the board, its
committees and individual directors,

This shall include “formulation of criteria for evaluation of independent
directors and the board”.

- Recommend to the board the remuneration policy for directors, executive

team or key managerial personnel as well as the rest of the employees,




- On an annual basis, recommend to the board the remuneration payable to
the directors and oversee the remuneration to executive team or key
managerial personnel of the Company.

- Oversee the human resource philosophy, human resource and people
strategy and human resource practices including those for [eadership
development, rewards and recognition, talent management and succession
planning (specifically for the board, key managerial personnel and executive
team).

- Performing such other duties and responsibilities as may be consistent with
the provisions of the commiitee charter.

i) Remuneration policy in the Company is designed to create a high performance
culture. It enables the Company to attract, retain and motivate employees to
achieve results. Our business model promotes customer centricity and requires
employee mobility to address project needs. The remuneration policy supports such
mobility through pay models that are compliant to local regulations,

EMPLOYEE RELATION

We believe that our employees, workers and the staff are the assets of our

organization. Hence we invest heavily In people, people, processes and skill
development to create an environment of holistic growth. Our company has
established peaceful and harmonious industrial relations with the employees of the
company, and these relations continue to be maintained throughout the year.

MATERIAL _CHANGES AND _COMMITMENTS AFFECTING FINANCIAL
POSITION

There have been no material changes and commitments affecting the financial
position of the Company which have occurred between the end of the financial year
2019-20 to which the financial statements relate and the date of the report,

DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT
Pursuant to Section 134 of the Act, the Directors state that:




a. In the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting
standards have been followed along with proper explanation relating to
material departures, if any;

b. Appropriate accounting policies have been selected and applied
consistently and have made judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent, so as to give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2020 and of the profit and
loss of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2020;

C. Proper and sufficlent care has been taken for the maintenance of
adequate accounting records In accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the Coempany and
for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d. The annual accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis;

e. Proper internal financial controls were followed by the Company and
such internal financial controls are adeqguate and were operating
effectively;

f. Proper systems are devised to ensure compliance with the provisions
of all applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and
operating effectively.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND RESEARCH &
DEVELOPMENT FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

The particulars as prescribed under Section 134 (3) (m) of the Companies Act,
2013, read with Rule 8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, with respect to

conservation of energy, technology absorption and foreign exchange
earnings/outgo are set out in Annexure — “G” forming part of the report.

PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT POLICY

The Company has in place a Prevention of Sexual Harassment policy in line with the

requirements of the Sexual Harassment of Women at the Workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. An Internal Complaints Committee has been




set up to redress complaints received regarding sexual harassment, All employees

(permanent, contractual, temporary, trainees) are covered under this policy.

Further, during the year 2019-20, no complaint was received.

VIGIL MECHANISM POLICY

The Company has formulated and published a Whistle blower policy to provide
whistie mechanism for employees including directors of the company to report the
genuine concerns and ensure strict compliance with the ethical and legal standards
across the Company in compliance with provision of section 177 (9) of the
Companies Act, 2013. The same can be accessed at following web link:

https://www.lavamobiles.com/speak-up.pdf

STATEMENT INDICATING DEVELOPMENT AND IMPLEMENTATION OF RISK
MANAGEMENT POLICY

Operations of the company are reviewed on timely basis by the Board at the Board

meetings of the Company. The Board has developed and implemented risk
management policy.

DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY _THE
REGULATORS / COURTS / TRIBUNAL IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN
STATUS AND COMPANY'S OPERATION IN FUTURE

There are no significant material orders passed by the Regulators / Courts /

Tribunal which would impact the going concern status of the Company and its
future operations. Hence, disclosure pursuant to Rule 8 (5) (vii) of Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 is not required.

EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTION
Under the ESOP Plan, a total of 10,343,100 options were approved. 5,036,840

options were exercisable as at the end of the year. During the year under review,

5,036,840 numbers of stock options were outstanding at the end of the year




granted to the eligible employees of the company in terms of Employee Stock
Option Plan.

DISCLOSURE ABOUT COST AUDIT
As per the Cost Audit Orders, Cost Audit is applicable to the Company’s products/

business in respect of Electricals or Electronic Machinery (mobife phones, tablets

and communication equipment) for financial year 2019-20,

In view of the same and in terms of the provisions of Section 138 and all other
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the Companies (Audit
and Auditors) Rules, 2014, M/s. MM & Associates, Cost Accountants have been
appointed as Cost Auditors to conduct the audit of cost records of your company for
the financial year 2019-20.
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For Lava International Limited
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Form AOC-1

{Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounis)
Rules, 2014}

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries/associate
companies/joint ventures

Part “A': Subsidiaries

{Information in respect of each subsidiary to be presented with amounts in Rs. million)

sl ; R
No. Particulars Details
¥ Lava International LavaTechnologies Xolo International
{HK) Ltd. DMCC. {(H.K.) itd,

1 Name of the

subsidiary (Based in . . {Based in
Hongkong) Based in Dubai Hongkong)

Reporting period for

the subsidiary

5 concerned, if . _ -
different from the - = -
holding company’s
reporting period
Reporting currency
and Exchange rate
as on the last date *

3 | of the relevant *HK CoiI:!ngr;gg *AED Co;:}v;rted U;D Coinverted
Financial year in the s 1258 :
case of foreign
subsidiaries

4 | Share capital 10.60 §7.22 18.36 377.04 0.01 0.75

432.59 4,205.81 22.97 471.71 3.82 287.91
5 1 Reserves & surplus
6 | Total assets 601.97 5,852.59 48.78 1,00175 22.53 1,698.04
o 159.38 1,549.56 7.45 152.99 18.7 1,409.38

7 | Total Liabilities

& | Investments? 6.19 €0.18 0 - 0 -

o | Turnover 16,353.76 | 290.08 5,957.08 174.61 | 13,160.01

1,682.07
47.49 461.72 11,18 229.59 3.45 260.02
10} Profit before taxation _
11 Provision for - - a - 0.3 22.61
taxation
‘ ) 47.49 461.72 11.18 229.59 3.15 237.41
12 | Profit after taxation
- o]
13 | Proposed Dividend - _ - -




14 | % of sharehoiding 100% 100% 100%
St. Particuiars Details
No. >
Lava International Lava Mobili Lava International
{Thailand) Co. {Private) Limited, (Nepal) Private Ltd,
Ltd.. Thajland Sri_lanka. Nepal
1 Name of the
subsidiary
{Based_in Thailand) (Based in Sri (Based in Nepal)
Lanka)
Reporting period for
the subsidiary
> concerned, if . _ .
different from the - - -
hoiding company’s
reporting period
Reporting currency
and Exchange rate
3 2? fhr; tlle;el\?as,;tdate *THB Converted * Converted *NPR Converted
. , . in_Rs. ZLKR inRs. in Rs,
Financial year in the R
case of foreign
subsidiaries
4 { Share Capital 9.00 20.70 - 20.00 12.47
4.29 | 9.86 6.47 2.57 (14.45)
51 Reserves & surplus (23.18)
6 | Total assets 34.04 78.29 6.47 2.57 3.08 1.82
o 20.75 | 47.73 - 6.26 3.90
7 | Total Liabilities
Investments? - - - -
Turnover 2161 49.71 2.44 0.97 15.60 9.72
10 Profit before 0.53 1.21 (0.88) 0.46 0.2%
taxation {(2.21)
11 | Provision for - - 0.06 0.02 - -
taxation
i ; 0,53 1.21 {0.90) 0.46 0.29
12 | Profit after taxation (2.27)
13 | Proposed Dividend - - - - - -
14 | % of shareholding 97% 100% 100%




Sl.

No. Particulars Details
Lava . . Lava International
International LavDEMobale :‘ x\',c {(Mayanmar) Co,
DMCC Dubaij 2.DE R.L. DEC.V. Ltd.
Name of the
1 -
subsidiary .
B in D . {(Based in
a in ! {Based in Mexico) Myanmar)
Reporting period for
the subsidiary
5 concerned, if . _ .
different from the - - -
holding company’s
reporting period
Reporting currency
and Exchange rate as
3 | on the last date of *aEp | Sonverted *MXN Converted | , i Converted
the relevant Financial in Rs, in Rs. in Rs,
year in the case of
foreign subsidiaries
4 | Share capital 0.05 1.03 0.190 0.32 32.56 1.76
(i6.82) (121.88) (3.81) | (0.21)
5 | Reserves & surplus (0.82) (38.46)
5 Total assets 1.90 3912 - 28.75 156
L 2.67 54.91 38.36 121.56 - -
7 § Total Liabilities
investments? - - - - - -
Turnover 2.37 48.71 6.15 19.49 - -
1.33 0.09 0.27 - -
10 | Profit before taxation (0.06) ( ) ( ) ( )
11 | Provision for taxation ) ’ i i i ’
1.33 6.09 0.27 - -
12 | Profit after taxation (0.06) ( ) ¢ ) ( )
13 | Proposed Dividend - - - - ) )
14 | % of sharehoiding 100% 99% 99%




Sl.

Particulars

No.
Pt. Lava Mobile Lava International
Indonesia {Bangladesh) Ltd.
1 | Name of the subsidiary
. . {Based in
(Based in Indonesia) Bangladesh)
Reporting period for the subsidiary
2 | concerned, if different from the - bl
holding company's reporting period
Reporting currency and Exchange
3 | rate as on the last date of the *IDR Converted | ,pny onverted in
relevant Financial year in the case of in Rs, - Rs.
foreign subsidiaries
4 | Share Capjta§ 27,190-60 127.78 10.15 8.98
(519.64) (0.44) | (0.39)
5 | Reserves & surplus {110,574.08)
& | Total assets 363.90 1.71 12.22 10.82
o 83,747.3¢9 363.57 2.51 2.22
7 | Total Liabhiities
Investments? - - - -
Turnover 8,845.09 41,57 42.77 | 37.87
) (177.83) {0.84) (0.98) | {0.87)
10 | Profit before taxation
. 14.57 0.07 - -
11 | Provision for taxation
192.40 0.50 0.98 0.87
12 | Profit after taxation ( ) ( ) ( )« )
13 | Proposed Dividend - - “ -
14 | % of shareholding 95% 99.99%




Si.
No,

Particulars

Details

Name of the
subsidiary

Lava

Enterprise
Limited

Soijo
Distri i
Private
Limited

{(SDPL)

n

Sojo
Infotel
Private
Limited

Soio

Manufacturing

Sojo
Manufacturing

Services

Private Limited

Services (AP)

Private Limited

(S1PL)

(SMSPL)

{(SMSAPPL)

Reporting
period for the
subsidiary
concerned, if
different from
the holding
company's
reporting
period

Reperting
currency and
Exchange rate
as on the last
date of the
retevant
Financial year
in the case of
foreign
subsidiaries

=y
A

bt
[
)

=t
=

Share capital

52.50

0.10

0.10

22.20

39.60

Reserves &
surplus

(1.11)

(0.093

(0.09)

(1.29)

(0.82)

Total assets

51.52

0.07

0.07

31.31

39.58

Total Liabilities

0.13

0.06

0.06

10.40

0.80

Investments?

0.20

Turnover

10

Profit before
taxation

(0.02)

(0.02)

(0.02)

(0.03)

0.44

11

Provision for
taxation

0.13

i2

Profit after
taxation

(0.02)

(0.02)

(0.02)

(0.03)

0.31

i3

Proposed
Dividend




% of

9 0 o
14 shareholding 9%.05% S0% 90% 99.95% 99.97%

51,

No. Particulars
1 | Name of the subsidiary Lava Tecnologies LLC (USA)
2 Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if different .
from the holding company’s reporting period _ =
3 Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the last date of USD INR
the relevant Financial year in the case of foreign subsidiaries =
4 | Share capital .40 30.15
G.07 $5.28
Reserves & surpius
& | Total assets 0.48 36.93
o 0.02 1.51
7§ Total Liabilities
Investments? . - -
S | Turnover B B
B o ‘ 0.05 3.77
10 | Profit before taxation
0.01 G.75
11 | Provision for taxation
) 0.04 3.01
12 | Profit after taxation
13 | Proposed Dividend - -
14 | % of shareholding 100%

Notes:-

1} Reporting pericd for all the aforesaid entitles are 315 March 2020
2) Investments exclude investments in subsidiaries, associate and joint venture,




3) Exchange Rate: HKD 1 = Rs. 9,72 ; AED 1=Rs.20.54; USD 1 = Rs, 75.37; IDR 1=0.0005
HKD; AED 1=2.11 HKD; LKR 1=0.04 HKD; MXN 1=0.33 HKD; MMK 1=0.01 HKD; THB 1=0.24

HKD; NPR 1= 0.06 HKD; BDT 1=0,09 HKD.

Part “B”: Associates and Joint Ventures

Statement pursuant to Section 129 {3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate

Companies and Joint Ventures

Name of associates/Joint Ventures

MagicTel Solutions Pvt. Ltd.

1. latest audited Balance Sheet Date

As at 31%% M_afch 2020

2. Shares of Associate/Joint Ventures held by the company on
the year end

No.! 2500 shares of Rs. 10/- per
share
- _Amount of Investment in Associates/Joint Venture! Rs, 25,000
- Extend of Holding% * 25%

3. Description of how there is significant influence

25% of shareholding is held by
the Company

4. Reason why the associate/joint venture is not consolidated

Not Applicable

5. Net worth attributable to shareholding as per latest audited
Balance Sheet

Rs. 15.71 million (25% is
considered in consolidation of
financiai statement)

6. Profit for the year

i Considered in Consolidation

Rs. {5.55) m%liion

ii. Not Considered in Consolidation

Nil

Notes:

1) Amount of investment in joint venture/associate is based on the carrying value of investments

in the standalone financial statements of venturer/investor.

Name of associates/Joint Ventures

Yamuna Electronics
Manufacturing Cluster Private
Limited

1. Latest audited Balance Sheet Date

As at 31% March 2020

2. Shares of Associates/Joint Venture held by the company
on the year end

No,*

6,227,939 shares of Rs. 10/- per
share

Amount of Investment in Associates/Joint Ventyre*

Rs. 62,279,390

Extend of Holding%?

45.33% (effective holding)

3. Description of how there is significant influence

Through the shareholder
agreement of Yamuna
Efectronics manufacturing

4. Reason why the associate/joint venture is not consolidated

cluster private Iimit&ed._.,‘.._:




5. Net worth attributable to shareholding as per fatest audited | Rs. 48.08 miilion (45.33% is
Balance Sheet considered in consolidation of
financial statement)

6. Loss for the year

i Considered in Consolidation Rs. (0.09) million

fi. Not Considered in Consolidation Nij

1) Effective holding of the Company has been considered for above information.
Amount of investment in joint venture/associate is based on the carrying value of investrnents in the
standalone financial statements of venturer/investor.




Annexure — “B"

Form No. MGT-9

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURNAS ON THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON MARCH 31, 2020

[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12{1} of the

Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014}

REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:

U32201DL2009PLC188920

27.03.2008

LAVA INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

iv. Company Limited by Shares/ indian Non-
Government Company

v, 8-14, HOUSE 2, BASEMENT, SHIVLOK
COMMERCIAL COMPLEX, KARAMPURA DELH:
West Delhi DI, 110015 N
Phone Number: +91 120 4637100

vi. No

vik,

NA

PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated:-

Mobile phones, Tablets and
communication equipment

46524

100%

il PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

Lava International (HK) Ltd,

Unit L, 1/F, Mau Lam
1, Commercial Building, 16-18 N.A, Subsidiary 100% 2(87}
Mau Lam Street, Jordan,
Kowlaeon, Hongkong
Xolo International (H.K.) Ltd,
2. Unit 1809, 18/F Beverley N,A. Subsidiary
Comm, Centre, 87-105




Chatham Road South, 75T,
KLN, Hongkong

Lava Enterprises Limited

227, Pocket C-7, Sector 7
Rohini Delhi North Delhi DL
110085

UB4100DL2013PLC260008

Subsidiary

99.05%

2(87)

Sojo  Distrlbution Private
Limited

114 BASEMENT MALL ROAD,
GTB NAGAR NEW DELHI
North Delhi DL 110009

U74999DL2016PTC300501

Subsidiary

90.00%

2{(87)

Sojo Manufacturing Services
{A.P.) Private Limited
114 BASEMENT MALL ROAD,
GTB NAGAR NEW DELHI
Nerth Delhi DL 110009

U74999D12016PTC300552

Subsidiary

99,97%

2{87)

50J0 MANUFACTURING
SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
114 BASEMENT MALL ROAD,
GTB NAGAR NEW DELHI
North Delhi DL 110009

U74993D12016PTC300776

Subsidiary

99.95%

2(87})

S0JO  INFOTEL  PRIVATE
LIMITED

114 BASEMENT MALL ROAD,
GTB NAGAR NEW DELHI
North Delhi DL 110009

U74999D1L2016PTC302026

Subsidiary

90.00%

2{87)

LAVA Technologies DMICC
Unit No. 1401, 1 Lake Plaza, Plot
No. JLT-PH2-T2A, Jumeirah
fakes Towers, United Arab
Emirates

N.A.

Subsidiary

100%

2(87)

Pt. LAVA Mobile Indonesia
Rukan Mangga Dua Square Biock
EfMNo.b, Ji, Gunung Sahari Raya
No, 01, Jakarta - 14420,
Indonesia

N.A.

Subsidiary

95.00%

2(87)

i0.

LAVA International DMCC,
UAE

Unit No.984, DMCC, Business
Centre Level No. 1, Jewellery &
Gemplex 3 United Arab Emirates

N.A.

Subsidiary

100%

2{(87)

11

LAVA  Mobility  (Private)

Limited, Sri Lanka

No.&9 /04, Jayarathna, Mawatha,
Thimbirigasyaya, Sri Lanka

N.A.

Subsidiary

100%

2(87)

12.

LAVA Mobile Mexico S.DER

DEC.V.

Migeul de Cervantes Saavedra,
471, P.B., Col. #rigacion Migeul
Hidalgo, C.P. 11500, Mexico

N.A.

Subsidiary

99.00%

2(87)

13.

LAVA international

(Myanmar) Co Limited
Na. 7, 00-706, {China Town
Tower) 11 Floor, Sin O b Tan
Slreet, Mahabandooles Road,
Latha Townshin, Myanmar

N.A.

Substdiary

99.00%

2(87)

14,

Lava international {Thailand)

Co Limited

33/4 Rama 9, 23rd Floor Tower A,
The nine Tower, Huaykwang -
10310, Thailand

N.A,

Subsidiary

97.00%

2(87)

15,

LAVA International (Nepal)

N.A.

Subsidiary

100% Lo .




Private Limited
Seventh Ficor, Building A mbe
Complex, Teku, Nepal

LAVA International

(Bangladesh) Limited .
16. | 5tn Floor, Central Plaza No. 2, 31, N.A. Subsidiary 93.99% 2(87)
Begurn Rokeya, Sarani Mirpur,
Bangladesh

YAMUNA ELECTRONICS
MANUFACTURING CLUSTER
17. zillvgngLllﬂ“g:'f?\AAtL ROAD, U74999012016PTC290443 Associate {JV) 45.33% 2{6}
GTB NAGAR NEW DELH!
North Dethi DI 110009
MAGICTEL SOLUTIONS
PRIVATE LIMITED

18. | I8 1GF, LAIPAT NAGAR, | U72200DL2012PTC246311 Associate 25% 2(6)
PART-ill NEW DELHI South
Dethi DL, 110024

Lava Technologies LLC

SUITE 35 B,3524
FLR,SILVERSIDE ROAD,

18, | 19810-4929 N.A, Subsidiary 100% (87
WILMINGTON
DELAWARE
UNITED STATES

SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)

i. Category-wise Share Holding

115
- 3435 | 118995 115560 118995 0.00
a} Individual/ HUF 560 120 268 95.3 062 3435120 182 95.30
148 0
b) Central Govt - - - - . - . - -
¢) State Govt(s} - - - - - - . N -
d) Bodies Corp - - - - . - - - -
e} Banks / Fi - - - - - - - - .
f) Any Other - - - - . - - - .
115 3435 | 118995 115560 118995
0.00
Sub-total{A}1):- >60 120 268 95.3 062 3435120 182 55.30
148 0
2) Foreign: - . . . - _ :




g) NRis-Individuals

=2

h} Other-individuals

i) Bodies Corp.

i} Banks / Fl

k) Any Other....

Subvtota_i (A){2):-

'B..Public. = -
“‘Shareholding

1. Institutions

a) Mutual Funds

b} Banks / Fl

—

c) Central Govt

d} State Govt(s)

e} Venture Capital
Funds

f} Insurance
Companies

2} Fils
h} Foreign Venture
Capital Funds

i) Others {specify’)

Sub-total {B){1}

2. Non Institutions

s) Bodies Corp.

740

. . 28,27 | 28,2740 27,94,83
(i} Indian | 401 2 2.26 1 27,94,837 3 2.24
(it) Overseas 1 - 1 - ] - 1 -
- - - - 98911 - 98911 0.08
19,3
1,01 ! 20404 14,28 4 14,28,46
. * + - k) 4 1‘14
A1 9'32 91 1.63 68 8
c) Others{.s..[.a.(.e.cf.f\;')” i
- HUF - . - - - 22300 22300 0.018
1603
- Trust - 1003740 0.80 - 1527202 1527202 1.22




110
Sub-total (B){2) 485 | 4766 | 587163 152738 587172
3 781 4,70 1 4344339 0 4,70 0
Total Public | 110
Shareholding 485 | 4766 | 587163 152738 587172
{B)=(B)(1)+ (B)(2) 3 | 781 4.70 1 4344339 0 4.70 0
C. Shares held by
Custodian for GDRs - - - - - - - "
& ADRs
Grand Total 1166 1 cr01 1248669 117087 1248669
(A+B4C) 65100 901 160 443 7779459 02 100 -

lL.5hareholding of Promoters

Sharehold
wy 4]

w ol o pd i

£ - 2 ps 5L |3
o 5 S5 | w 5 bs 25
5 o o8 g g =z T B g g
= 5 m a v £ 5 ® a g _E’ @
vy = O $ B [ oy o B 7] 8 ") "S

oy v [Ty v QT

& %5 | E% % % B 5% | < p
=] w U = GL} o) - = = an =

(v N 10}

5 £ 5 s 25 |5

© c © oy ®

Q) Q

1. . Hari Om Rai 45,083,976 | 36.11 - 45,083,830 36.11 - .
2. Shailendra 11,746,028 9.41 - 11,746,028' 9.41 - -
3. Sunil Bhalla 28,390,372 22,74 - 28,390,372 22.74 - -
4. Vishal Sehgal 22,104,352 17.70 - 22,104,352 17.70 - -
Total 107324728 | 85.95% - 107324642 85.95% - -

t4(b). Shareholding of Promoters group

No. of Shares

% of total Shares of the
company

%of Shares Pledged /
encumbered to total shares

No. of shares

% of total Shares of the
company
%of Shares Pledged /
encumbered to total shares

=% change in shareholding
"% during the year




1. AK. Sukheja 229260 0.18 - 229260 0.18 -

2. Jagdish Bhagat 114660 009 | - 114660 0.09

3. Jamuna Rai 270000 0.22 - 270000 0.22 -

4. | ManjuRai 9000600 0.72 - 900000 0.72 -

5. R.S. Sukheja 641880 0.51 . 641880 0.51

6. Sadanand Rai 105000 0.84 - 105000 0.84

7, Shibani Sehgal 7260720 5.81 - 7260720 5.81 .

8. Taru Bhagat 114660 0.09 - 114660 0.09 -

9, Renu Sukheja 114660 0.09 . 114660 0.09 -

10. Suneeti Bhalla 974700 0.78 - 974700 0.78 -
Total 11670540 | 9.35 - 11670540 9,35

ii. Change in Promoters’ Shareholding { please specify, if there is no change

no i
company
107324728 85.95 107324642 85.85
107324728 8595 107324642 85.95
it (b). Change in Promoters’ group Shareholding ( please specify, if there is no change

11670540

11670540

11670540

9.35

11670540

$.35 .

INDEBTEDNESS*

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment




Indebtednéés é.t.the
beginning of the
financial year

i} Principal Amount

if} Interest due but not
paid

il Interest accrued but
not

1,068,610,000
1,830,000

520,000,000
73,470,000

1,588,610,000
75,300,000

Total (i+ii+iil)

1,070,440,000

593,470,000

1,663,910,000

Change in Indebtedness
during the financial

ear
y Addition 435,570,000 46,930,000 482,500,000
. Reduction (251,320,000) . {251,320,000)
Net Change 184,250,000 46,930,000 231,180,000.00
Indebtednass at the

end of the financial

year

i) Principal Amount 1,247,700,000 520,000,000 1,767,700,0600
. 6,990,000 120,400,000 127,390,000
ii} Interest due but not

paid

iif) Interest accrued but

not due

Total (i+ii+iii) 1,254,690,000 640,400,000 1.895,090,000

*Above figures are shown on standalone basis.

IV, REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager




1 Gross Salary

{a) Salary as per
provisions
contained in
section 17(1) of
the Income-iax
Act,

1961

(b) Value of
perquisites u/s -
17{2) Income-tax
Act,

1961

(¢) Profits in lieu
of salary under
section 17(3)
Income- tax Act,
1961

5,962,082

5,962,082

2 Stock Option

3 Sweat Equity

4 Commission

- as % of profit
- others, -
specify...

5 Others, please
specify -

6 Total (A)

5,962,082

5,962,082

Ceiling as per the

Act Within

approved limit

Within
approved limit

Within
approved |

imit

Within

approved limit

Within
approved lim#t

B. Remuneration fo other directors:

Independent Directors

- Fee for attending board commitiee
meetings

- Commission

- Others, please specify

Vinod
Rai

1,100,00
0

Rahul
Kansal

610,000

Chitra
Gouri Lai

620,000

NA

23,30,000




Other Non-Executive Directors

meetings
- Commission

- Fee for attending board committee

- Others, please specify

Total Manageria

FRemuneration

Overall Cetling as per the Act

€. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel Other Than MD /Manager /WTD

Sl.no.

Gross salary

(a) Salary as per provisions
contained in section 17(1) of
the Income-tax Act, 1961

{b) Value of perquisites u/s
17(2} Income-tax
Act, 1961

section
17{3} income-tax
Act, 1961

{c} Profits in lieu of salary under

Bharat
Mishra

604,300

Asitava
Bose

1.943,75
2

Rati
Ram

3,488,567
45

2. Stock Option

w

Sweat Equity

4. Commission
- as % of profit
- others, specify..,

5. Others, please specify

V. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:

mpan

Penalty - -

Punishment - -

Compounding




Penalty

Punishment

Compounding

:C..0ther Officers.

Penalty

Punishment

Compounding




Information as per Section 197 of the Act read with rule 5(
Rules, 2014 and forming part of Directors Report for the year ended 315t March 2020

Annexure - “C”

2} of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel)

{i) if emploved throughout the financial year, was in receipt of remuneration for that vear which, in aggregate, was not less than Rs
1.02 Crore.
o Whether
Yoage h
of the
= employee is
Last Equity arelative of -
Nature of Qualificati oo shares | = ————
. S Date of employmen any
. . Remuneratio employvment, cenand S | Ageof held .
Name of the Designation of . : = commencemen t held — Birector or
emplovee the emplovee nreceived (in whether gxperience tof the before by the manager of
Rs.) contractual or of T employee | . emplo
e employment joining the . the
otherwise employee yee in .
e company the company, if
. 50, name of
compa the Director
ny the Lirector
o1 manager
B.Tech,
PGDBM
(Ops Mgt); .
Sanicey Senior Vice arcund 29 W\MWMM
kw ww wal President- 1,31,64,504 Permanent years of 02-Jul-14 51 India Pyt - No
& Manufacturing experience Ltd
in
Manufactur
ing
. ] President - B.Sc+ M.WEDQ.
Sunil Raina Business Head 1,17,34,480 Permanent MBA, 22 16-Nov-2016 47 Telecom - NO
Years Limited




(i} If emploved for a part of the financial vear, was in receipt of remuneration for any part of that vear, at a rate which, in aggregate,
was not less than Rs 8.50 Lakh per month.

Whether
the
employe
Yage le is a
Last of relative
emplo | Equity | of any
Nature of Oualificatio Date of yvment | shares | Director
Name of the | Designation of the | Remuneration employment, n and | SDEmenc Age of the held held oc
emplovee emplovee received (in Rs.) whether experience ement_of employee vmmo_.m by the | manager
£mpIoyee SMPIOYEL contractual or | SSPEHIECE employm smployee joining | emplo | of  the
otherwise of employee ent the yee_in | company
compa | the i so,
ny compa | name of
ny the
Director
or
manager
NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA
NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA




The information required pursuant to Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule, 5 of The Companies {(Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 in respect of employees of the Company, and forming part of the directors’ report for the year 13! April 2019 to 315t March 2020

PARTICULARS OF TOP TEN EMPLOYEES AND OTHERS EMPLOYEES

Whether
employee is
Nature of relative of
employme . | Dateof Last any the percentage
Experi . .
. . . nt, R commenc Employment Director/Ma | of equity shares
Employee | Designatic | Remuneration Qualifica | ence
S.No Nam. - Received whether ton (Years ementof | Age held before nager held by the
ame € confractual ) employm joining the Yes/No & | employee in the
or ent Company name of company
otherwise Such
\ Director/Ma
nager
hief d
Sanjeev Chie B.Tech + Emw. of
Manufactu 1,31,64,904 Permanent 26 01-Jul-14 51 Operations at .
1 Agarwal ) . PGDBM . . No Nil
ring Officer Liteon Mobile
President - BSc+ General
Sunil Raina Business 1,17.34,480 Permanent ' 22 10-Jun-10 47 Manager at
2 MBA No 0.26
Head Uninor
Vice Indirect Tax
V1
Bibhash Deb . 61,05,026 Permanent | LLB+BA 24 16-Apr-14 ¢ 44 Manager at LG
3 President ] No 0.0
Electronics
Sourabh Head -5CM
Singh & B.Tech + Manager at
60,27,034 I t 12. 15-May-1 7 il
4 Raghuvansh | Customer ermanen PGPM 6 May-14] 3 Walmart No 0.0
i Service
Executive
Head
Lloyyd . BA + " Director at
W £ 26- -
5 Dsouza m:»m.%:mm 59,79,576 Permanent MBA 0 6-Mar-18 45 Karbonn Nl
Business .
Mobiles




Vice President

Yatish Vice Operations at
50,13,71 Per SC 33 20-Mar-15 57
6 Khurana President N 0 ermanent M ar-1 Vardhamn No 0.0
Chemtech Ltd
Deputy B.Com + )
. . gmﬂmmﬁm
Sachin Chief 5000004 | Permanent | MOt 03 | 1gMar19 | 42 | Parimor atS.K
7 Nandwani Financial CA+ Badiatva & Co No 0.0
Officer MBA Jaty
Rakesh >mmﬂ,.g Mw 4868500 | P e| B ) a5 | osapetr | s >w8n.w$ ﬁ< mmm
3 Kumar Rai pplicatio 68, ermanen MCA 2 -Apr- 5° resi m.z a No 0.0
ns Steria
G Internal
roup
Dec Is and
cepak Finance 18,57,916 Permanent | CA 13 | 13-Dec1g | 4o | Contolsan
9 Nayak Sox Compliance No 0.0
Controller .
at Uninor
. Global Quality
Vipan General
. 47,112,712 Permanent B.Tech 15 29-Apr-15 37 manager at
10 Singla Manager Noki No 0.0
okia




Rwexure — p

FORM NO. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2020
[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. © of the

Companies {Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014}

To,

The Members of

LAVA INTERNATIONAL LINUTED

Regd. OfF: B-14, House 2, Basement, Shiviok Commercial Complex,
Karampura, Delhi -110015.

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the
adherence to good corporate  practices by M/S  LAVA  INTERNATIONAL  LIMITED
(U32201DL2009PLC188920} (hereinafter called "the Company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a
manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances
and expressing our opinion thereon.

Eased on our verification of the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns fited and other records
maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and
authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion
the Company has, during the audit period ended on 31° March, 2020, complied with the statutory
provisions listed herecunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-
mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

¥ We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records

mamtatned by MifS LAVA INTERNATIONAL LIVITED {“The Company”} for the period ended on
317 March, 2020 according to the provisions of:

1. The Companies Act, 2013 {the Act) and the Rules made there under;

i, The Securities Contracts {Regulation) Act, 1956 {'SCRA"}Y and the Rules made there undes;

i The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under;

V. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the Rules and Regulations made there under to the

extent of Foreign Direct investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial

Borrowings;{ Not applicable as there was no reportable event during the Financial Year under
review ) g




The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of
India Act, 1982 ("SEBI Act’) to the extent applicable to the Company:-

4.

S

VI.

A

i)

i}

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers)
Regulations, 2011; Not Applicable as Company is an unlisted Company.

The Securities and Exchange Board of india (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;
Not Applicable as Company is an unlisted Company.

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2009; Not Applicable as Corapany is an unlisted Company.

The Securities and Exchange Board of india {(Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee
stack Purchase Schemej Guidelines, 199; Not Applicable as Company is an unlisted Company.

The Securities and Exchange Board of india {issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations,
2008: Not Applicable as Company is an unlisted Company.

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents)
Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act, 2013 and dealing with client; Not Applicable
as Company is an unfisted Company.

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009; Not
Applicable as Company is an unlisted Company.

The Securities and Exchange Board of india (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998; Not
Applicable as Company is an unlisted Company,

The Llisting Agreements entered into by the Company with any stock exchange(s); Not
Applicable as Company is an unlisted Company.

The Memorandum and Articles of Association,

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with any stock exchange(s); Not
Applicable as Company is an unlisted Company,




During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,
Regulations, Guidelines, and Standards, mentioned above.

.

>

o

-4

We further report that the Company has, in my opinion, complied with the applicable
provisions of Companies Act, 2013 as notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs and rules made
there under along with the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company, with
regard to:

Maintenance of various statutory registers and documents and making necessary entries therein;
Closure of the Register of Members.

Forms, returns, documents and resolutions required to be filed with the Registrar of Companies
and the Central Government;

service of documents by the Company on its Members, Auditors and the Registrar of Coempanies;
Notice of Board Meetings and Committee Meetings of Directors;

The Meetings of Directors and Committees of Directors including passing of resolutions by
circutation:

The 10th Annual General Meeting held on 30" December, 2019.

Minutes of proceedings of General Meetings and of the Board and its Committee Meetings;
Approvals of the Members, the Board of Directors, the Committees of Directors and the
government authorities, wherever required;

Constitution of the Board of Directors / Committee(s) of Directors, appointment, retirement and
reappointment of Directors;

Appointment and remuneration of Auditors;

Transfers and transmissions of the Company’s shares and issue and dispatch of duplicate
certificates of shares;

Barrawings and registration, modification and satisfaction of charges wherever applicable;
investment of the Company’s funds in cluding investments and foans to others:

Form of Balance Sheet as prescribed under Part |, form of staternent of profit and loss as prescribed

under Part i and General instructions for preparation of the same as prescribed in Schedule 11 1o
the Act;

Directors” Report;
Contracts, common seal, registered office and publication of name of the Company; and
Generally, all other applicable provisions of the Act and the Rutes made under the Act,

We further report that:

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with optimum combination of Non-
Executive Directors and Independent Directors and Woman Director. There are changes in the
composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the financial year 2019-2020 as per
the provision of the Companies Act, 2013.

Adequate notice is given to all Directors to attend the Board Meetings, sgenda and detailed notes
on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance.

Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members’ views are captured and
recorded as part of the minutes.




» The Company has obtained ail necessary approvals under the various provisions of the Act; and

o The Dirgctors have complied with the disclosure requirements in respect of their eligibility of
appointmeant, their being independent and compliance with the Code of Business Conduct &
Ethics for Directors and Management Personnel;

~  We further report that

s There are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and
operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules,
regulations and guidelines.

*  We further report that

» During the audit period there was no specific event/ action has major impact on the affairs of the
Company in pursuance of above referred faws, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards etc.

¢ This Report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and forms
an integral part of this report,

FOR KUMAR WADHWA & QQMPANY
A ny—Sg,rt?etaries

Place: New Delhi
Date: 1% September, 2020

{Partner)
C.PNO: 7027
UDIN: FOO9211B000643218




Annexure A

To,

The Members of

EAVA INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Regd. Off: B-14, House 2, gasement, Shiviok Commercial Compiex,
Karampura, Delhi-110015.

Management’s Responsibility

1w is the responsibitity of management of the Compaay to maintain secretarial records, devise Proped
systems o ensure compliance with the provisians of all applicable iaws and regulations and 10 gnsure that the
systems are adequate and operate effectively.

Auditor’s Responsibility

2. Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records, standards and procedures followed by
the Company with respectio secretarial compliances.

1. we believe that audit evidence and information obtained from the Corapany’s management is adequate and
appropriate for usto provide a basis for our opinion.

A4 Wherever required, we have obtained the management’s representation about the compliance of laws, rules
and reguiations and happening of events ete.

Disclaimer

5 The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as o future viabitity of the Company nof of the efficacy or
effectiveness with which the management has canducted affairs of the Company.

6. \We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the

Company.

FOR KUMAR WADHWA & COMPANY
Company Secretaries

2

; fo,%\
| ;{5:4 '
place: New Delhi SEANIRY KUMAR
Date: 1°! September, 2020 S
/  (Partner)
C.P NO: 7027

UDIN: FO09211B000643218



Annexure - “E"

Form No. AQC-2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of
the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 )

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts / arrangements entered into by the
company with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the
Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm'’s length transactions under third Proviso
thereto:

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s
length basis: Company has purchased & sold goods to Lava HK & XOLO HK,
and made Export sales to Lava Technologies DMCC. And these transactions
are on arm’s length basis as the same was certified by TP Auditors.

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at
arm’s length basis:

a. Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship:
1. Lava International (HK) Ltd., a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company.
2. Xolo International (HK) Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company.
3. Lava Technologies DMCC. a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company

b. Nature of contracts / arrangements / transactions: Master Purchase
Agreement with Lava International (HK) Ltd; Customs Handling Services
Agreement with Am Express Worldwide Logistics.




[Pursuant to Clause (o) of sub-
Companies (Corp

1. A brief outline of the com
proposed to be undertaken

programs.

The

CSR

Policy

Corporate Sacial Responsibility (CSR)

has

been

!1ttns://www.Iavamobiles.com/csr. pdf

placed

en the

Company’s

Annexure - “F

section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Ruie 9 of the
orate Social Responsibility) Rules, 2014]

pany's CSR policy, including overview of projects or programs
and a reference to the web-link to the CSR policy and projects or

website at

2. The composition of the Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee.

The Corporate Social Res
(Chairman), Mr. Shailendr

The Total net profits for the last three years are as follows:

ponsibility (CSR) committee comprises of Mr. Vineet Kumar Jain
a Nath Rai (Member) and Hariom Rai {(Membery).

3. Average net profit of the company for [ast three financial year

(INR in million)

S. No, | Financial Year Yurnover (In Rs,) Net Profit (in Rs.)
1 2016-17 36,618 1,862
2 2017-18 32,908 1,103
3 2018-19 30,663 267

The average net profit of the last three years is Rs.

4. Prescribed CSR Expe

iture (2% of the amount

1,078 millions

in item 3 above

The Company is required to spend Rs. 21.56 millions towards CSR expenditure,

5. Detajls of CSR spent during the financial year,

{a) Total amount to be spent for the finan

millions)

(b) Amount unspent, if any: Rs. 17.56 miflion

cial year {i.e. 2% of the Average net profit: Rs. 21.56

{c) Manner in which the amount spent during the financial year is detailed below.

(Amount in Million)

) l3) @) G5y ji(6) (7 (8) !
Projects or Amount spent
Sector ?;())%.r:czlsarea Amount ;:']o;:its or
in Cumulative l[Amount spent
CSR . or other outlay programs . i
- which . expenditure|: Direct or
S. iiproject or (2) Specify (budget) |Sub - heads:
2 the . . upto to the [through
No |activity . the State and !project or (1) Direct N . .
. Pl Project P . reporting Jimplementing
identified s district where|programs expenditure eriod agency
covered projects or wise on projects or P
programs wa programs
undertaken SI (2) Overheads
. . Upiiftment of Implementing
1 \Educationall} Education Education 4 3 4

Ul Agency:
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6. The CSR Committee hereby declares that to the best of its knowledge, the implementation and
monitoring of CSR Policy, is in compliance with CSR objectives and Policy of the Company and
takes all the responsibility for any non compilance of any provision of the Act in regard to
Corporate Social Responsibility,



Annexure - "G”

INFORMATION AS PER SECTION 134 (3) (m) READ WITH THE COMPANIES
(ACCOUNTS) RULES 2014 AND FORMING PART OF THE DIRECTOR’'S
REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315" MARCH, 2019,

FORM A

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY:

a) Energy Conservation measures taken:
The operations of the company are of such nature that energy
consumption is on a lower side. However, your company continues to
invest in replacement of low energy efficiency systems and take adequate

measures in order to conserve energy.
b) Alternate sources of energy:
The Company is not required to look for alternate source of energy due to

its nature of business,

c) Capital investment on energy conservation equipment’s:
NIL

FORM ‘B’

TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND RESEARCH & DEVELOPMENT

1. RESEARCH & DEVELOPMENT (R&D)

The main objectives of R & D (Software & Hardware) unit established by
the company include:




R&D was commenced with a vision to build software solutions and
services for the mobile first user base in India. It started with building
power management and security applications. This enables user to
manage their applications better. Then on team moved into building
India’s First custom ROM which involved engaging tech aware users to
build solutions on native android. The Hardware R&D unit of the company
has been set up with an objective to design & develop hardware of
affordable flagship smart phones and feature phones and also import
substitution, cost reduction, and to become more competitive in domestic
and global market.

a. Specific Areas in which Research and Development (R&D) is
being carried out by the Company

The company has established its first Software R&D Center in Bangalore
at 5th Floor, Vakil Square, Bannerghatta Road, Bangalore later on such
R&D Center was shifted to B-4 (First Floor) Sector-63 Noida U.P which
was accorded by DSIR, for accomplishment of companies R&D projects to
meet the challenging requirements in mobile industry for the day to day
requirements and to design and development of new products like
building power management and security applications. This is to integrate
features in the product (Smartphones) in order to provide better features
available to the end users. The company has established state of the art
Hardware R&D center at Noida Sector-63 in order to design & develop
hardware and manufacture mobile phones, mainly Feature and Smart
Mobile Phones. This Hardware R&D center has been established to enable
development of local eco-system of mobile manufacturing in India which
is in line with govt. of India vision for developing this industries and
thereby generating huge employment opportunities in the country.
Designed, schematized, developed and manufactured Prime X Feature

phone to meet the requirements of domestic as well as global market.




b. Benefits derived as a result of the above efforts -

O

O

Q

Customer Satisfaction

Cost reduction

Technology edge

Better product

enhancing Make in India by building phone manufacturing eco-system

and developing state of art technology in terms of Hardware and
software for same.

c. Future Plan of action

To understand and deeply work on machine learning, artificial intelligence,
AR/VR, battery technology and user experlence for the Indian users.

To develop and build software solutions which cnables the
customers to engage with right content and services and also build
solutions for keeping smartphone as the center to connect various
smart city initiatives enabling users to harness low power switching
renewable energy etc.

Develop ability to design device drivers in areas of MIPI, I2C ,Linux
Imaging interface and tuning. To aide end to cnd development of
camera hardware in India.

Work with factory tools and companies providing factory validation
tools to build an automated device validation solution. This will in

turn enable seamless production.

d. Expenditure on R&D*

Expenditure FY 2019-20 FY 2018-19

Amount (in Amount (in

Rs million.) [Rs million.)

Amount Charged to Statement of Profit & | 84.84 100.10 .




l.oss

Amount capitalized

(i) Intangible Assets

% of Total Turnover

(ii) Property, plant & equipment 4,52 17.25
TOTAL 89.36 117.35
Total R & D Expenditure as a 0.46% 0.38%

* Above figures are shown on standalone basis.

2. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, ADAPTATION AND INNOVATION

a. Efforts made towards technology absorption, adaptation and

innovation

The company is having In-house technical department which keep on
updating the company with the latest technology available in market
retated to mobile industry. The company is using latest technology in its
products and keep on updating its products in terms of quality and
technology. The company also arranges sessions on regular basis for its
employees and impart technical knowledge and training to keep them

abreast with the latest technologies in the market.

b. Benefits Derived as a result of the above efforts.

We are able to deliver quality products in the hands of the customers in
terms of new features in the handsets we keep on updating the technology

in our products.

¢. Information about Imported Technology

I Technology Imported:

N.A.




Ii | Year of Import:

N.A.

Iii | Has Technology been fully absorbed: N.A.

and future plans of action.

Iv | If not fully absorbed, areas where this | N.A.
has not taken place, reasons therefore

3) FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

Activates relating to exports, Initiative taken to increase Export,

Development of new export markets for products, Export Plans:

The Company had exported its material, considering the increasing

demand of mobile handsets all over the world, The company is planning to

export its products in the Asian and African Countries in the forthcoming
financial year.

Total Foreign Exchange used and earned

(Rs. In Million)

2019-20 2018-19
Earnin | FOB value of exports 2,965.41 2,828.85
gs
Out go | CIF value of imports 11,013.38 18,186.06
Expenditure in Foreign Currency | 12.05 40.25




INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To
The Members of
Lava International Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone Ind AS financial statements of Lava International
Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31 2020, the Statement of
Profit and Loss, including the Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement
and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act,
2013, as amended (“the Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with
the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2020, its profit including other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in
equity for the year ended on that date.

We conducted our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing (SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act as amended. Our
responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the ‘Auditor's Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements’ section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the 'Code of Ethics’ issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements
under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on
the standalone Ind AS financial statements.




Emphasis of Matter — Credit Risk

We draw attention to Note No. 28 to the standalone Ind AS financial statements, which describes the
Company's established policy, procedures and controls relating to customer credit risk management as
well as the management’s assessment of credit risk, credit monitoring mechanism and recovery of
certain trade receivables amounting to Rs. 5,566.26 million as at 31 March 2020. Based on their credit
evaluation, the management is confident of recovering these amounts in due course and does not
consider the trade receivables as credit impaired. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Other Information

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Annual report but does not include the financial statements
and our auditor's report thereon. The other information as stated above is expected to be made
available to us after the date of this Auditors’ Report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibility of Management for the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view
of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and
changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act, read
with relevant rules issued thereunder as amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets
of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls,
that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a
true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.




Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone Ind AS financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these standalone Ind AS financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone Ind AS financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resuiting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial
controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

+ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone Ind AS financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone ind AS financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 ('the Order'), issued by the Central

Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, we give in the
“Annexure A" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.




2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

)

(9)

(h)

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

In our opinion proper books of account as required by faw have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books;

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements comply with the Indian
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with relevant rules issued
thereunder;

The matters described in the Emphasis of Matters — Credit Risk paragraph above, in our
opinion, may have an adverse effect on the functioning of the Company.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2020
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March
2020, from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company with reference to these standalone Ind AS financial statements and the operating
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in “Annexure B” to this report.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the remuneration

paid by the Company to its directors during the current year is in accordance with the provisions
of Section 197 of the Act.

(This space has been intentionally left blank)




(iy  With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the
best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  the Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigation on its financial position in

its standalone financial statements - Refer Note 32 to the standalone financial
statements;

ii. the Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses;

iii there were no amounts which were required to be transferred, to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

FOR SURESH SURANA & ASSOCIATES LLP
Chartered Accountants

YOAI Firm's Registration No. 121750 W
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(Rahul Singhal)
PARTNER
Membership No: 096570

UDIN: 20096570AAAABX6917

JERURS—-

Place of Signature: Noida
Date: 31 July 2020



ANNEXURE A TO INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading of “Report on other legal and regulatory

requirements” of our report of even date)

(a) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars including quantitative
details and situation of fixed assets.

(b) The Company has regular programme of physical verification of its fixed assets by which all
fixed assets of respective locations are verified at least once in every three years.
Accordingly, physical verification of all fixed Assets was carried out in financial year 2017-
18. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is reasonable having regard to the
size of the Company and the nature of its assets. No material discrepancies were noticed
on such verification.

{c) The Company does not hold any immovabie property (in the nature of ‘fixed assets’).
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (i) (c) of the Order are not applicable.

As explained to us, the management has conducted physical verification of inventory at
reasonable intervals during the year and no material discrepancies were noticed on physical
verification of the inventory.

The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited
Liability partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of
the Act. Accordingly, paragraph 3(iii) (a), 3(iii) (b) and 3(iii) (c) of the Order are not applicable.

The Company has complied with the provisions of Section 186 in respect of investments made
& guarantees given. Further, in our opinion, the company has not entered into any transaction
covered under Section 185 and Section 186 of the Act in respect of loans and security.

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not accepted any deposits during the year within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the Act
and the rules framed there under, to the extent notified.

We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant to the
rules made by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records under Section
148(1) of the Act, and are of the opinion that prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records
have been made and maintained.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is generally regular in
depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues including provident fund,
employee's state insurance, income tax, goods and service tax, cess and any other statutory
dues, with the appropriate authorities during the year ended 31 March 2020. According to the
information and explanations given to us, there are no undisputed amounts payable in respect
of such statutory dues which have remained outstanding as at 31 March 2020 for a period of
more than six months from the date they became payable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues in respect of
income tax, sales tax, goods and service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise and value added
tax which have not been deposited on account of any dispute except the followings:




Statement of dispute dues:

Amount not |  Period to
: ‘ deposited which the ‘ e
Name of the Name of | on account “amount ‘Forum where the dispute
Statute Dues of dispute relates is pending
~{in. millions (Previous
INR) Year)
Bihar VAT Sales Tax 11.43 2009-15 Hon'ble Bihar Commercial
Act Tax, Tribunal, Patna
Bihar VAT Sales Tax 23.08 2015-17 Joint Commissioner of
Act commercial Taxes (Appeal)
Central Divison-Patna
Chandigarh Sales Tax 0.76 2011-15 Chandigarh High Court
VAT Act
Karnataka Sales Tax 2.46 2011-13 Joint Commissioner of
VAT Act commercial Taxes (Appeal-
2), Shanthinagar, Bangalore
Karnataka Sales Tax 4.93 2014-15 Karnataka Appellate
VAT Act Tribunal
Kerala VAT Sales Tax 2.37 2009-12 The Deputy Commissioner
Act (Appeal), Ernakulam
Maharashtra Sales Tax 3.99 2015-16 Deputy Commissioner of
VAT Act sales tax, Rajgarh Division
Maharashtra Sales Tax 15.94 2012-15 Joint commissioner of Sales
VAT Act Tax, Rajgarh Division
Punjab VAT Sales Tax 9.44 2009-13 Punjab Tribunal
Act
Rajasthan Sales Tax 11.79 2009-15 Rajasthan High Court
VAT Act
Seemandhra | Sales Tax 13.43 2014-15 & Hyderabad High Court
VAT Act 2015-16
Tamil Nadu Sales Tax 1.34 2012-16 Deputy Commissioner
Appeal (Chennai)
Telangana Sales Tax 3.65 2015-17 Hyderabad High Court
VAT Act
Telangana Sales Tax 24714 Feb'14 to Hyderabad High Court
VAT Act Mar'15 &
2015-17




%

10.

11.

12

13.

14.

15.

16.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given t p
not defaulted in repayments of loans and borrowings from any financial institution, banks,
government or debenture holders during the year.

The Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments). The term loan raised by the company was applied for the purpose
for which it was raised.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or any
fraud on the Company by its officers or employees, noticed or reported during the year

The Company has paid/provided for managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite
approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the Company is not
a nidhi company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

Based on our audit procedures and as per the information and explanations given by the
management, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188
of the Act where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the
standalone Ind AS financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year.

Based on our audit procedures and as per the information and explanations given by the
management, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or
persons connected with them. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934,

FOR SURESH SURANA & ASSOCIATES LLP
Chartered Accountants ,
f*‘\HICAI Firng\’s Registration No. 121750 400010
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Place of Signature: Noida
Date: 31 July 2020



ANNEXURE B TO INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Lava International Limited,
(“the Company”) as on 31 March 2020 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the
Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAI").
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note") and the Standards on
Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act,
2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of
internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audif to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controis
over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate t{o provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3)




provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unautho
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree
of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system
over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at 31 March 2020, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India.

FOR SURESH SURANA & ASSOCIATES LLP
Chartered Accountants
(’”«;irm’ﬁ Registration No. 121750 -100010
P ; i .,
W
“{Rahul Singhal)
PARTNER
Membership No. 096570

UDIN: 20096570AAAABX6917-

Place of Signature: Noida
Date: 31 July 2020



Lava Internationai Limited
Standalone balance sheet as at 31 Mareh 2020
Al amownts in Indii K

wex Million nistoss oilers e siaieds

.l‘ar(icul;n’s Notes 31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Assets

Non-current assefs

Property. plant and equipment 3 523.37 669.55
Capital work-in-progress 3 20.69 -
Intangible assets 4 54.72 126.56
Right of usc asset 5 208.18 -
Investment in subsidiaries and associate 6 540.50 540.50
Financial assets
Investments 7 (a) - -
Loans 7() 26.09
Other financial asset 7 (h) 1.17
Other non-current assets 9 (a) 57.44
1,432,316
Current assets
Inveniories g 1,872.42 3,950.9¥
Financial assets
Investments 7 (b) 20.69 94.50
Trade receivables 7 (c) 8,818.07 6,726.49
Cash and cash equivalents 7 (dy 12335 722.07
Other bank balances 7 (e) 1,301.78 1,774.85
Loans 7(g) A6l 13.78
Others 7 (i),40 980.19 971.22
Other current assets 9 (b),40 2,916.70 3.000.00
16,039.78 16,859.89
TOTAL ASSETS 17,471.94 18,406.47
Equity and liabilities
Equity
Equity share capital 10 1,248.67 1,248.67
Instruments entirely equity in nature 10 50.00 50.00
Other equity
Securities premium 1,874.58 1,874.58
Share based payment reserve 143.18 143.18
Retained earnings 6,604.84 6,351.43
Other reserve {7.69) (7.69)
Total Equity 9,913.58 9,660.17
Liabilities
Non-current labilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 11 (a) 553.58 672.89
Othier financial liabilities 11 (d) 320.36 73.47
Other non-current liabilities 13 (a) - 4.68
Provisions 12 (a) 4598 69.31
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 24 88.29 119.73
1,008.21 940,08
Current Jiabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 11(b) 1,094.42 797.86
Trade payables
- total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 11 (c), 33 11.07 20.49
- total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 11 (c) 3,801.26 5,277.34
Other financial liabilities 11 (e) 530.73 594.91
Other current liabilities 13 (b) 617.03 699.41
Provisions ' 12(b) 158.00 231.83
Liabilities for current tax (net) 14 337.64 18438
Total liabilities 6,550.18 7,806.22
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 17,471.94 18,406.47
Summary of significant accounting policies 2.1
The accompanying notes forms an integral part of these standalone financial statements.
As per our report of even date as atfached
For Suresh Surana & Associates LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
["Chartered Accountants ) Lzva International Limited
; P{rm‘s},{;cgistra(é‘?n No.: 12 e
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Rakul Singhal Hari Qm Rai Shailendra Nath Rai
Partner Marhgig Director Whole-Time Director

Membership No. 096570 (DIN-00908417)

DIN - 011914453,
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Place: Noida % ¥ J o -
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Asitava Bose
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
(Membership No.- ACS-35437)

31 July 2020




Lava International Limited
Standalone statement of profit and loss for the vear ended 31 March 2020
(Al amounts in Indian Rupees Million unless othervise stated)

Particulars Notes 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Income
Revenue from operations 15,40 19,277.10 30,663.47
Other income 17.40 35.04 50.92
Total income () 19,312.14 30,714.39
Expenses
Cost of raw material and components consumed 18 11,306.27 20,494 .45
Purchase of traded goods 2,819.82 3,348.49
(Increase)/decrease in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress 19 1,424.13 1,051.66
and traded goods
Employee benefits expense 20 1,392.70 2,705.77
Other expenses 21,40 1,503.48 2.326.11
Total expense (I1) 18,446.40 29,926.48
Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation (EBITDA) -an 865.74 787.91
Depreciation and amortisation expense 22 273.30 316.35
Finance costs 23 308.88 379.65
Finance income 16 (135.46) (175.79)
Net Finance cost _ 173.42 203.86
Profit before tax 419.02 267.70
- Current tax 202.20 195.97
- Deferred tax expense/(income) (31.23) (126.49)
Income tax expense 24 170.97 69.48
Profit for the year 248.05 198.22

Other comprehensive income
Other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to profit and loss in subsequent periods :

- Re-measurement (gains)/losses of defined benefit plan 29 0.59 (18.68)
- Income tax relating to this item 24 0.21H) 6.53
Other comprehensive (income)/loss for the year 0.38 (12.15)
Total Comprehensive Income for the year 247.67 210.37
Earnings per equity share (in Rupees) 25
Basic 1L.99 1.59
Diluted 1.90 1.52
Summary of significant accounting policies 2.1

The accompanying notes forms an integral part of these standalone financial statements.

As per our report of even date as attached

For Suresh Surana & Associates LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

-C\£hartered Accountants : Lava International Limited .
{F{‘rm’s Registragion No.: 12175}0 / ; ,,,,,
NRITAT I DU e

Q187 ”‘\/V\i{ N . e ) _

Rakill STnghal / Hiri Om Rai Shailendra Nath Rai

Partner Managing Director Whole-Time Director
Membership No. 096570 . (DIN - 01 191/443)

oo
Y Y

Place: Noida ' vx

Date:- 2} Ty Y 200 ‘f\(ﬁgﬂz;“jm \iﬁ,@iﬁ““ 4
“Asitava Bose Bharat Mishra
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

(Membership No.- ACS-35437)

3t July 2026 31 Tuly 20206



ovoe hine 1g
{£EPSE-SOV - ON diysiaquidi) oz \N_b Cig
Lrejoaoeg Ausduio)) 12DYJ() [RIdUBUL] 1Y)
BIYSIIA JRARUY 50 vARHSY .
: oy /N\ I 0L %?\Nh ¥ -oeq

) Ll
e 2 -8
1 EPION 1098

(LTY80600-NICD) (€rp16110 - NIC) 0L§960 "ON dujsiaquiajy
JO0JIC] DU [ -DJOU M so1011(] Suifeury Jouped
1Y [N Brpudqleyg wy J\Om ey o peysuig Hrpey
- p i - g gy
».w. N\ A NM w4 \:
1 Z%\ \\\ /47

\\. M GOOTAVANOSLITT 0N uOn AIsISaY m.,«:mi

PIIWIT [RUQALUIdNE] vALT] STUBIUNOIIY PAId Vw:U

JO SI0J0RUI( JO PABOE AY) JO JIBYDQ UO PUL 10, J717T $PIBID0SSY ) BURING YSAING 10,

paydeE Se 9ep udAd Jo jrodaa ano tad sy
“SIUdUIRIE)S [eIoURULY duo[epues ooy Jo wed jriauun ue swioy sajou Fuikueduioose oy
(17 210U 13501} sarvijod Sununodsse Juesymsis Jo Aewwing

"2A10501 Jusuysaatt Ainbe [DO LA O Wiim pajepwnose e sadueyd
AL aWedU] AAISUADAWOS SO UE PIY 91 BALYQY JO SpdumySU; AJubd Ul SWIDWISIAW JO IN[BA IR} S UI SOFULYD SIWF001 OF POIOOJ sey Auedwo o], : 9419591 Judunsaaut Ambd DHOLAAL (1)

‘ueyd vondo ¥ sakogduwa s, uedwioy sy sopun sad40[dud 03 pansst suondo Jo snjeA Jrey Jo ayep Jueid oy 25180091 03 pasn s1 M08 Furpuelsino uondo vxeys oy | : da13s1 Judted paseq ateys (1)
"€10T WY sauedwio) oy Jo suoisiroid ol 1tm FOULPIOIIE UL PISIHN ST DAIISAL DL “SOIRYS JO ONSSH UO wWnrwaid o) PIOsaX Of pasu st wmuudd sonLmosg ; wniwdxd sanndg (1)

16719°8 (69°0) F8°+09'9 8I°€r1 8SYLE] 0707 Y2IE 1€ e 5V
PL'S - vL'S - - (8¢ 10U 19J93]) 9AIPSI UOTEST[EUDI 953 JO JUODAO
LYLYT - LYLYT - - 224 DY} 10 W0dUI JAISUIYIIAWOD Jejo ],
(8€0) - (3¢°0) - - Ie24 21} 10§ (S50[)/OL0dU! SAISUIYRIAIOD 1310
S0°8+T - SO'8YT - - Je04 2y 103 Jiyoud Ri0],
05719¢'8 (69°L) £HISE9 81°¢r1 SSVLE] 6107 Y2 IE € IT SY
(00°0) - €0 aco PIISPUSLINS/Pa[Ias SUOLAO SIBYS
St'r - - Shy - asuadxs Juswided poseq sieyg
LEOIT - LEDIT - - 229K DY J0J QWOOUT IAISUIYIIAWOD [0 ]
SI'T1 - STt - - 1894 21} 10J WOOUI FAISUIYDIAWOD I}
U861 - T86l - - 1834 21 J0j Jyoxd [ejo]
899718 69°2) SLOFT'9 r0°6¢€l 8SVLgL SIOT HAY T IEsY
(1) (1)
e10 ALISIL JUDWISIAUY SSuwuard poure)dy DAIISIA aE .
1901 £mba - 1DOLAL yuowed paseq aaeyg W2 sopLnadg steponaeg
snpding pue $3A1350y

Lubs a3y30 2
00708 00705 B4 313 JO PUd Y} 3 Juipuesing
00°0s 00°0¢ 1eak oy JO Duuusaq oyl 1V
GIOT YIBI 1€ QT0T Ydxe gy |€ Sanjeu i AJinbd A[oInud SJudunaSt] q
LYSFT'1 LYSFTL AvdA Y3 30 puUd A} JE SUIPUEISIT()
L98YTl LYBYTH 8ok oy} Jo Furmuriag o 1y
GIOT YIEBW 1€ 0707 YIB I 1€ fendedaxeys by e

(porpis asimiaiyio ssajun ol $2adny upipUy Ut spnowD 13
6T0T YEIA 1€ Papud 1834 dy) 20§ A1nba ut soZueyd Jo Judwd)Lls dJuorpuLyg
POIULT [EUOBEUIDJUY BAR]



Lava International Limited
Standalone cash flow statement for the year ended 31 March 2020

(AUl amounts in Indicn Rupees Million unless othenise siaied)

Particuiars

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before tax
Adjustment 1o reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows
Depreciationfamortization
(Profity/L.oss on sale of property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment written off
Fair value (gain) /loss on Investment at fair value through profit or loss
Dividend Income
Share based payment expense
Unrealized foreign exchange {gain)/ Joss
Net (gain)/loss on sale of mutual fund investments
Balances written off’
Fair value (gain)/loss on derivative financial instrument at FVTPL
Payment of principal portion of lease Habilities
Provision for Inventories obsolescence
Provision for trade receivables and advances
Amortization of prepaid security deposit
Interest expense
Interest income
Operating profit before working capital changes

Movements in working capital:

Decrease in trade payables and other liabilities
Decrease in provisions

Increase in trade receivables

Decrease in inventories

(Increase)/ Decrease in other assets

Cash generated from operations

Income taxes paid (net of refunds)

Net cash flow used in operating activities (A)

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment including capital work in progress
Purchase of intangible assets including intangible assets under development
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment (including intangibles)
Investment in subsidiaries

Purchase of mutual fund investments

Sale of mutual fund investments

Investments in bank deposits

Redemption/maturity of bank deposits

Interest received

Net cash flow from investing activities (B)

Cash flow from financing activities

Proceeds from long-term borrowings

Payment of long-term borrowings

Movement in short-term borrowings

Interest paid on lease liability

Interest paid on borrowings

Net cash (used in)/from financing activities (C)

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (A + B +C)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Components of cash and cash equivaients

Cash on hand

With banks on current account

- on deposit account

- others balances

Total cash and cash equivalents (Refer note 7 (d))

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities

419.02 267.70
273.30 316.35
327 (0.38)
- 7.81
092 (3.35)
- (5.00)
. 445
(59.31) (172.80)
0.17 (12.02)
41.93 7.27
(13.35) -
(19.08) -
14.82 80.93
3131 16.65
7.14 -
219.54 272.20
(12211 (158.77)
797.57 621.04
(1,726.22) (1,299.03)
(97.75) (146.22)
(1,943.78) (267.22)
1,669.74 791.24
180.68 (335.74)
(1,119.76) (835.93)
(61.86) (229.80)
(1,181.62) (1,065.73)
(184.34) (77.24)
- (92.81)
1.93 0385
- 378.54)
(155.00) (94.49)
227.73 509.02
(2,186.19) (2,769.82)
2,761.90 3,689.81
98,71 276.90
564.80 1,063.67
- 300.00
(120.69) (714.40)
296.56 (944.28)
@7.11) -
(130.66) (204.18)
18.10 (1,562.86)
(598.72) {1,564.92)
722.07 2.286.99
123.35 722.07
7.95 559
81.27 90.00
34.13 626.48
123.35 722.07

Long term borrowings Short term borrowings

Interest accrued

Opening balance as on 31 March 2018 1,200.98 1,742.14 29.92
Cash Flows

- Payment (714.40) (944.28) (204.18)
- Proceeds 300.00

Non-Cash

- Upfront fees and amortization 4.17 - -

- Interest expenses - - 249.56
Closing balance as on 31 March 2019 790.75 797.86 75.30
Cash Flows .

-~ Payment (120.69) - (130.66)
- Proceeds - 296.56 -
Non-Cash

- Upfront fees and amortization 3.22 - 322
- Interest expenses - - 179.53
Closing balance as on 31 Mg 1,094.42 127.39

Summary of signifig: efer note 2.1)




Lava International Limited
Standalone cash flow statement for the vear ended 31 March 2020

(Al amownts in Indian Rupees Million unless otherwise s tatidj

The accompanying notes forms an integral part of these standalone financial statenients.

The schedules referved to above and nofes on accounts form an Integral part of the standalone cash flow statement.
1. Figures in brackets indicate cash out flow.

As per our report of even date as attached

For Suresh Surana & Associates LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants LAVA International Limited
Firm’s Registration No.: 121750 W/W-100010 -
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Lava International Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
(ANl amounts in Indian Rupees Million unless otheryise stated)

1.

Corporate information

Lava International Limited (the ‘Company’) is engaged in trading and manufacturing of mobile phones, storage
devices and other wireless telecommunication devices. The Company is a public company domiciled in India and is
incorporated under the provisions of Companies Act applicable in India as on 27" March, 2009. The registered office
of the Company is located in Karampura, Delhi and the principal place of business is Noida, Uttar Pradesh. The
Company has an in-house research and development center and manufacturing facilities in Noida.

The financial statements were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the directors on 3 1 July 2020.

Basis of preparation
a.  Statement of compliance

The standalone financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended thereafter notified
under section 133 of Companies Act, 2013, (the *Act’) and other relevant provisions of the Act.

b. Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on going concern basis in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in India. The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the
following items:

- Investments in equity instruments of other entities (at fair value through other comprehensive income)
- Investment in mutual funds (at fair value through profit or loss)
- Derivative financial instruments (at fair value through profit or loss)

¢. Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires
management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and
the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses and the disclosure of contingent liabilities on the
date of the financial statements. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Estimates and underlying
assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Any revision to accounting estimates are recognized prospectively
in current and future periods. Information about Jjudgments made in applying accounting policies that have the
most significant effects on the amounts recognized in the financial statements is included in the following notes:

Significant estimates

Useful lives of depreciable/amortizable assets — Management reviews its estimate of the useful lives of
depreciable/amortizable assets at each reporting date, based on the expected utility of the assets. Uncertainties
in these estimates relate to technical and economic obsolescence that may change the utility of assets.
Carrying amount of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are disclosed in Note 3 and Note 4
respectively.

Defined benefit obligation (DBO) — Management’s estimate of the DBO is based on a number of underlying
assumptions such as standard rates of inflation, mortality, discount rate and anticipation of future salary
increases. Variation in these assumptions may impact the DBO amount and the annual defined benefit
expenses. Carrying amount of defined benefit obligations are disclosed in Note 29,

Provisions for warranties — A provision is estimated for expected warranty in respect of products sold during the
vear on the basis of a technical evaluation and past experience regarding failure trends of products and costs of

rectification or replacement. Carrying amount of provision is disclosed in Note 12.

Significant judements

Contingent liabilities ~ At each balance sheet date basis the management judgment, changes in facts and legal
aspects, the ( y. assesses the requirement of provisions against the outstanding contingent liabilities.




Lava International Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
(Al amounts in Indian Rupees Million unless othervise stated)

However, the actual future outcome may be different from this judgement.

Impairment of financial assets — At each balance sheet date, based on historical default rates observed over
expected life, the management assesses the expected credit loss on outstanding financial assets,

Evaluation of indicators for impairment of assets — The evaluation of applicability of indicators of impairment
of assets requires assessment of several external and internal factors which could result in deterioration of
recoverable amount of the assets.

2.1 Summary of significant accounting policies
(a) Current vs Non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification. An asset
is treated as current when it is:

¢ Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle
¢ Held primarily for the purpose of trading
e Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

e Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period

Current assets include the current portion of non-current financial assets. All other assets are classified as non-
current.

A liability is current when:

¢ Itis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle
It is held primarily for the purpose of trading
It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the
reporting period

.
[ 4

Current liabilities include current portion of non-current financial liabilities. The Company classifies all other
liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.
Operating cycle

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash
equivalents. The Company has determined its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of classification of its
assets and liabilities as current and non-current.

(b) Property, plant and equipment

i. Recognition and measurement

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses if any.

Cost directly attributable to acquisition are capitalised until the property, plant and equipment are ready for use, as
intended by the management.

ii. Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent costs are capitalised on the carrying amount or recognised as a Separate asset, as appropriate, only when
future economic benefits associated with the item are probable to flow to the Company and cost of the item can be
measured reliably. When significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced in regular
intervals, the Company recognises such parts as separate component of assets. All repair and maintenance are charged
to statement of profit and loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred.
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(ANl amounts in Indian Rupees Million unless othervise stated)

iii.

i

il

lif,

The present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of the asset after its use is included in the cost of the
respective asset if the recognition criteria for a provision are met.

The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the statement of profit
and loss on the date of disposal or retirement.

Advances paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each balance sheet date is
classified as capital advances under the non-current assets and the cost of assets not put to use before such date are
disclosed under ‘Capital work in progress’.

Depreciation

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of
the assets as below:-

Assets Useful Lives
Office Equipment 5 Years
Furniture and fixtures* 5 Years
Demonstration Fixtures* 2 Years
Vehicles* 5 Years
Computer and Components* 3 Years
Plant and Machinery*

Jigs 1 Years

Other Plant and Machinery 5,15 Years
Electrical Installations 10 Years

*Based on technical evaluation, the management believes that the useful lives as given above best represent the period
over which the management expects to use these assets. Hence the useful lives for these assets are different from
useful lives as prescribed under Part C of Schedule 11 of the Companics Act 2013.

Leasehold Improvements are amortized over the lease term or 10 years whichever is less.

When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates them
separately based on their specific useful lives.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each
financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

(c¢) Imtangible assets
Recognition and initial measurement

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, assets
are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Internally generated intangible assets, excluding capitalized development costs, are not capitalized and expenditure

is reflected in the statement of profit and loss in the year in which the expenditure is incurred.

Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the
expenditure will flow to the Company.

Amortisation

The useful lives of intangible assets is assessed as finite as stated below and the assets are amortised over their useful
lives and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that an intangible asset may be impaired.

Assets Useful Lives
Computer sofiware (over license period) 1-5 Years
Internally generate 5 Years




Lava International Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
(All amounts in Indian Rupees Million unless othervise stated)

The amortization period and the amortization method are reviewed at least at each financial year end. Changes in the
expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are
considered to modify the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting
estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets is recognised in the statement of profit and loss unless such
expenditure forms part of carrying value of another asset.

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the statement of profit and loss when the
asset is derecognized.

Research and development costs

Research costs are expensed as incurred. Development expenditure incurred on an individual project is recognized as
an intangible asset when the Company can demonstrate all the following:

® The technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will be available for use or sale

o Its intention to complete the asset

° Its ability to use or sell the asset

o How the asset will generate future economic benefits,

e The availability of adequate resources to complete the development and to use or sell the asset

o The ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset during development.

Following the initial recognition of the development expenditure as an asset, the cost model is applied requiring the
asset to be carried at cost less any accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses. Amortization of the
asset begins when development is complete and the asset is available for use. It is amortized on a straight line basis
over the period of expected future benefit from the related project, i.c., the estimated useful life of one to five years.
Amortization is recognized in the statement of profit and foss. During the period of development, the asset is tested
for impairment annually.

(d) Leases

The Company adopted Ind AS 116 using the Modified retrospective method of adoption, with the date of initial
application on 1 April 2019. The Company has recognised a lease liability on initial application (i.e. April 1, 2019) at
the present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted using the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate at the
date of initial application and right-of-use asset at an amount equal to the lease liability, adjusted by the amount of
any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating to that lease recognised in the balance sheet immediately before the
date of initial application.

The Company, as a lessee, recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability for its leasing arrangements, if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset.

The contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, if it involves the use of an identified asset and
the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset and has right to direct the use of the
identified asset. The cost of the right-of-use asset shall comprise of the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date plus any initial direct costs
incurred. The right-of-use assets is subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation, accumulated
impairment losses, if any and adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability. The right-of-use assets is
depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date over the shorter of lease term or useful life
of right-of-use asset (Refer note 38).

The Company measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date of the lease. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if that
rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot be readily determined, the Company uses incremental borrowing
rate.
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(All amounis in Indian Rupees Million unless othervise stated)

The Company also elected to use the recognition exemptions for lease contracts that, at the commencement date, have
a lease term of 12 months or less and do not contain a purchase option (short-term leases), and lease contracts for
which the underlying asset is of low value (low-value assets).

Lessor accounting under Ind AS 116 is substantially unchanged from Ind AS 17. Lessors will continue to classify
leases as either operating or finance leases using similar principles as in Ind AS 17. Therefore, Ind AS 116 does not
have an impact for leases where the Company is the lessor.

(e) Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any
indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset’s
recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and its
value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash
inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. When the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In
determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions
can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations. These budgets and
forecast calculations generally cover a period of five years. For longer periods, a long-term growth rate is calculated
and applied to project future cash flows after the fifth year. To estimate cash flow projections beyond periods
covered by the most recent budgets/forecasts, the Company extrapolates cash flow projections in the budget using a
steady or declining growth rate for subsequent years, unless an increasing rate can be justified. In any case, this
growth rate does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the products, industries, or country or countries in
which the entity operates, or for the market in which the asset is used.

Impairment losses, including impairment on inventories, are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.
(f) Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity
instrument of another entity.

Financial assets
Recognition and initial measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value
through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.

Classification and subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

¢ Debt instruments at amortised cost

e Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCH

¢ Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
¢ Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Debt instruments at amortised cost
A “debt instrument” is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows,
and
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b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and

interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding,

This category is most applicable to the Company. After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the Effective Interest Rate (“EIR”) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking
into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR
amortisation is included in finance income in the statement of profit and loss. The losses arising from impairment are
recognised in the statement of profit and loss. This category generally applies to trade and other receivables.

Debt instrument ar FVTPL

FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria for
categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL.

In addition, the Company may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortized cost or
FVTOCI criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is considered only if doing so reduces or eliminates a
measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as ‘accounting mismatch?).

Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the
statement of profit and loss. This category is applicable to investments in mutual funds.

Debt instrument at FVTOCI
A “debt instrument’ is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:

a) The objective of the business model is achieved both by coliecting contractual cash flows and selling
the financial assets, and

b) The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPI,

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair
value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI). However, the Company
recognizes interest income, impairment losses & reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the statement of
profit and loss. On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified
from the equity to statement of profit and loss (P&L). Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI debt instrument is
reported as interest income using the EIR method.

Equity Investments

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for
trading are classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the Company may make an irrevocable election
to present in other comprehensive incone subsequent changes in the fair value. The Company makes such election
on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument,
excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to statement of profit
and loss, even on sale of investment. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL calegory are measured at fair value. All changes in fair value
including dividend are recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

De-recognition
A financial asset is de-recognised only when

The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay
the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and
either (a) the Compan ransferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has
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neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the assel, but has transferred control of
the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the
Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement. In that
case, the Company also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be required
to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and
recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure:

a. Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e g loans, debt sccurities,
deposits, trade receivables and bank balance
b.  Loan commitments which are not measured as at FVTPL

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment Joss allowance on trade receivables. The
application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises
impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines that whether
there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased
significantly, 12-month expected credit loss (ECL) is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has
increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves
such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to
recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a
financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default events that are
possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract
and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR.

The Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on portfolio of its trade receivables.
The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates over the expected life of the trade receivables
and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates. At every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are
updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/ expense in the
statement of profit and loss. For the financial assets measured as at amortised cost, contractual revenue receivables,
ECL is presented as an allowance, i.e., as an integral part of the measurement of those assets in the balance sheet.
The allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the Company does not reduce
impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss,
loans and borrowings or payables, as appropriate.
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All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net
of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank overdrafis
and Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares, financial guarantee contracts and derivative financial instruments.

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial
liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified
as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes
derivative financial instruments entered into by the Company that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge
relationships as defined by Ind AS 109,

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as such at
the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL,
fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit risk are recognized in OCI. These gains/ loss are not
subsequently transferred to statement of profit and loss. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or
loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
EIR. Gains and losses are recognised in statement of profit and loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as
through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fee or costs that are
an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that require a payment to be made to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in accordance
with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee contracts are recognised initially as a liability at fair value,
adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequently, the liability
is measured at the higher of the amount of loss allowance determined as per impairment requirements of Ind AS 109
and the amount recognised less cumulative amortisation.

De-recognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the
ferms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the
derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Reclassification of financial assets

The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. Afier initial
recognition, no reclassification is made for financial assets which are equity instruments and financial liabilities. For
financial assets which are debt instruments, a reclassification is made only if there is a change in the business model
for managing those assets. If the Company reclassifies financial assets, it applies the reclassification prospectively
from the reclassification date which is the first day of the immediately next reporting period following the change in
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business model. The Company does not restate any previously recognised gains, losses (including impairment gains
or losses) or interest

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial asset and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where there is a
legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the
asset and seitle the liability simultaneously.

(g) Derivative financial instrument

The Company uses derivative financial instruments i.e., forward and futures currency contracts to hedge its foreign
currency risks. Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as financial
assets when the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair value is negative. Any gains or losses
arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives are taken directly to statement of profit and loss. The Company
has not applied hedge accounting.

(h) Fair value measurement

The Company measure its financial instruments such as derivative at fair value at each balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that
the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

* Inthe principal market for the asset or liability, or
* Inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:

Level 1- Quoted (Unadjusted) marked prices in the active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2- Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
directly or indirectly observable

Level 3~ Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

At each reporting date, the management analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities which are
required to be re-measured or re-assessed as per the Company’s accounting policies. For this analysis, the
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management or its expert verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the information in the
valuation computation to contracts and other relevant documents

(1) Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present location and condition are accounted for as follows:

°  Raw materials and spares: cost includes cost of purchasc and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to
their present location and condition. Cost is determined on weighted average basis.

° Finished goods and work in progress: cost includes cost of direct materials and labour and a proportion of
manufacturing overheads based on the normal operating capacity, but excluding borrowing costs. Cost is
determined on weighted average basis.

e Traded goods: cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition. Cost is determined on first in first out basis.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion
and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

(i) Revenue recognition

Ind AS 115 — “Revenue from Contracts with Customers™ has been notified by MCA with effect from 1st April 2018,
vide its notification dated 28 March, 2018 which supersedes Ind AS 18 — “Revenue” and related Appendices.

We account for revenue in accordance with Ind AS 115"Revenue from Contracts with customers" using the modified
retrospective method.

The Company has recognize revenue in accordance with Ind AS 115 by applying the following 5 steps:
Identify the contracts with the customers,

Il Identify the separate performance obligations,

III Determine the transaction price of the contract,

IV Allocate the transaction price to each of the separate performance obligations, and

V' Recognize the revenue as each performance obligation is satisfied.

Sale of Goods

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are transferred to the
customer at an amount that reflects the consideration entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

Revenue mainly comprises the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for the sale of goods in the
ordinary course of the Company’s activities. Revenue is shown net of GST, returns, sales incentives and discounts,
The Company has concluded that it is the principal in all of its revenue arrangements since it is the primary obligor in
all the revenue arrangements as it has pricing latitude and is also exposed to inventory and credit risks

The Company accounts for volume discount for pricing incentives to customers as a reduction of revenue based on
estimate of applicable discount/incentives.

Sale of Services

Revenue from sales of services is from installation of third party mobile applications in the handset and is recognized
by reference to the stage of completion, net of GST. Stage of completion is measured by reference to services
performed to date as a percentage of total services to be performed.

Interest
For all debt instruments measured either at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income,
interest income is recorded using the EIR. EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or
receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset or to the amortised cost of a financial liability. When calculating the effective interest
rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial
instrument but does not consider the expected credit losses. Interest income is included in finance income in the
statement of profit and loss.
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Dividend Income
Dividend Income is recognised when the Company’s right to receive the amount has been estahlished

Incentive Income
Company has recognized incentive income in form of, Merchant export incentive income (MEIS), Duty drawback

income based on export made, UPSDM income based on training given to apprentice.

Disaggregation of Revenue
See Note 30 (Segment Reporting) to Standalone Financial Statements for our disaggregated revenues.

Contract Balances:

Trade Receivables
A receivable represents the Company’s right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional.

Contract Assets
A contract asset is a right to consideration that is conditional upon factors other than the passage of time.

During financial year 2019-20, out of Rs. 27.12 million contract assets as on March 31, 2019, invoicing for 90.60% has
been done and Rs.2.55 million is pending for invoicing.

Balance as at March 31, 2019 27.12 million
Deduction on account of Reclassified to receivable (24.57) million
Recognized as revenue during the year 17.72 million
Balance as at March 31, 2020 20.27 million

Contract Liabilities
A Contract liabilities is an entity’s obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the entity has
received consideration (or the amount is due) from the customer.

Balance as at March 31, 2019 656.10 million
Deduction on account of revenues recognized during the year (501.51) million
Addition on account of transaction 435.21 million
Balance as at March 31, 2020 589.80 million

Changes in the contract asset and liability balances during current year, were a result of normal business activity and
not materially impacted by any other factors.

(k) Foreign currencies
(1) Functional and presentation currenc 3%

Items included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which it operates i.e. the “functional currency”. These financial statements are presented in Indian
rupees, which is also the functional currency of the Company.

(ii) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are recorded in functional currency at the exchange rates prevailing at the date of
transaction. Exchange differences arising on settlement of transactions, are recognised as income or expense in the year
in which they arise.

At the balance sheet date, all monetary items denominated in foreign currency, are reported at the exchange rates
prevailing at the balance sheet date and the resultant gain or loss is recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Non-
monetary items which are carried in terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the
exchange rate at the date of the transaction.

Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date
when the fair value is.determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value
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is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation
differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in OCI or statement of profit and loss, are also

recognised in OCI or statement of profit and loss, respectively).
(1) Income taxes
Current income 1ax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively
enacted, at the reporting date in India.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the
recognised amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or simultaneously.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside statement of profit and loss is recognised either in other
comprehensive income or in equity. Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either
in OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate,
Payments of tax as per Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) is included as part of current tax in statement of profit and
loss.

Deferred Income Tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements as at reporting date. Deferred tax is
measured based on the tax rates and the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:
»  When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction
that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor

taxable profit or loss.

> Inrespect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in
joint ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that
the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and
any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused
tax losses can be utilized, except:

»  When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an
asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests
in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside statement of profit and loss is recognised either in other
comprehensive income or in equity. Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction
either in OCI or directly in equity.
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Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to set-off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and
the same taxation authority.

MAT is applicable to the Company. Credit of MAT is recognised as deferred tax asset only when it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the credit can be utilised. In the year in which the MAT credit becomes
cligible to be recognised as an asset, the said asset is created by way of a credit to the statement of profit and loss
account. The Company reviews the same at each balance sheet date and writes down the carrying amount of MAT
credit entitlement to the extent it is no longer probable that the Company will pay normal income tax during the
specified period.

(m) Retirement and other employee benefits

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The contributions to the provident
fund are charged to the statement of profit and loss for the year when an employee renders the related service. The
Company has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund.

The Company operates an unfunded defined benefit gratuity plan for its employees. The cost of providing benefits
under this plan is determined on the basis of actuarial valuation at each year-end, using the projected unit credit
method and charged to statement of profit and loss. Re-measurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the
effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability, are recognised
immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI in the period in
which they occur. Re-measurements are not reclassified to statement of profit and loss in subsequent periods.

Accumulated leave is treated as short-term employee benefit as the Company has no unconditional right to defer the
liability. The Company measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that it expects to pay as a
result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date. Such compensated absences are provided
for based on the actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method at the year-end. Actuarial gains/losses are
immediately taken to the statement of profit and loss.

(n) Provisions and Contingent Liabilities
Provisions

General

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the
statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement,

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects,
when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the
passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Warranty provisions

Provisions for warranty-related costs are recognised when the product is sold or service provided to the customer.
Initial recognition is based on historical experience. The initial estimate of warranty-related costs is revised annually.

Decommissioning lLiability

The Company records a provision for decommissioning costs of a leased facility. Decommissioning costs are provided
at the present value of expected costs to settle the obligation using estimated cash flows and are recognised as part of
the cost of the particular asset. The cash flows are discounted at a current pre-tax rate that reflects the risks specific to
the decommissioning lability. The unwinding of the discount is expensed as incurred and recognised in the statement
of profit and loss as a finance cost. The estimated future costs of decommissioning are reviewed annually and adjusted
as appropriate. Changes in the estimated future costs or in the discount rate applied are added to or deducted from the
cost of the asset.
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Contingencies

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the
oceurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company or a present
obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized
because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its
existence in the financial statements.

(o) Earnings per share

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit or loss for the year attributable to equity holders of the
Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit or lnss atfributable to equity holders of the Company (after
adjusting the corresponding income/charge for dilutive potential equity shares) by the weighted average number of
equity shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of equity shares that would be issued on
conversion of all the dilutive potential equity shares into equity shares.

(p) Segment reporting

Identification of segments

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision maker (CODM). Only those business activities are identified as operating segment for which the operating
results are regularly reviewed by the CODM to make decisions about resource allocation and performance
measurement,

Inter-segment transfers
The Company generally accounts for inter-segment sales and transfers at cost plus appropriate margins.

Segment accounting policies

The Company prepares its segment information in conformity with the accounting policies adopted for
preparing and presenting the financial statements of the Company as a whole.

(q) Share based payments

Employees (including senior executives) of the Company receive remuneration in the form of share-based payments,
whereby employees render services as consideration for equity instruments (equity-settled transactions).

Equity-settled transactions

The cost of equity-settled transactions is determined by the fair value at the date when the grant is made using Black
Scholes Option Pricing Model.

That cost is recognised, together with a corresponding increase in share-based payment reserves in equity, over the
period in which the service conditions are fulfilled in employee benefits expense. The cumulative expense recognised
for equity-settled transactions at each reporting date until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting period
has expired and the Company’s best estimate of the number of cquity instruments (hat will ultimately vest. The
statement of profit and loss expense or credit for a period represents the movement in cumulative expense recognised
as at the beginning and end of that period and is recognised in employee benefits expense.

Service conditions are not taken into account when determining the grant date fair value of awards, but the likelihood
of the conditions being met is assessed as part of the Company’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments that

will ultimately vest.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest because service conditions have not been met.
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Where an award is cancelled by the entity or by the counterparty, any remaining element of the fair value of the award
is expensed immediately through profit or loss.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in the computation of diluted earings
per share,

(r) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs to the extent directly attributable to the acquisition/construction of assets that necessarily take
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use are capitaliscd along with the respective property, plant
and equipment up to the date such asset is ready for use. Other borrowing costs are charged to the statement of profit
and loss.

{(s) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet and for the purpose of statement of cash flows comprise cash at banks
and on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value. These do not include bank balances earmarked/restricted for specific purposes.

() Equity investments (in subsidiaries, associates and joint venture)

Investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint venture are carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any
in separate financial statements. Where an indication of impairment exists, the carrying amount of the investment is
assessed and written down immediately to its recoverable amount. On disposal of investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint venture, the difference between net disposal proceeds and the carrying amounts are recognized in
the statement of profit and loss.

(1) Measurement of Earnings before Interest, tax, depreciation and amortization (EBITDA)

Ind AS compliant Schedule IIT allows line items, sub-line items and sub-totals to be presented as an addition or
substitution on the face of the financial statements when such presentation is relevant to an understanding of the
Company’s financial position /performance.

Accordingly, the Company has elected to present earnings before net finance cost, tax, depreciation and amortization
(EBITDA) as a separate line item on the face of the statement of profit and loss. The Company measures EBITDA on
the basis of profit/ (loss) from continuing operations. In its measurement, the Company does not include depreciation
and amortization expense, interest income, finance costs, and tax expense.
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LAVA International Limited
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
(All amornes in Indian Rupees Mnilion unless otherwise stared)

4 Intangible assets

Computer softwares

Internally generated

Intangible assets

. Total
and licenses software under development
Cost
Asat1 April 2018 152.09 87.67 239.76 72.73
Additions 56.47 36.34 92.81 1.39
Disposals 3.40 - 3.40 74.12
As at 31 March 2019 205.16 124.01 329.17 -
Additions N - . -
Disposals U1/ - 017 -
As at 31 March 2020 204.99 124.01 329.00 -
Amortisation
As at 1 April 2018 94.93 43.16 138.09 -
Charge for the year 43.66 27.52 7118 -
Disposals 0.66 - 0.66 -
As at 31 March 2019 137.93 70.68 208.61 -
Charge for the year 36.19 29.65 65.84 -
Disposals 0.17 - 0.17 -
As at 31 March 2020 173.95 100.33 274.28 -
Net Block
As at 31 March 2019 67.23 53.33 120.56 -
As at 31 March 2020 31.04 23.68 54.72 -
5 Right of use asset (Refer note 38)
Office building Factory building Warehouse Building Total
Particulars
Cost
As at 1 April 2018 - - - -
Additions - - - -
Disposals - - - -
As at 31 March 2019 - - - -
Additions 72.45 159.15 11.55 243.15
Disposals - - - -
As at 31 March 2020 72.45 159.15 11.55 243.15
Amortisation
As at 1 April 2018 - - - -
Charge for the year - - - -
Disposals - - - -
As at 31 March 2019 - - - -
Charge for the year 11.47 21.82 1.68 34.97
Disposals - - - -
As at 31 March 2020 11.47 21.82 1.68 34.97
Net Block
As at 31 March 2019 - - - -
As at 31 March 2020 60.98 137.33 9.87 208.18




LAVA International Limited
Notes to standalonc financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2020
(AN amownts in Indian Rupees Million unless otherwise stated)

6

7 (a)

7 (b)

Investment in subsidiaries and associate 31 March 2020 31 March 2019

No of Units Amount No of Units Amount
Unquoted equity mvestments fully paid-up
Investments in equity instruments of subsidiaries (af cost)
Equity shares of 1 HKD each fully paid up of Lava International (H.K.) Limited 10,000,000 57.48 10,000,000 57.48
Equity shares of 1 HKD each fully paid up of Xolo International (H.K.) Limited 100,000 083 100,000 0.83
Equity shares of Rs 10 each fully paid up of Lava Enterprises Limited 5,200,000 52.00 5,200,000 52.00
Equity shares of Rs 10 each fully paid up of Sojo Manufacturing Services Private Limited 2,219,000 22.19 2,219,000 22.19
Equity shares of Rs 10 each fully paid up of Sojo Manufacturing Services (AP)) Private Limited 3,959,000 39.59 3,959,000 39.59
Equity shares of Rs 10 each fully paid up of Sojo Distribution Private Limited 9,000 0.09 9,000 0.09
Equity shares of Rs 10 each fully paid up of Sojo Infotel Private Limited 9,000 0.09 9.000 0.09
Equity shares of 1000 AED each fully paid up of Lava Technalogies DMCC 18,400 33941 18,400 339.41
Equity shares of 0.0001 USD each fully paid up of Lava Technologies L.L.C. 4,000,000,000 28.79 4,000,000,000 28.79
Investments in equity instruments of associate {at cost)
Equity shares of Rs 10 each of MagicTel Solutions Private Limited 2,500 0.03 2,500 0.03

540.50 540.50

Financial assets

Non-current investnients 31 March 2020

No of Units Amount

31 March 2019

No of Units

Amount

Investments in equity instruments of other enfities
(at fair value through other comprehensive income)
Equity shares of .001 SGD each fully paid up of Abhriya Pte. Ltd.* 63,860 -

Aggregate amount of unquoted investment -

*As at 31 March 2020, the Company has fair valued the investment at Rs. Nil (31 March 2019 - Rs. Nil) as there is no future economic benefit expected from the investment.

Current investments

63,860

31 March 2020

No of Units Amount

31 March 2019

No of Units

Amount

Investment in Mutual funds (Quoted)(at fair value through profit or loss)
Reliance Credit Risk Fund - Growth - -
Union Arbitrage Fund Regulr Plan - Growth -
Union Capital Protection Oriented Fund - Series 8 2,000,000 20.69
Union KBC Capital Protection Oriented Fund - Series 7 -

20.69

Aggregate book value of quoted investment 20.69
Aggregate market value of quoted investment 20.69

(This space has been intentionally lefi blank)

2,101,183

149,990
2,000,000
1,500,000

54.16
1.5]

21.61

17.22
94.50



LAVA International Limited
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
(Al amounts in Indiai Rupees Million unless otherwise stated)

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

7 (c) Trade receivables

Unsecured

- Considered good 8,334.09 6,215.08

- Receivables from related parties, considered good (refer note 31) 483.98 51141

- Considered doubtful 54.06 18.20
8,872.13 6,744.69

Less :Provision for trade receivables

- Considered doubtful (54.06) (18.20)
8,818.07 6,726.49

For terms and conditions relating to trade receivables, refer note 28.

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

7 (d) Cash and cash equivalents

Balances with banks:

On current accounts 34,13 626.48
Deposits with original maturity of less than three months § (Refer footnote to note 7(h)) 81.27 90.00
Cash on hand 7.95 5.59

123.35 722.07

# Short-term deposits are made for varying periods of between one day and three months, depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Company, and earn

interest at the respective short-term deposit rates.

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
7 (e) Other bank balances
Deposits with bank for more than three months but less than twelve months (Refer 1,301.75 1,774.85
footnote to note 7(h))
1,301,758 1,774.85
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
7 (f) Loans (Non-Current)
Security deposits 26.09 36.99
26.09 36.99
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
7 (g) Loans (Current)
Security deposits 6.61 13.78
6.61 13.78

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

7 (h) Other financial asset (Non-Current)
Unsecured, considered good unless stated otherwise

Bank deposits with remaining maturity of more than twelve months # 0.86 103.47

Interest accrued on bank deposits 0.31 4.36
1.17 107.83

# Includes margin money deposits under lien (refer note 7 (d) ,note 7 (e) and note 7

(h) )~

- against letter of credit facility and bank guarantees 648.31 1,144.52

- against amount paid under protest (excluding interest accrued) (refer note 32(B)(b)(i)) 300.00 300.00

7 (i) Other financial assets (Current)

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

Unsecured, considered good unless stated otherwise

Interest accrued on bank deposits 149.23 128.28

Derivative asset 5.78 -

Others receivables

- Considered good* 825.18 842.94
980.19 971.22

* Includes other receivables from related parties amounting to Rs.222.37 million (31 March 2019 : Rs 190.34 million). Refer note 31 for details.
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Notes to standalone financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2020
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8 Inventories
(at lower of cost or net realisable value)

Raw materials and components |
Finished goods 1,2

Traded goods 2

Spares 2

1 including stock in transit
- Raw materials and components

- Finished goods

2 The above inventory is net of -

a) Write down of inventory from cost to net realisable value
Finished goods
Traded goods
Spares

b) Write down of inventory for obsolescence
Finished goods
Traded goods
Spares

9 (a) Other assets (Non-Current)

Unsecured, considered good, unless otherwise stated

Capital advances
Prepaid expenses

9 (b) Other assets (Current)
Unsecured, considered good, unless otherwise stated
Prepaid expenses
Balance with statutory/ government authorities (refer note 32 (B) & 35)
Advances to vendors
- Considered good
- Advances to related pariies, considered good (refer note 31)
- Considered doubt{ul

Less: Provision for doubtful advances

Others
Total(A+B+C+D)

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

649.37 909.80
24228 1,581.59
31.52 194.75
949.25 870.84
187242 3,556.98
99,58 292.60
- 90.10
3.62 86.46
479 8.91
108.93 .
3.09 1.54
4.69 9.94
108.97 207.80

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

57.42 61.07
0.02 10.08
S7.44 71.15

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

A) 17.36 49.42
(B) 1,261.32 1,553.05
1,221.22 912.75
299.29 384.76
65.48 70.03
1,585.99 1,367.54
(65.48) (70.03)
©) 1,520.51 1,297.51
®) 117.51 100.02
2,916.70 3,000.00

(This space has been intentionally lefi blank)
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Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
(Al amownts in Indian Rupees Million unless otherwise stated)

10 Share capital

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

Authorised share capital

147,900,000 (31 March 2019 : 147,900,000) equity shares of Rs 10 each 1.479.00 1.479.00
100,000 (31 March 2019 : 100,000) Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares (CCPS) of Rs 10/- each 1.00 1.00
500,000 (31 March 2019 :500,000) Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares (CCPS) of Rs 100 each 50.00 50.00

1,530,00 1,530.00

Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up share capital

124,866,902 (31 March 2019 - 124,866,902) equity shares of Rs.10 each 1,248.67 1,248.67
500,000 (31 March 2019 :500,000) Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares (CCPS) of Rs 100 each 50.00 50.00
Total issued, subscribed and fully paid-up share capital 1,298.67 1,298.67

(a) Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year.

Equity shares

Amount No of Shares
3T March 2020 31T March 2019 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
At the beginning of the year 1,248.67 1,248.67 124,866,902 124,866,902
Outstanding at the end of the year 1,248.67 1,248.67 124,866,902 124,866,902
Instruments entirely equity in nature -
Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares (CCPS)
Amount No of Shares
31 March 2020 31 March 2019 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
At the beginning of the year 50.00 50.00 500,000 500,000
Outstanding at the end of the year 50.00 50.00 500,000 500,000

(b) Terms/ rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share and dividends in
proportion to their sharcholding. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive residual assets of the Company after
distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

Terms/ rights attached to Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares (CCPS)

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Company has issued 500,000 Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares (CCPS) of Rs. 100 each. The preference shares shall
collectively be entitled to dividend of 0.0001% of the aggregate face value of the preference shares.

As per the terms of Subscription and Shareholders Agreement, the preference shares may be converted, at any time at the discretion of the CCPS holder, into fixed number
of equity shares (calculated at 3.33% of the share capital at funding date i.e. 8.32 number of equity shares per CCPS). If any of the preference shares have not been
converted into equity shares within 19 years and 11 months, such remaining preference shares shall be automatically and compulsorily converted into such number of
equity shares upon the expiry of such period.

(c) Aggregate number of bonus shares issued during the period of five years immediately preceding the reporting date:
No of Shares
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Equity shares allotted as fully paid bonus shares 122,785,785 122,785,785

(d ) Details of sharcholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company:*

Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid No of Shares Percentage sharcholding

31 March 2020 31 March 2019 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Hari Om Rai 45,083,890 45,083,976 36.11% 36.11%
Sunil Bhalla 28,390,372 28,390,372 22.74% 22.74%
Vishal Sehgal 22,104,352 22,104,352 17.70% 17.70%
Shailendra Nath Rai 11,746,028 11,746,028 9.41% 9.41%
Shibani Sehgal 7,260,720 7,260,720 5.81% 5.81%

*As per records of the Company, including its register of shareholders/ members and other declarations received from shareholders regarding beneficial interest, the above
shareholding represents legal ownerships of shares.

(e) The Company has not issued any shares pursuant to contract without payment being received in cash or bought back any shares during the period immediately
preceding five years from the reporting date.

(f) Shares reserved for issue under options :
For details of shares reserved for issue under the employee stock option (ESOP) plan of the Company (refer note 37).
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11

11 (a)

Financial liabilities

31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Long term borrowings

Indian rupee term Joan {rom banks (secured) (refer note 1) 33.58 152.89

160,000 (Previous years :100,000) Compulsory Converlible Preference Shares (CCPS) of Rs 10/- each (refer note 11) 520.00 520.00
553.58 672.89

Current maturities of long term borrowings (refer note 11(e)) 119.70 117.86

Note I:

(1) Indian rupee term loan from bank amounting to Rs 34.88 million (31 March 2019: Rs. 69.76 million) which carries interest @ 11.80% p.a. (3} March 2019:10.20% p.a.)and repayable
in thirty equal quarterly instalments with first payment copunencing from the 7th month of datc of disburscment. The loan is to be repaid by 27 March 2021, The loan is secured on first
puti-passu charge basis by way ot hypothecation of movable fixed assets (present and tuture) and further secured on second pari-passu charge basis by way of hypothecation of averall
current assets (both present and future) of the Company. Further, the laan has heen personally guaranteed by certain directors of the Company.

(1) Indian rupee term loan from bank amounting to Rs. 119.42 million (31 March 2019: 205.22 million )which carries interest @ 11.15% p.a (31 March 2019:11.35% p.a.). and repayable
in equal monthly instalments starting after 6 months from month of first disbursement. The loan is to be repaid by 6 August 2021, The loan is secured on first pari-passu charge basis by
way of hypothecation of machinery and equipment purchased from the term loan and further secured on second pari-passu charge basis by way of hypothecation of overall current assets
(current and fiture) of the Company. Further, the loan has been personally guaranteed by certain directors of the Company and their relatives.

Note II:

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Company has issued 100,000 Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares (CCPS) of Rs. 10 each for a consideration of Rs 520.00 million. The
CCPS shall carry a coupon of 0.0001% and shall be non-cumulative in nature, which is to be declared at the discretion of the shareholder of the Company.

The preference shares may be converted into the equity shares at any time at the discretion of the CCPS holder, subject to the terms of the agreement. If any of the preference shares have
not been converted to equity shares within 10 years from the allotment date, then such remaining preference shares shall be compulsorily converted into equity shares upon the expiry of
such period.

The number of shares to be allotted upon conversion of CCPS shall be based upon the conversion price arrived at on the conversion date, as per below condition defined in the
agreement.In the event company is not able to get listed on a recognised stock exchange within four years, the Company or Promoters shall buy-back or purchase all of the shares and
CCPS held by CCPS holder at a price not less than the Sale Price. Sale Price shall be the Subscription Price and a return of 9% p.a.(31 March 2019: 9% p.a.) compounded annually from
Closing date till the date of purchase of all subseription sharas or COPS In view of the same, the Compairy lias scurued interest @ 9% every yeur.

11 (b) Short-term borrowings

Cash credit from banks (secured)*

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

1,094.42

797.86

1,094.42

797.86

*Secured by way of hypothecation on first pari- passu charge basis, on overall current assets of the Company (current and future) and collateral securities/personal
guarantees of promoter directors and relative of promoter directors. The said loan is further secured:
(1) by way of a first charge of hypothecation on pari-passu basis, of existing and future movable fixed assets of the company excluding software and machineries/ assets
created by way of loans from other banks and financial institutions,
(2) by way of a second charge of hypothecation on pari-passu basis, of such existing and future movable fixed assets of the borrower such machineries/ other assets which
are created by way of loans from other banks and financial institutions.
The cash credit is repayable on demand and carries interest @ 10.40% p.a. to 12.90% p.a. (31 March 2019: 10.40% p.a. to 12.90% p.a).

11 (¢) Trade payables

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

Trade payables (refer note 33 for details of dues to micro and small enterprises) * 3,739.87 5,274.56
Payable to related parties (refer note 31) 72.46 23.27
3,812.33 5,297.83

*Trade payables are not interest bearing and are normally settled within 30 to 90 days.

11 (d) Other financial Habilities (Non-current)

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

Interest accrued on instruments entirely liability in nature 120.40 73.47
Lease Liability (refer note 38) 199.96 -
320.36 73.47

11 (e) Other financial labilities (current)

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

Current maturities of long term borrowings (refer note 11(a)) 119.70 117.86
Payable for capital purchases 0.83 150.11
Security deposits 282.52 132,74
Interest accrued on borrowings 6.99 1.83
Employee payables 96.58 184.80
Derivative liability - 7.57
Lease Liabilitv (refer note 38) 2411 -
530.73 594.91

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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12(a)

12 (b)

13 (a)

13 (b)

14

Provisions (Non-Current)
Provision for employee benefits
Provision for gratuity (refer note 29)

Other provisions
Provision for warranties*
Provision for decommissioning liabilities

Provisions (Current)

Provision for employee benefits
Provision for gratuity (refer note 29)
Provision for compensated absences

Other provisions
Provision for warranties*

*Provision for warrantics

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

42.96 43.96
- 21.05
3.02 4.30
45.98 69.31

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

1333 10.49
34.65 41,55
47.98 52.04
110.02 179.79
110.02 179.79
158.00 231.83

The Company provides warranty on it's products by giving an undertaking to repair/replace items to the customers, which fails to perform satistactorily during the warranty
period. Provision made represents the amount of the expected cost of meeting such obligations of repair/replacement. The timing of the outflows is expected to be in next

12 months (31 March 2019 : 24 months).

At the beginning of the year

Arising during the year

Less :Utilized /reversed during the year
At the end of the year

Provision for decommissioning liabilities

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

200.84 268.21
142.64 344.04
(233.46) (411.41)
110.02 200.84

Under few operating lease agreements entered by the Company, it has 10 incur restoration cost for restoring lease premiscs to the original condition at the time of expiry of
lease period. The timing of the outflows is expected to be in next 3 years. The impact of discounting is not considered material and hence ignored.

At the beginning of the year
Arising during the year
At the end of the year

Other non-current liabilities
Lease equalisation reserve (refer note 38)

Other current liabilities

Advance from customers (refer note 31)
Lease equalisation reserve (refer note 38)
Tax deductible at source

Other statutory liabilities

Liabilities for current tax (net)

Provision for income tax*

*Net of advance tax/TDS receivable amounting to Rs 2,748.08 million (31 March 2019: Rs 2,686.22 million)

(This space has been intentionally lefi blank)

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

430 430
(1.28) .
3.02 430

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

4.68

4.68

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

589.80 656.10
- 1.06
11.11 17.51
16.12 24.74
617.03 699.41

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

337.64

184.38

337.64

184.38
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wn

Revenue from operations

Sale of products

Sale of services

Other operating revenue
- Scrap sale

- Export incentives

Revenue from operations (net)

16 Finance income

Interest income on financial asset at amortised cost

Interest income on fixed deposits with banks

Net gain on sale of mutual fund investments

Fair value gain on derivative financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss
Dividend income on current investments

17 Other income

Gain/ (Loss) on Investment at fairvalue through profit or Joss
Foreign exchange differences (net)

Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment

Provision for doubtful advances written back

Miscellaneous income (refer note 31)*

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

17.899.17 28,913.04
1,319.36 1,698.66
5.70 11.25
52.87 40.52
19,277.10 30,663.47

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

6.44 3.42
115.67 15535
- 12.02
1335 -
- 5.00
135.46 175.79

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

. 3.35
16.68 -
- 0.38
4.55 -
13.81 47.19
35.04 50.92

* Includes other income from related parties amounting to Nil amount (31 March 2019 : Rs 25.58 million). Refer note 31 for details.

18 Cost of raw material and components consumed

Inventory materials at the beginning of the year
Purchase during the year

Less: Inventory materials at the end of the year
Cost of raw material and components consumed*

*(net of CVD accrued including recoverable charges for delayed payment) (refer note 35)

19 (Increase)/ decrease in inventories

Inventories at the end of the year
Traded goods

Spares for handsets

Finished goods

Work-in-progress

Inventories at the beginning of the year
Traded goods

Spares for handsets

Finished goods

Work-in-progress

(Increase) / decrease in inventories

20 Employee benefit expenses
Salary, wages and bonus (refer note 31)
Contribution to provident and other funds
Gratuity expense (refer note 29)
Share based payment expense (refer note 37)
Staff welfare, recruitment and training

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

909.80 730.30
11,045.84 20,673.95

(649.37) (909.80)
11,306.27 20,494.45

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

31.52 194.75
949.25 870.84
242.28 1,581.59

1,223.05 2,647.18
194.75 405.12
870.84 950.68

1,581.59 2,342.25

- 0.79
2,647.18 3,698.84
1,424.13 1,051.66

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

1,168.46 2,385.99
57.43 136.85
14.35 15.88

- 4.32
152.46 162.73
1,392.70 2,705.77
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21 Other expenses

Power and fuel

Rent

Rates and taxes

Insurance

Repair and maintenance - others

Advertisement and marketing expenses (refer note 31)
Sales promotion and scheme expenses
Freight and cartage

Outsourced salary cost

Travelling and conveyance
Communication costs

Warranty expenses

Legal and professional fees

Payment to auditor (refer details below)
Foreign exchange differences (net)

Donation

Corporate social responsibility expense (refer note 34)
Provision for doubtful debts

Provision for doubtful advances

Balances written off

Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment

Capital work-in-progress/Intangible assets under
development written off’

Loss on sale of mutual fund investments

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

Fair value loss on derivative financial instrument at fair value through profit or loss -

Loss on investment at fair value through profit or loss
Miscellaneous expenses

Payment to auditor
As auditor:

Audit fee

Tax audit fee

22 Depreciation and amortisation expense
Depreciation expense
- on Tangible asset
-on ROU Asset

Amortisation expense

23 Finance costs
Interest on
-Term loan
-Cash credit
-Security deposits
-Instruments entirely liability in nature
-Income tax
-on Lease Liability (refer note 38)
Bank charges

45.59 52.49
95.39 198.05
11.65 1.12
12.24 15.42
81.30 160.55
188.27 449.17
411.79 298.67
163.88 218.23
206.37 61.04
100.33 193.03
8.50 17.64
142.64 344.04
117.40 143.78
4.80 4.80
- 110.10
. 0.65

4.00 .
35.86 7.56
- 9.09
40.33 0.79

3.27 -
7.81

0.17 -
7.57

0.92 -
8.78 24.51
1,503.48 2,326.11

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

4.50 4.50
0.30 0.30
4.80 4.80

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

172.49 245.17
34.97 -
65.84 71.18

273.30 316.35

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

27.85 87.66
104.72 109.01
3.86 6.09
46.93 46.80
12.93 22.64
27.11 -
8548 107.45
308.88 379.65

(This space has been intentionally lefi blank)
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24 Income tax

(a) The major components of income tax expense for the years ended as follows are:

Current income tax:

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

Current income tax charge 17935 199.72

Adjustments in respect of income tax of previous year 22.85 (3.75)
Deferred tax :

Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences (31.23) (126.49)
Total tax expense on profif of the year (a) 170.97 69.48
Other comprehensive income

Deferred tax related to items recognised in other comprehensive income during in the year:

- Re-measurement losses of defined benefit plan 0.21 6.53

Total tax expense on other comprehensive income of the year (b) (0.21 6.53

Total tax expense on total comprehensive income of the year (a) + (b) 170.76 76.01

(b) Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India’s domestic tax rate

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

Particulars

Profit before tax 419.02 267.70
Applicable tax rate 34.94% 34.94%
Expected tax expense (A) 146.42 93.55
Expenses not considered in determining taxable profit - 10.39
Income not considered in determining taxable profit (11.10) (16.52)
Income exempt from tax - (1.75)
Impact of deduction u/s 80JJAA (11.44) (22.02)
Tax pertaining to earlier years 22.85 (3.75)
Others 24.25 9.58
Total adjustments (B) 24.55 (24.07)
Actual tax expense { C= A+B) 170.97 69.48
Tax expense recognised in statement of profit and loss 170.97 69.48

(c) Deferred tax

Deferred tax relates to the following:

Deferred tax assets on account of:

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

Property, plant and equipment (98.70) (72.81)
Employee benefits and other payable (31.77) (48.68)
Provision for doubtful debts & Advances 41.77) (30.83)
Provision for obsolescence inventories - (19.44)
Fair valuation of investment (0.32) -
Others (1.15) (3.46)
Deferred tax related to other comprehensive

income of the year:

Re-measurement losses of defined benefit plan 4.61 4.40
Change in fair value of FVTOCI equity instruments (231 (2.31)
Deferred tax liability on account of:

Tax on custom duty to be paid in future years (Refer Note 35) 259.70 291.17
Fair valuation of investment - 1.17
Others - 0.52
Net deferred tax liability including other comprehensive 88.29 119.73

income of the year
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I
n

Movement in deferred tax assets for the year ended 31 March 2020

Property, plant and equipment

Employee benefits and other payable

Provision for doubtful debts and advances

Provision for obsolescence inventories

Fair valuation of investment

Tax on custom duty to be paid in future years (Refer Note
39)

Others

Deferred tax related to other comprehensive income of
the year:

Re-measurement losses of defined henefit plan

Change in fair value of FVTOCI equity instruments
Total

Movement in deferred tax assets for the year ended 31 March 2019

Property, plant and equipment

Employee benefits and other payable

Provision for doubtful debts and advances
Provision for obsolescence inventories

Fair valuation of investment

Tax on custom duty (43b) to be paid in future years
Others

Deferred tax related to other comprehensive income of the year:
Re-measurement losses of defined benefit plan
Change in fair value of FVTOCI equity instruments
Total

Earnings per share (EPS)

As at
31 March 2019

Recognised in
other
comprehensive
income

Recognised in profit
and loss

As at
31 March 2020

(72.81) . (25.89) (98.70)
(48.68) . 16.91 (31.77)
(30.83) - (10.94) 41.77)
(19.44) - 19.44 -
1.17 - (1.49) (0.32)
291.17 (31.47) 259.70
(2.94) . 2.21 (0.73)
4.40 0.21) . 4.19
(2.31) - . (2.31)
119.73 (0.21) (31.23) 88.29

As at Recognised in  Recognised in profit As at
31 March 2018  other and loss 31 March 2019
comprehensive
income
(61.33) - (11.48) (72.81)
(76.23) - 27.55 (48.68)
(31.14) - 0.31 (30.83)
(19.44) - - (19.44)
(0.95) - 212 1.17
433.11 - (141.94) 291.17
0.11 - (3.05) (2.94)
(2.13) 6.53 - 4.40
(2.31) - - (2.31)
239.69 6.53 (126.49) 119.73

The following reflects the profit and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computation:

Nominal value of equity shares

Profit attributable to equity shareholders for computing basic and dilutive EPS (A)
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year for computing Basic EPS

Dilutive effect of share based payments on weighted average number of
equity shares outstanding during the year

Dilutive effect of compulsory convertible preference shares on wei ghted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the year #

Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year for
computing Diluted EPS (C) *

Basic earning per share (A/B)
Diluted earning per share (A/C)

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

10
248.05
124,866,902
1,328,287

4,158,068

130,353,257

1.99
1.90

10
198.22
124,866,902
1,328,287

4,158,068
130,353,257

1.59
1.52

# Compulsory convertible preference shares, which are entirely liability in nature, have not been considered in the calculation of diluted EPS.
(This space has been intentionally left blankj
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26 Fair value measurement

a) The carrying value of financial instruments by categories is as under;

Notes 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
FVTPL | FVIOCI | Amortised FVIPL, FVTOCI | Amortised
| Cost i Cost
Assets
Non-current assets
Financial assets
Investments 7 (a) - - - - - -
Loans 7(f} - - 26.09 - - 36.99
Other financial asset 7 (h) - - .17 - - 107.83
- - 27.26 - - 144.82
Current assets |
Financial assets \ !
Investments 7(b) 20.69 - - 94.50 - -
Trade receivables 7(c) - - 8,818.07 - - 6,726.49
Cash and cash equivalents 7 (d) - - 123.35 - - 722.07
Other bank balances 7(e) - - 1,301.75 - - 1,774.85
Loans 7(g) - - 6.61 - - 13.78
Derivative asset 7(@) 5.78 - - - - -
Others 7 (i),40 - - 974.41 - - 971.22
26.47 - 11.224.19 94.50 | - 10,208.41
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities ;
Financial liabilities | ;
Borrowings 11(a) - - 553.58 - - 672.89
Other financial liabilities 11(d) - - 320.36 7347
- - 873.94 - - 746.36
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities ]
Borrowings 11 (b) - - 1,094.42 - . 797.86
Trade payables 11 {c), 33 - - 3,812.33 - - 5,297.83
Derivative liabilities 11 (e) - - - 7.57 - -
Other financial liabilities 11 (e) - - 530.73 - - 587.34
- - i 5,437.48 7.57 - 6,683.03

The fair values of trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, other current financial asset, trade payables and other current financial liabilities are considered to be same as
their carrying values due to their short term nature.

The carrying amounts of other items carried at amortised cost are reasonable approximation of their fair values on respective reporting date.
For financial assets and liabilitics that are measured at fair value, the carrying amounts are equal to the fair values.

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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26 b) Fair value hierarchy and valuation techniques used to determine fair values:

To provide an indication about the reliability of inputs used in determining fair value, the Company has classified its financial instrument into three levels
preseribed under the accounting standard. The follewing table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Company’s assets and liabilities.

(i) Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy for assets and liabilities as :

Fair value measurement using
Quoted prices in Significant observable  Significant unobservable
At 31 March 2020 active markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

Total

Assets measured at FVTPL
Investment in mutual funds 20.69 - - 20.69

Assets measured at FVTOCI
Investment in equity instruments* - - N -

Assets measured at FVTPL
Derivative asset - 5.78 - 5.78

Fair value measurement using
Quoted pricesin  Significant observable Significant uncbservable
At 31 March 2019 active markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

Total

Assets measured at FVTPL
Investment in mutual funds 94.50 - - 94.50

Assets measured at FVTOCI
Investment in equity instruments* - - - -

Liability measured at FVTPL
Derivative liabilities - 7.57 - 7.57

* Investment in Abhriya Pte. Ltd. has been valued at zero value Le. at fair value and it has been shown in other reserve amounting to Rs 7.69 million in
Reserve and surplus.

- There were no transfers between the Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 during the years presented.
- There is no change in the valuation technique during the period.

Valuation techniques used to derive Level 1 fair values

The fair values of investments in mutual fund units is based on the net asset value (‘NAV") as stated by the issuers of these mutual fund units in the published
statements as at Balance Sheet date. NAV represents the price at which the issuer will issue further units of mutual fund and the price at which issuers will
redeem such units from the investors

Valuation techniques used fo derive Level 2 fair values

Derivative asset/liability representing forward foreign exchange contracts have been fair valued using dealer/counter party quotes at balance sheet date.

Valuation techniques used to derive Level 3 fair values
Inputs for the asscts or liabilities that are not based on observable market data. A one percent change in the unobservable mputs used in fair valuation of Level
3 assets doesn’t have a significant impact in its value.

(This space has been intentionally lefi blank)
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27 Capital management

The Company’s objectives while managing capital are to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern and 1o provide adequate returns for
its sharcholders and benefits for other stakeholders. The Company's policy is generally to optimise borrowings at an operating Company level
within an acceptable level of debt. The Company's policy is to borrow using a mixture of long-term and short-term debts together with cash
generated to meet anticipated funding requirements.

The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is calculated as underlying net debt divided by total capital plus underlying net debt.
The Company’s policy is to keep the gearing ratio below 40%. The Company measures its underlying net debt as total debt reduced by cash and
cash equivalents. The Company monitors compliance with its debt covenants. The Company has complied with all debt covenants at all reporting
dates.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019 .

Particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Borrowings 1,767.70 1,588.61
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (123.35) (722.07)
Net debt (a) 1,644.35 866.54

Equity 9.913.58 9,660.17
Total capital (b) 9,913.58 9,660.17
Capital and net debt (a) + (b) = (c) 11,557.93 10,526.71
Gearing ratio (%) (a) / (c) 14.23% 8.23%

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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28 TFinancial risk management objectives and policies

The Company’s principal financial liabilities, other than derivatives, comprise loans and overdrafts, and trade payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to raise finance for the Company’s
operations. The Company has various financial assets such as trade receivables, cash, and short-term deposits, which arise directly from its operations. The Company also holds mutual fund investments and
enters into derivative transactions.

The main risks arising from the Company’s financial instruments are price risk, interest rate risk, liquidity risk, foreign currency risk, and credit risk.

The Board of Directors review and agree policies for managing each of these risks which are summarised below.

Price risk
The Company is mainly exposed to the price risk due to its investment in equity instruments and mutual funds. The price risk arises due to uncertainties about the future market values of these investments. In
order to manage its price risk arising from investments in mutual funds, the Company diversifies its portfolio in accordance with the limits set by the risk management policies. The Company does not have

sienificant investment in equity instruments.

Set out below is the impact of a 1 % movement in the NAV of mutual funds on the Company’s profit before tax:

Particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Effect on profit before tax:

NAV increase by 100 bps 0.21 0.935
NAV decrease by 100 bps (0.21) {0.95)

Interest rate risk

The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s borrowings with floating interest rates. The Company’s policy is to manage its interest cost using a
mix of fixed, floating rate borrowings

Particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Fixed rate borrowings 520.00 520.00
Floating rate borrowings 1,247.70 1,068.61
Total 1,767.70 1,588.61

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates, being a 0.5% increase or decrease in interest rate, with all other variables held constant, of the Company’s
profit before tax due to the impact on floating rate borrowings,

Particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Effect on profit before tax:

PLR*- decrease by 50 bps 623 5.33
PLR*- increase by 50 bps (6.23) (5.33)

*Prime Lending Rate ("PLRs’) set by individual Indian banks in respect of their loans.
Credit risk

The Company is also exposed 1o credit risk from trade receivables, term deposits, liquid investments and other financial instruments,

(1) Customer credit risk is managed by the Company’s established policy, procedures and control relating to customer credit risk management. All customers are subject to credit verification procedures. In addition,
receivable balances are monitored on an on-going basis. The Company is exposed to credit risk in the event of non-payment by customers. An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date by grouping the
receivables in homogeneous group. Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on original credit terms of 30 to 180 days depending upon category and nature of customers. Considering the request of
certain distributors for becoming more competitive under the cusrent market scenario and to enhance the overall market share, the management has decided to extend the credit terms on case-to-case basis to its
distributors which shall be helpful to penetrate the potential opportunities of enhancing the overall market share. For this purpose, the management has done credit evaluation on the distributors based on their business
refationships with the Company and the market credibility as well as established a mechanism of monitoring the availability and marketability of inventory levels lying with the retailer network.

Trade receivables (refer note 7(c)) include amounts (see below for aged analysis) of Rs.5,566.26 miltion with the extended credit period at the reporting date. To ensure the recovery in such cases, the Company keeps
monitoring the stocks levels lying with the distributors and in the market with the retail network through its field sales forces. The Company territory managers are ensuring that the stocks available in the retail market are
in marketable position and are also monitoring the movement of products, which helps the Company to keep the overall control that the recoveries are certain and not dependent only upon the financial strength of any
distributor. In the post COVID scenario, the Company expects to benefit from the Atmanirbhar Bharat (self-reliant India) initiatives of the government of India, the increased thrust on manufacturing in India resulting in
enhanced competitiveness of its products which in turn shall be helpful to the Company’s distributors to reduce the inventory Jevels and achieve higher sales. Considering the above, the Company is confident of the
recoveries of its dues with extended credit period and the management is of the view that these amounts are completely recoverable within the extended credit period. Based on their credit evaluation, management
considers these trade receivables as high quality and accordingly, no fife time expected credit losses are recognized on such receivables. The Company considers that trade receivables are not credit impaired as these are
receivable from credit worthy counterparties. For terms and conditions relating 1o related party receivables, refer note 31.

(ii") The credit risk for cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, term deposits, etc. is considered negligible, since the counterparties are reputable banks with high quality external credit ratings.

Ageing based on original credit terms but not impaired receivables is as follows:

Particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
0-180 days 3,305.87 6,573.54
180-365 days 2,677.60 104.80
1 year plus 2,888.66 66.35
Total 8,872.13 6,744.69

The Company has provisions of Rs. 54.06 million (31 March 2019 : Rs. 18.20 million) for doubtful debts. None of those trade debtors past due or impaired have had their terms renegotiated. The maximum
exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the fair value of each class of debtors presented in the financial statements. The Company does not hold any collateral or other ciedit enhancements over balances
with third parties nor does it have a legal right of offset against any amounts owed by the Company to the counterparty.

The Company evaluates the concentration of risk with respect to trade receivables as low, as its customers are located in several jurisdictions and operate in largely independent markets.

Liquidity risk

The Company monitor their risk of shortage of funds using cash flow forecasting models. These models consider the maturity of their financial investments, committed funding and projected cash flows from
operations.

The Company’s objective is to provide financial resources to meet its business abjectives in a timely, cost effective and reliable manner. A balance between continuity of funding and flexibility is maintained
through the use of bank borrowings. The Company also monitors compliance with its debt covenants. The maturity profile of the Company’s financial iabilities based on contractuat undiscounted payments is
given in the table below:

<Iyr 1-5 yrs >8 vrs Total
As at 31 March 2020
Borrowings (including interest accrued) 1,221 33.58 - 1,254.69
Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares (CCPS) (including interest accrued) - - 640,40 640,40
Trade payables 3,812.33 - - 381233
Other financial ability 404.04 141.93 58.03 604,00
Total 5,437.48 175,51 698.43 6,311.42
As at 31 March 2019
Borrowings (including interest accrued 917.55 152.89 - 1,070.44
Compulsory Convertible Preference 8 - - 593.47 593.47
Trade payables 5,297.83 - - 5,297.83
Derivative liability 7.57 - - 7.87
Other financial liability 467.65 - - 467.65

Total

6,690.60 152.89 593,47 7,436.96
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Foreign currency risk

The Company has significant purchases from outside India. The Company has transactional currency exposures arising
than the unit’s functional currency. Accordingly, the Company’s financial state of affairs can be affected significantly by movements in the US dollar exchange rates. The Company

enters into derivative transactions, primarily in the nature of futures currency contracts/forward contracts on import payables. The purpose is to m

Company’s operations.

The carrying amounts of the Company’s financial assets and liabilities denominated in different currencies are as follows:

from sales or purchases by an operating unit in cwrencies other

anage currency risks arising from the

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

As at Financial assets Financial liabilities Financial assets Financial liabilities
INR INR INR INR

Indian Rupees (INR) ° 6,076.57 4,195.98 6,957.23 4,026.67

United States Dollar (USD) 520135 2.115.43 3.490.50 3.316.26

Tapanese Yen (JPY) - - - 94.03

Total 11,277.92 6,311.42 16,447.73 7,436.96

The Company’s exposure to foreign cwirency arises in part w
that entity with USD being the major non-functional currency

on profit before tax arising as a result of the revaluation of the Company’s foreign currency financial assets and unhedged labilities

here a Company holds financial assets and Labilities denominated in a currency different from the functional currency of
of the Company’s main operating subsidiaries. Set out below is the impact of a 10% movement in the US dollar and Euro

As at

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

Effect of 10% strengthening of INR against following on profit before tax:

USb

Effect of 10% weakening of INR against following on profit before tax:

Usb

(308.59)

308.59

(17.42)

17.42

The Company enters into forward/future contracts to mitigate the risk arising from fluctuations in foreign exchange rates to cover foreign currency payments.

The Company has taken forwards/future contract of the following amount to hedge against currency

risk against movement in INR/US dollar. The contract as on year end are as follows

As at

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

Amount in INR

348.14

367.50

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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29 Post-employment benefits plan

Gratuity

The Company has unfunded defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employce who has completed five years or more of service gets a gratuity on departure at 15 days salary (last drawn salary)

for each completed year of service or part thereof in excess of 6 months.

The following table summarizes the components of net benefit expense recognized in the statement of profit and loss for grawity plan and amounts recognized in the balance sheet in respect

of same.
Statement of profit and loss

Net employee benefit expense recognized in the employee cost

Current service cost

Interest cost on benefit obligation

Net benefit expense

Balance sheet

Benefit asset/liability

Present value of defined benefit obligation

Net asset/(liability) recognised in balance sheet

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:

Opening defined benefit obligation

Current service cost
Interest cost
Total amount recognised in profit & loss

Re~-measurement (gains)/losses of defined benefit plan :

- Due to changes in financial assumptions

- Due to experience adjustment

Total amount recognised in other comprehensive income
Benefits paid

Closing defined benefit obligation

The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity benefits are as below:

Discount rate
Employee turnover*
Salary Escalation Rate

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

10.49 12.23
3.86 3.65
14.35 15,88

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

(56.29)

(54.45)

(56.29)

(54.45)

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

54.45 103.98
10.49 12.23
3.86 3.65
14.35 15.38
1.97 (0.02)
(1.38) (18.66)
0.59 (18.68)
(13.10) (46.73)
56.29 54.45

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

6.00%
30.00%
7.00%

7.20%
30.00%
7.00%

*In the retail executives category, the employee turnover ratio is above 100% based on which none of such category of employees will remain with the Company for 5 years from the date of

joining. Hence, the average tumover ratio of other category of employees has been considered for the calculation of the gratuity liability for these category of employees.

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the

employment market.

The average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation at the end of the reporting period is 4.86 years (31 March 2019: 6.80 years)

Amounts for the current and previous four years are as follows:

Particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2015 31 March 2018 31 March 2017 31 March 2016
Gratuity

Defined benefit obligation 56.29 34,45 90.02 53.50
Experience adjustments on liabilities gain / (Ioss) 1.38 18.66 (4.83) (5.24)
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Sensitivity Analysis:
A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption is as shown below:

Projected benefit obligation on current assumptions

Delta efleet of +1 % change in discount rate

Delta effect of -1 % change in discount rate

Delta effect of +1 % change in salary escalation rate
Delta effect of -1 % Change in salary cacalation ratc
Delta eftect of +10 % change in rate of employee turnover
Delta effect of <10 % change in rate of employee turnover

Segment information

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

56.29

(1.65)
1.76
189

(1&1)

(1.16)
125

54,45

(1.72})
L83
1.98

(1.89)

(1.71)

1.80

Ind AS 108 establishes standards for the way the companies report information about operating segments and related disclosures about products and services, geographic areas, and major
customers. The Company’s operations relate to sales of mobile handsets in India through the distributor and retailers network. The Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) cvaluates the

Company’s performance and allocates resources based on analysis of various performance indicators pertaining to business as a single segment. Accordingly,

disclosures, only geographical information has been presented.

Business segment of the Company is primarily sale of mobile handsets. The Company has started manufacturing of handsets recently and does not identify sales of traded h

manufactured handsets differently given the risks and rewards are the sane.

Geographical information on revenues are collated based on individual customers invoiced or in relation to which rev

Geographical information:
The following tables present geographical information regarding the Company’s revenue:

enue is otherwise recognized.

for the purpose of entity wide

andsets and sale of

31 March 2020

31 Muarch 2019

Particulare

India 16,346.73 27,885.54
Qutside India 296541 2.828.85
Total 19,312.14 30,714.39

No customer individually accounted for more than 10% of the revenues in the year ended 31 March 2020 and year ended 31 March 2019,

The Company does not have any non-current assets, as defined in Ind AS 108, which is located outside India.
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31 Related party disclosures

(i) List of parties as per the requirement of Ind AS 24 © Related Party Disclosures” :

Sr.No. Related Party Country of Incorporation Nature of Relationship
N 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
1 LAVA International (H.K.) Limited Hong Kong Wholly owned subsidiary Wholly owned subsidiary
2 Xolo International (}.K) Limited Hong Kong Wholly owned subsidiary Wholly owned subsidiary
3 Lava Enterprises Limited India Subsidiary Subsidiary
(99.05 % shares held by Lava (99.05 % shares held by Lava
International Limited) International Limited)
4 Soje Distribution Private Limited Subsidiary Subsidiary
india (90.00% shares held by Lava (90.00% shares held by Lava
International Limited) International Limited)
5 Sojo Manufacturing Services (A.P.) Private Limited Subsidiary Subsidiary
India (99.97% shares held by Lava (99.97% shares held by Lava
International Limited) International Limited)
[ Sojo Manufacturing Services Private Limited Subsidiary Subsidiary
India (99.95% shares held by Lava (99.95% shares held by Lava
International Limited) International Limited)
7 Sojo Infotel Private Limited Subsidiary Subsidiary
India (90.00% shares held by Lava (90.00% shares held by Lava
International Limited) International Limited)
8 Lava Technologies DMCC UAE Wholly owned subsidiary Wholly owned subsidiary
9 Inone Technology (Shenzhen) Limited (Formerly known as "Xolo Subsidiary *
Technology (Shenzhen) Limited") China - (wholly owned by LAVA International
(H.K.) Limited)
10 Pt. Lava Mobile Indonesia Subsidiary Subsidiary
Indonesia (95.00% shares held by LAVA (95.00% shares held by LAVA
International (H.K.) Limited) Internationa) (H.K.) Limited)
11 Lava International DMCC, UAE Subsidiary Subsidiary
UAE (wholly owned by LAVA International | (wholly owned by LAVA International
(H.K.) Limited) (H.K.) Limited)
12 Lava Mobility (Private) Limited, Sri Lanka Subsidiary Subsidiary
Sri Lanka (wholly owned by LAVA International {(wholly owned by LAVA International
(H.K.) Limited) (H.K.) Limited)
13 Lava Mobile Mexico S.DER.L. DE C.V. Subsidiary Subsidiary
Mexico (99.00% shares held by LAVA (99.00% shares held by LAVA
International (H.K.) Limited)) International (H.K)) Limited))
14 Lava International (Myanmar) Co. Limited Subsidiary Subsidiary
Myanmar (99.00% shares held by LAVA (99.00% shares held by LAVA
International {(H.K.) Limited)) International (H.K.)} Limited))
i35 Lava International (Thailand) Co Limited Subsidiary Subsidiary
Thailand (97.00% shares held by LAVA (97.00% shares held by LAVA
International (H.K.) Limited) International (H.K.) Limited)
16 Lava international (Nepal) Private Limited Subsidiary Subsidiary
Nepal (wholly owned by LAVA International | (wholly owned by LAVA International
(H.K.) Limited) (H.K.) Limited)
17 Lava Interational (Bangladesh) Limited Subsidiary Subsidiary
Bangladesh (99.99% shares held by LAVA (99.99% shares held by LAVA
International (H.K.) Limited) International (H.K.) Limited)
19 PT LCG Telecommunication and Technology Subsidiary*
. (80.00% shares held by Xolo
Indonesia ) Technologies (Shenzhen) Limited)
20 Yamuna Electronics Manufacturing Cluster ) Joint venture Joint venture
Private Limited (YEMCPL) India (Indirect) (Indirect)
21 Lava Technologies L.L.C. USA Wholly owned subsidiary Wholly owned subsidiary
*

On 21st June 2018 the Registered share capital of Xolo Technology

(Shenzhen) Limited was increased to RMB 50 million of which 90% were allotted to Shenzhen Kaihuiaiyu Investment

partnership (Limited parmership). Consequently the shareholding of Lava Intemational (HK) Limited in Xolo Technology (Shenzhen) Limited has reduced to 10%. Therefore Xolo

Technology (Shenzhen) Limited is not related party of the Lava International Limited as per Ind As 24 as on 31 March,?

(Subsidiary of Xolo Technology (Shenzhen) Limited) is not reported as related party of Lava International Limited.

019. Consequently PT LCG Telecommunication and Technology




Lava luternational Limited
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ending 3t March 2020

(AW amounis i Indian Rupees Million wiless otherwise stated)

(i) Others (with whom transactions have taken place during the year

Nature of Relationship

Sr.Na. Related Party Country of Incorporation
’ : ! 31 March 2020 31 March 2019

i MagicTel Sotutions Private Limited India Associate Associate

2 Ottomate International Private Limited India Enterprises owned or significantly Enterprises owned or significantly
mfluenced by key management influenced by key management
personnel or their relatives personnel or their relatives

3 Am Express Worldwide Logistics (Parinership Firm) India Enterprises ovned or significantly Enterprises owned or significantly
influenced by key nanagement influenced by key management
personnel or their relatives personnel or their relatives -

4 Lava Employee Welfare Trust India Controtled trust Controlled trust

(iii} Key Management Personnel :

Mr. Hari Om Rai - Managing director
Mr. Shailendra Nath Rai - Whole time director

Mr. Vishal Sebaal - Non Executive director w.e.f, 24 March 2019 (Whole time director ull 23 March 2019)

Mr. Sunil Bhalla - Non Executive director
Mr. Vinod Rai -Independent director

Mrs. Chitra Gouri Lal - Independent director
Mr. Rahul Kansal - Independent director

Mr. Vineet Jain - Independent director (from 16 September 2016 to 19 June 2019)

Mr. Ritesh Suneja — Chief Financial Officer (up to 19 August 2018}

Mr. Rati Ram - Chief Financial Officer (from | November 2018 1o 1 August 2019)

Mr. Asitava Bose - Chief Financial Officer (w.e.f. 9 August 2019)

Mr. Saurabh Misra - Company Secretary (from 20 August 2018 upto 2 November 2018)

Mr. Bharat Mishra - Company Secretary (w.e.f. 19 March 2019)

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ending 31 March 2020

(All amounis in Indian Rupees Million unless otherwise stared)

Particulars

Subsidiaries

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

A. Transactions

Purchase of goods

LAVA International (HK) Limited

XOLO International (H.K.) Limited
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
LAVA International (HK) Limited
Investment made In subsidiaries

Sajo Manufacturing Services Pvt Limited
Lava Technologies L.L.C.

Lava Technologies DMCC

Expenses incurred on behalf of related parties
Lava Technologies DMCC

Sojo Manufacturing Services (AP) Private Ltd
Sojo Manufacturing Services Private Limited
Sojo Distribution Private Limited

Sojo Infotel Pvt Limited

LAVA International (HK) Limited

Margin charged on Expenses incurred on behalf of related parties
LAVA International (HK) Limited

Lava Technologies DMCC

Commission Charged on Bank guarantee
LAVA International (HK) Limited

Advances given

XOLO International (H.K.) Limited

Export Sales

LAVA International (H.K.) Limited

Lava Technologies DMCC

XOLO International (H.K.) Limited

B. Amount due to / from related parties
Trade Payable

Lava International (H.K.) Limited

Advance from Customer

Lava Technologies DMCC

Other receivables

Lava International (H.K.) Limited

Sojo Distribution Private Limited

Sojo Infotel Pvt Limited

Sojo Manufacturing Services (AP) Private Ltd
Sojo Manufacturing Services Private 1td
Lava Enterprise Limited

Lava Technologies DMCC

Trade receivable

Lava International (H.K.) Limited

Lava Technologies DMCC

XOLO International (Hk) Ltd.

Advance given

XOLO International (H.K.) Limited

s
L oy
SN

[T R—

20.83
0.04
0.05
0.04
0.04

2.63
91.71
0.13

116.37
0.04
0.04
0.14

10.37
0.04
27.40

23.26
22.31
438.41

299.25

11.25
28.79
338.50

6.08

18.48
513
366.65

107.04

0.01
10.33

5.99
18.76

490.66

384.76

Particulars

Joint Venture

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

A. Transactions

Advances given

Yamuna Electronics Manufacturing Cluster Private Limited (YEMCPL)
B. Amount due from related parties

Advance given

Yamuna Electronics Manufacturing Cluster Private Limited (YEMCPL)

0.04




Lava International Limited
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ending 31 March 2020
(All amounts in Indian Rupees Million unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

Associate

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

A. Traunsactions

Sale of services

MagicTel Solutions Private Limited
B. Amount due from related parties
Trade receivable

MagicTel Solutions Private Limited
Advance from Customer

MagicTel Solutions Private Limited

0.07

22.66

Particulars

Parties in which Key Management Personnel of the Company

are interested

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

A. Amount due to / from related parties
Trade receivable

Ottomate International Private Limited - 0.16
Trade Payable
Am Express Worldwide Logistics 0.15 0.27
Controlled Trust
Particulars
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
A. Transactions
Advances given
Lava Employee Welfare Trust 1.00 32.22
B. Amount due from related parties
Lava Employee Welfare Trust 67.97 66.97
Remuneration of Key Management Personnel
Particulars
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Short-term employee benefits 9.61 25.52
Post-employment benefits 1.84 1.42

All transactions with related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in anm’s length transactions. Outstanding balances at the year-end
are unsecured and their settlement occurs in cash. For the year ended 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019, the Company has not recorded any impairment

of receivables relating to amounts owed by related parties.

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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32 Commitments and contingencies

(A) Capital and other commitments

Particulars

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

(a) Estimated amount of contracts to be executed on capital account

[net of capital advances amounting to Nil million (31 March 2019: Nil million} and not provided for] (refer note 9(a))

(B) Contingent liabilities

1.01

Particulars

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

Bank guarantees 198.23 233.54

Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts

(excluding cases where the possibility of any outflow in

settlement is remote):

: . 38.55 229.17

(1) Sales tax demands [refer note (a)] (amount paid under 438.55

protest Rs. 86.80 million (31 March 2019: Rs.72.78 million)

(i) Others [refer note (b)] (amount paid under protest Rs. R 143.27

Nil (31 March 2019: Rs.143.27 million) '
636.78 605.98

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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(Al amounts in Indian Rupees Million unless otherwise stalted)

(a) Sales tax demands

(1) The Hon’ble Supreme Court of India vide its order dated 17 December 2014 in the case of State of Punjab Vs. Nokia India Pvt. Limited, has held that the mobile charger
comtained in the mobile phone retail pack is an independent part and shall be separately charged to VAT at rate as applicable to the chargers. The appellant has already approached
the Hon'ble Supreme Court in a review petition challenging the judgement. In view of this judgement, the VAT Authorities of various states have raised demands along with mterest
and penalties aggregating to Rs. 102.63 mitlion (31 March 2019: Rs. 169.56 million). The Company has filed appeal against these demands. Amount paid uader protest against
demands amounting to Rs. 42,02 million (3] March 2019: Rs. 39.51 million) have been disclosed undet balance with statutory/government authorities in other assets.

Based on the legal assessment, management believes that the possibility of materialising sales tax demands is low. Accordingly, no provision is made in the financial statements for
such demands

(i) Sales tax demands received of Rs 34.31 million (31 March 2019 : Rs. 36.85 million) (amount paid under protest of Rs 7.39 million (31 March 2019 - Rs. 849 million)) from
various sales tax authorities for which the management believes that the possibility of materializing the demand is remote.

(iii) Sales tax demands received of Rs 301.60 million (31 March 2019 : Rs, 22.77 million) (amount paid under protest of Rs 37.39 million (31 March 2019 : Rs. 4.78 million) )
classifying mobile phone under residuary entry under schedule- V, whereas as per lawyer's opinion product is well covered in specific entry 39 under schedule -1V for which
management also believes that the possibility of materializing the sales tax demand is low. Accordingly, no provision is made in the financial statements for such demands.

(b) Others

(i) M/s Telefonaktiebolaget LM Ericsson (*Ericsson’) filed a suit for infringement of patents against the Company in the month of March 2015. The said Suit was part of the series of
suits being filed by Ericsson against many nmobile handset manufacturers in India. During 20135, the Company has filed a counter civil suit against Telefonaktiebolaget 1.M Ericsson
(*Eriesson’) before the Hon’ble District Court, Gautam Budh Nagar due to certain breaches.

Subsequent to Lava’s institution of the suit in the District Court of Gautam Buddha Nagar, Ericsson has filed a suit for permanent injunction against the Company before Hon’blc
High Court, Delhi, on 23 March 2015 for infringement of Ericsson’s certain patents,

Hon’ble District Court, Gautam Budh Nagar has issued notice to Fricsson Before Ericsson filed its written statement, on application of the partics, Ilon’ble Suprenie Court vrdered
for transfer of the matter to Delhi High Court vide its order dated 31 July 2015 and the same is clubled with (he pending suit of Ericsson before the Dethi High Court.

Hon’ble High Court, Delhi vide its order dated 22 June 2016 has passed an inferim order wherein the Company was injuncted from manufacturing, importing, sellaig its devices,
subject to the condition of deposit of Rs. 300,00 million with the Registrar General of Delhi High Court. However, the operation of Interim Order was stayed till the final disposal of
the main suit. The Company has complied with the said order and deposited a sum of Rs. 300.00 million. Presently the aforesaid appeal is pending adjudication before the Delhi High
Court and the suit was posted for final arguments in January 2020 which has been adjourned for a future date. Based on legal advice the Company does not expect any financial
statement exposure upon final settlement and accordingly no provision has been made in the financial statement of the Compary.

Apart from above, there is no claim/case being contested with any other standard essential patent providers and the Company is confident that there is no infringement of patents.

(if) In certain States, an entry tax is levied on receipt of material from outside the State. This position has been challenged by the Company in the respective States, on the grounds
that the specific entry tax is ultra vires the Constitution, The Company has been paying entry tax and recording the amount of Rs. Nil (31 March 2019: Rs 143.27 million) as
recoverable. The amount has been disclosed under “Balance with statutory/government authorities”. The Company based on legal opinion was of the view that the entry tax paid was
not constitutional and the Company expected the refund ultimately. However based on the recent development vis-a-vis the judgment passed by the Hon’ble Allahabad High Court
which has been affimed by the Hon'ble Supreme Court that such entry tax paid is not refundable. Accordingly the management doesn't expect the recavery of such entry tax and
mtends to withdraw the existing petition, hence the same has been charged to profit & loss statement,

(i1i) On 01.07.2017, Research and Collaboration Agreement (‘RCA’) was executed between the Company, Mintellectuals LLP and Nokia Technologies as a confirming party. Under
the RCA, the parties were to explore and work towards the possibility of technical and research collaborations between Mintellectuals/Nokia and the Company.

The Company made payments to Mintellectuals LLP under the RCA, with a view to receive the Research and Collaboration deliverables envisaged under the Agreement. The Parties
also agreed not to challenge/assert any legal rights in relation to Technically Necessary Patents during the term of this agreement. The payments in question were being made by the
Company in lieu of the executory consideration/promisc/obligation of Mintellectuals/Nokia to enable and assist research and collaboration in terms of the RCA.

However, it is a matter of fact that nothing under the RCA was ever delivered by Mintellectuals/Nokia Technologies to the Company. As a result, the Company declared the RCA as
frustrated and repudiated. As a result of the dispute between Mintellectuals and the Company, arbitration proceedings are going on wherein the Company has denied liability to pay
any amount to Mintellectuals and also sought refund of the entire amounts already paid on the ground that the Agreement stood frustrated/repudiated.  Mintellectuals has
categorically denied any research and collaboration benefit to the Company under the RCA and has in fact taken a stand there is no research and collaboration deliverable under the
scope of the agreement.

Management has also taken legal opinion from the lawyers and accordingly entire amount paid by company under this agreement is fully recoverable on good legal grounds.

(iv) On 29.11.2017, Share Subscription & Shareholder Agreement (‘SSSHA’) was executed between the Contpany, Sponsors of the Company and UNIC Memory Technology (HK)
Ltd. ("UNIC’). Pursuant to the SSSHA, UNIC has invested USD 30 millions in consideration of Compulsory Convertible Cumulative Preference shares along with J Equity Share
representing 3.33% of the Equity rights of the company after conversion into Equity Shares.

The SSSHA contained certain exit rights for UNIC 10 exit from the companies in certain scenarios. Based on that, UNIC has requested the Company/Sponsors of the Company, inter
alia, to facilitate the exit transaction with respect to UNIC’s position by either purchasing UNIC’s shares or procuring a sale of the same by a third party.

The company/sponsors are in process to facilitate their request however there are certain disagreements about timing hence the parties are going through an arbitration procedure.
Management has taken legal opinion from the lawyers and as per opinion company has a strong case before the Arbitral Tribunal on the grounds presented by the company.

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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33 Details of dues to micro and smali enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006

34

36

S. No. {Particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
1 The principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of cach accounting year 11.07 2049
2 [Theinterest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of each accounting year Nil Nil

The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 atong with the amounts of the payment made to the

3 supplier beyond the appointed day during cach accounting year. Nil il

4 The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid but Nil Nil
beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under this Act

5 |{The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year; and Nil Nil

6 The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, uniil such date when the Nil Nil

interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise.

Pursuant to the requirement of section 135 of Companies Act, 2013 and rules thereon, the Company is required to spend Rs.21.56 million (31 March 2019: Rs.37.49
million) on corporate social responsibility. During the year the Company has spent Rs. 4.00 million (31 March 2019: Nil amount), on various CSR activities for
purpose other than construction or acquisition of any asset.

Import of mobile phones only attracts Special Duty of Customs in lieu of Excise (CVD) which is equivalent to excise duty applicable on like goods as if manufactured
or produced in India. Accordingly, mobile phones manufactured in India are subject to excise duty at the rate of 13.5% (including NCCD of 1%) if Cenvat Credit on
inputs and capital goods is availed (rate of duty was 7.21% (including NCCD of 1%) till 28 February 2015) and 2% (including NCCD of 1%) if such Cenvat Credit on
inputs and capital goods is not availed.

This has been further clarified by the Hon’ble Supreme Court of India in the matter of M/S SRF Limited in Civil Appeal No. 9440 of 2003 by ruling that the benefit of
exemption / concessional rate of excise duty, which is subject to a condition that no Cenvat credit on inputs or capital goods used in the manufacture of such goods
shall be taken, is also available to the importers of like goods for payment of CVD under Customs.

During the financial years 2014 -2015 and 2015 - 2016, the Company was clearing the imported mobile phones by paying CVD of customs at higher rate of 7.21%
before 1 March 2015 and 13.50% from 1 March 2015 instead of 2% during respective periods. The Company got re-assessed bills of entries amounting to Rs 638.47
mitlion during the financial year 2017-18 Post clarification issued by the Hon’ble Supreme Court in M/s SRF case discussed above, and after re-assessment of bills of
entries, the above said CVD amount became fully recoverable. Accordingly, the Company has claimed refund as per the Customs Act 1962.

As at 31st March 2020, total amount recoverable antounting to Rs. 737.18 million (31 March 2019: Rs, 827.30 million) (including recoverable charges for delayed

payment amounting to Rs. 331.98 million (31 March 2019; Rs. 422.10 million)) was recorded, has been disclosed under “Balance with statutory/govemment
authorities" based on legal opinion obtained.

Research and development expenditure

The Company has duly carried out its research and development activities during the year and the details of related expenditure are given below:

Particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Amount charged to Statement of Profit and Loss 84.84 100.10

Amount capitalised
- Property, plant and equipment 4.52 17.25

89.36 117.35
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37 Employee stock option plans:

The plans existing during the year are as follows -

Number of options approved

10,343,100

Method of settlement (Cash / Equity) Equity

Vesting conditions

Conmpany

The emplovee should
be on roll of the

The details of activity under ESOP Schemes have been summarized below:

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

Number of options deht?d ave.ragc Number of options \Vei_ght?fl a\'ﬁl‘agc
£xercise price EXCICIse price
Quistanding at the beginning of year 5,036,840 41.62 5,046,840 41.62
Options granted during the vear - - - -
Exercised / Settled during the year - - 10,000 43.81
Qutstanding at the end of the year 5,036,840 42.76 5,036,840 41.62
Exercisable as at end of the year 5.036,840 42.76 5,036,840 41.62

The details of the ESOP outstanding are as foliows:

Options Qutstanding as at 31 March 2020

Onptions Qutstanding as at 31 March 2019

Range of exercise

No. of shares arising

Weighted Average
out of options remaining contractual

Weighted Average
Exercise price

No. of shares arising ~ Weighted Average Weighted
out of options remaining Average

_brice per share life contractyal life  Exercise price
Rs1-Rs12.5 - - - - - -
Rs12.5-Rs25 - - - 267,240 585 18.58
Rs25-Rs375 409,800 6.18 30.86 679,800 7.27 30.86
Rs37.5-Rs 50 4,627,040 2.08 43.81 3,609,800 0.1 43.81
Rs 50 -Rs 62.5 - - - 480,000 0.78 53.20

The share based payment expense incurred during the year is shown in the following table:

Expense arising from equity-setiled share-based paynment transactions

(Income) / Expense arising from settlement of options

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

4.45
(0.13)

4.32

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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38 Leases

The Company adopted Ind AS 116 using the Modified retrospective method of adoption, with the date of initial application on Ist April 201
use assets (an amount equal to lease Liability, adjusted by the prepaid lease rent) of Rs
operating lease expenses has changed from rent to depreciation cost for the right of us,

Impact of implementation of new standards/amendments

Lease equalisation reserve of Rs. 574 million has been reversed in current year. To
Reconciliation for the effect on balance sheet and statement of profit and loss for ti

Impact on balance sheet (increase / (decrease)):

1e year ended 31st March, 2020 as follows:

¢ assets and finance cost for interest accrued on lease liability.

9. This has resulted in recognizing a right of
243.15 million as at 1st April 2019, In the statement of profit and loss for the current perioad,

his exient, performance for the year ended 31st March, 2020 is not comparable with previous vear.

Notes 31 March 2020 31 March 2019 1 April 2018

Assets

Right-of-use assets 5 208.18 - -
Total assets 208.18 - -
Liabilities

Leasc liabilities 11 (d),11 (e) 224.07 - -
Liabilities for current tax (net) (5.55) - -
Deferred tax liabilities - - -
Total liabilities 218.52 ~ -

Impact on statement of profit and loss {increase/ (decrease)):-

Adjustment to increase / (decrease) in net profit Year ended Year ended 31.03.2020 Increase/
Notes 31.03.2020 (As per Ind AS-116) (Decrease) in
(Erstwhile basis) profit
Other Expenses rent 21.41 135.85 §9.65 46.20
Finance costs 23 281.77 308.88 (27.10H
Depreciation and amortisation expense 22 238.33 273.30 (3497
Income tax expense 24 170.97 176.52 5.55
Profit/(loss) before tax §26.92 84835 {10.33)
Impact on statement of cash flows (increase/(decrease)):-
FY 2019-20 FY 2018-19

Operating lease payments (19.08) -
Net cash flows from operating activities (19.08) -
Payment of interest portion of lease liabilities (27.11)
Net cash flows from financing activities (27.11) -
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

(A+B+C) (46.19) -
There is no material impact on other comprehensive income or the basic and diluted eamings per share.
Contractual maturities of lease liabilities:~
The details of contractual maturities of lease liabilitics as at March 31, 2020 on an undiscounted basis are as follows:~
Particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Payable not later than | year 24.11 -
Payable later than 1 year and not later than 5 year 141.93 -
Later than 3 year 58.03 -

224.07 .

Lease liability
Particulars Office building Factory building Warehouse Building Total
As at 31 March 2019 - - - -
Addition in lease liability 72.45 159.15 11.55 243.15
Interest expense on lease liability 8.08 17.74 1.29 27.11
Payment made during CY 14.62 29.51 2.06 46.19
As at 31 March 2020 65.91 147.38 10.78 224.07
Non Current portion 57.11 133.13 9.72 159.96
Current maturities of lease liability 8.80 14.25 1.06 24.11
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39 The Company has appointed independent consultants for conducting a transfer pricing study to determine whether the transactions with associated enterprises were
undertaken at "arm’s length price”. The management confirms that all international transactions with associate enterprises are undertaken at negotiated contracted
prices on usual commercial terms and is confident of there being no adjustments on completion of the study. Adjustments, if any, arising from the transfer pricing
study shall be accounted for as and when the study is completed.

40 Previous year figures have been reclassed/regrouped, wherever considered necessary to make them comparable with those for the current year.

(a) The summary of regrouping related to standalone balance sheet as at 31 March 2019 are as follows:

Particulars Notes 31 March 2019 Regrouping 31 March 2019
Regrouped

Current assets
Others 7)) 374.47 (596.75) 97122
Other current assets 9 (b) 3,596.75 396.75 3,000.00

(b) The summary of regrouping related to standalone statement of profit and loss for the year ended 31 March 2019 are as follows:

Particulars Notes 31 March 2019 Regrouping 31 March 2019
Regrouped
Income
Revenue from operations 15 30,663.02 (0.45) 30,663.47
Other income 17 51.62 0.70 50.92
Expenses
Other expenses 21 2,407.29 0.25 2,407.04

The above regrouping does not have material impact on the financial statements.

4

—

The Outbreak of Coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic globally and in India is causing significant disturbance and slowdown of economic activity. The
manufacturing activities and the sales and distribution of the products of the Company were disrupted due to lock downs and the general economic slowdown.

The Company believes the current disruptions in operations are temporary in nature and based on the business outlook and various initiatives announced by the
respective Central and state governments, this may not result in any significant financial impact on the Company. The Management has considered internal and
external sources of information up to the date of approval of these financial statements, in assessing the recoverability of investments and assets, trade receivables,
liquidity, financial position and operations of the Company and based on the management’s assessment, there is no matcrial impact on the {inancial results of the
Company.

Considering the uncertainties involved in estimating the impact of this pandemic, the future impact of this pandemic may be different from those estimated as on
the date of approval of these financial statements, and this will continue to be monitored in future periods.

For Suresh Surana & Associates LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Lava International Limited

[&\Firm’s Registration No.: 121750W/W-100010
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To,
The Members of
Lava International Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Ind AS financial statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated Ind AS financial statements of Lava International
Limited (hereinafter referred to as “the Holding Company”) its subsidiaries, trust (the Holding Company,
its subsidiaries and trust together referred to as “the Group”), its associate and a joint venture comprising
of the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2020, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss
(including Other Comprehensive Income), the Consolidated Cash Flows Statement and Consolidated
statement of changes in equity for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a
summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to
as “the Consolidated Ind AS financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and based

n the consideration of reports of other auditors on separate financial statements and other financial

statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended (“the Act”) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group as at 31 March 2020, and its
consolidated profit (including Other Comprehensive Income), its consolidated cash flows and
consolidated change in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards
on Auditing (SAs) as specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the ‘Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Ind AS
financial statements’ section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the ‘Code

and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements.

Emphasis of Matter — Credit Risk
We draw attention to Note No. 28 to the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, which describes the

Company’s established policy, procedures and controls relating to customer credit risk management as
well as the management’s assessment of credit risk, credit monitoring mechanism and recovery of certain




Other Information

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Holding Company Board's Report including
Annexures to Board's Report, but does not include the Ind AS consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the Ind AS consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Ind AS consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the Ind AS consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.
We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibility of Management for the Consolidated Ind AS financial statements

detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies;

In preparing the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, the respective Board of Directors/Trustees of
the companies/trust included in the Group including its associate and joint venture are responsible for
assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors/Trustees of the companies/Trust included in the Group including its
associate and joint venture are also responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of the
Group including its associate and joint venture.

Auditors’ Responsibility for the Audit of the Consolidated Ind AS financial statements

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
icism throughout the audit. We also:




e ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Group has adequate internal financial
controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management'’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated Ind AS financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors' report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated Ind AS financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

» Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group of which we are the independent auditors, to express an
opinion on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the audit of the financial statements of such entities included in
the consolidated Ind AS financial statements of which we are the independent auditors. For the
other entities included in the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, which have been audited
by other auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other entities
included in the consolidated Ind AS financial statements of which we are the independent auditors
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Other Matters

a) We did not audit the financial statements of 8 subsidiaries and 1 trust whose financial statements
reflect total assets of Rs. 8,740.43 million and net assets of Rs. 5,472.55 million as at 31 March
2020, total revenues of Rs. 33,220.21 million and net cash outflows amounting to Rs. 20.06 million
for the year then ended on that date, as considered in the consolidated Ind AS financial statements
before giving effect of elimination of intra-group transactions. The consolidated financial statements
also include the Group’s share of loss (including other comprehensive income) of Rs.5.64 million for
the year ended 31 March 2020, as considered in the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, in
respect of a associate and joint venture, whose financial statements have not been audited by us.
_These financial statements have been audited by the other auditors whose reports have been



furnished to us by the Management and our opinion on the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these
subsidiaries, trust, associate and joint venture, and our report in terms of sub-section (3) of Section
143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries, trust, associate and joint venture
is based solely on the reports of the other auditors.

Further, of these subsidiaries and trust, three subsidiaries are located outside India whose financial
statements and other financial information have been prepared in accordance with accounting
principles generally acceptable in their respective countries and which have been audited by other
auditors under generally accepted auditing standards applicable in their respective countries. The
Holding Company's management has converted the financial statements of such subsidiaries
located outside India from accounting principles generally accepted in their respective countries to
accounting principles generally accepted in India. Our opinion in so far as it relates to the balances
and affairs of such subsidiaries located outside India is based on the report of other auditors and
the conversion adjustments prepared by the management of the Holding Company which has been
relied upon by us.

We did not audit the financial statements and other financial information in respect of 9 subsidiary
companies, whose financial statements reflect total assets of Rs. 260.37 million and net assets of
Rs. (420.20) million as at 31 March 2020, total revenues of Rs. 434.45 million and net cash outflow
amounting to Rs. 22.04 million for the year ended on that date, as considered in the consolidated
Ind AS financial statements before giving effect of elimination of intra-group transactions. These
financial statements and other financial information are unaudited and has been furnished to us by
the Management and our opinion on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, in so far as it
relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of the subsidiaries, and our report in
terms of sub-section (3) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries,
is based solely on such unaudited financial statements and other financial information. In our
opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us by the Management, these
financial statements and other financial information are not material to the Group.

Our opinion above on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, and our report on Other Legal
and Regulatory Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to
our reliance on the work done and the reports of the other auditors and these financial statements
and other financial information certified by the Management.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of report of
the other auditors on separate financial statements and the other financial information of
subsidiaries, trust, associate and joint venture as noted in the ‘other matter’ paragraph, we report,
to the extent applicable, that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid
consolidated Ind AS financial statements;

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the
aforesaid consolidated Ind AS financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from
our examination of those books and the reports of the other auditors;

C. The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including
Other Comprehensive Income}, the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and the Consolidated
Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this report are in agreement with the relevant
books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated Ind AS
financial statements;




In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated Ind AS financial statementg
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with relevant rules
amended;

The matters described in the Emphasis of Matters — Credit Risk paragraph above, in our
opinion, may have an adverse effect on the functioning of the Group.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding
Company as on 31 March 2020 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding
Company and the reports of the statutory auditors of its subsidiary companies, associate and
joint venture which are the companies incorporated in India, none of the directors of the
Group’s companies, its associate and joint venture which are the companies incorporated in
India is disqualified as on 31 March 2020 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164 (2) of the Act;

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting and
operating effectiveness of such controls of the Holding Company, its subsidiary companies,
associate and joint venture which are the companies incorporated in India, refer to our
separate Report in “Annexure A”;

With respect to other matters to be included in the Auditor's report in accordance with the
requirements of Section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the remuneration paid by the group to its directors during the year is in accordance with
the provisions of Section 197 read with schedule V to the Act;

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors’) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us and based on the consideration
of the report of the other auditors on separate financial statements and also the other
financial information of the subsidiaries, its associate and a joint venture as noted in the
‘Other matters’ paragraph:

i The consolidated Ind AS financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on
the consolidated financial position of the Group including its associate and joint venture
(Refer Notc 32 to the consolidated Ind AS financlal statements).

ii. ~ The Group including its associate and joint venture did not have any material foreseeable
losses on long-term contracts including derivative contracts during the year ended 31
March 2020.

jii. There are no amounts which are required to be transferred to the Investor Education and

Protection Fund by the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies, associate and
joint venture incorporated in India during the year ended 31 March 2020.

FOR SURESH SURANA & ASSOCIATES LLP
Chartered Accountants
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ANNEXURE ‘A’ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under the heading ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ of our report of even date on the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements of Lava
International Limited)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements of the Company as of and for
the year ended 31 March 2020, we have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of
Lava International Limited (“the Holding Company”) and its subsidiaries (the Holding Company and its
subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group”), its joint venture and its associate, which are the
companies incorporated in India, as of that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company, its subsidiary companies, its associate and
joint venture which are companies covered under the Act, are responsible for establishing and
maintaining internal financial controls based on, the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Holding Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI'). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly
and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to Company's policies, the safeguarding of its
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Group's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing,
issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial
Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls
over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other
auditors in terms of their reports referred to in the other matter paragraph below, is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system
over financial reporting.




Meaning of Internal Financial Controls ove
consolidated financial statements

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
Company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being
made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the Company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use,
or disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting with reference to
these consolidated financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error
or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting to further periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Holding Company, its subsidiary companies, its joint ventures and its associates which
are companies incorporated in India have, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at 31 March 2020, based on the internal financial control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Control Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India.

Other Matters

Our aforesaid report under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of
the internal financial controls over financial reporting, insofar as it relates to 5 subsidiaries, associate and
joint venture which are companies incorporated in India, is based on the corresponding reports of the
auditors of such companies incorporated in India.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of the above matter with respect to our reliance on representations
provided by the management.

For Suresh Surana & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Reg. N

boop
IR EIRy '
\.:% (AN NN
RafulSinghal

Partner

Membership No. 09657
UDIN: 20096570AAAAFR26

-
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Lava International Limited
Consolidated balance sheet us at 31 March 2020

(AN amorans in Indian Rupees Million unlesy othercise s e}

Particulars Notes 31 March 2020 31 Mareh 2049
Assets
Non-current nsscs
Property, plant and cquipment 3 794.90 971.24
Capital work-in-progress 3 20.69 -
Intangible assets 4 57.54 127,05
Right of use asset 5 208.18 -
Investments accounted for using the equity method 37 63.79 69,43
Fimancial assets
Investments 6 (a) 60,37 55.02
Loans 6 (N 26.15 37.05
Other financial asset 6 (1) 20.50 128.11
Other non-current assets 8 (a) 38.00 77.22
Advance tax assets (net) 9 0.97 63.21
1,311.09 1,528.33
Current assets
Inventories 7 2,364.76 4,239.01
Financial assets
Investments 6 (b) 20.69 94.50
Trade receivables 6(c) 13,148.12 10,143.44
Cash and cash equivalents 6(d) 186.38 802.24
Other bank balances 6 (e) 1.301.75 1,774 83
Loans 6 (g) 11.99 2297
Others 6 (1),39 1,304.74 1,610.00
Other current assets 8 (b),39 4,193.35 3,592.69
22,531.78 22,279.70
TOTAL ASSETS 23,842.87 23,808.03
Equity and liabilities
Equity
Equity share capital 10 1,248.67 1,248.67
Instruments entirely in equity 10 50.00 50.00
Other equity
Securities premium reserve 1,874.58 1,874.58
Treasury shares (63.34) (63.34)
Foreign currency translation reserve 596.83 152.02
Share based payment reserve 143.18 143.18
Retained camings 10,238.36 9,155.38
Othar receive (7.69) (7.69)
Equity attributable to equity holders of the Holding Company 14,080.59 12,552.80
Non-controlling interest 051 0.52
Total Equity 14,081.10 12,553.32
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial fiabilities
Borrowings 11(a) 553.58 672.89
Other financial liabilities 11 {d) 320.36 73.47
Other non-current liabilities 13 (a) - 4.68
Provisions 12 (a) 4598 69.31
Deferred tax liabilities (nct) 24 84,49 120.43
1,004.41 940.78
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 11 () 1,094.42 797.86
Trade payables
- total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 11 {c), 34 11.07 20.49
- total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 11 (¢) 4,954.45 7,241.61
Other financial labilities 11 (e) 537.18 691.88
Other current liabilities 13 (b) 1,558.95 1,027.95
Provisions 12 (L) 234.10 349.62
Liabilities for current tax (net) 14 367.19 184.52
Total liabilities 8,757.36 10,313.93
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 23,842.87 23,808.03
Summary of significant accounting policies 2.1

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements,
As per our report of even date as attached

For Suresh Surana & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.: 121750W/W-100010
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Lava International Limited
Consolidated statement of profit and loss for the vear ended 31 March 2020
Gl amounts in Indian Rupees Million wnless otherwvise stated)

Particulars Notes 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Income
Revenue from operations 13,39 3264329 51,083.52
Other income 17,39 49.35 26.22
Total income (I) 52,692.84 51,109.74
Expenses
Cost of raw material and components consumed 18 11,306.49 33,525.70
Purchase of {raded goods 32,049.32 8,631.25
(Increase)/decrease in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress 19 1,613.60 655.61
and traded goods
Employee benefit expenses 20 1.990.68 3,229.96
Other expenses 21,39 3,876.38 3,412.97
Total expense (1) 50,836.47 49,455.49
Earnings before share of loss of an associate & joint venture, interest, fax, depreciation and
amortisation and tax (EBITDA) (1)-(11) 1,856.37 1,654.25
Depreciation and amortisation expense 22 330.51 414.95
Finance costs 23 389.94 601.44
Finance income 6 (136.19) (177.74)
Net Finance cost 253.75 423.70
Profit beforc share of loss of an assuciate & joint venture and tax 1,272.11 815.60
Share of loss of joint venture, associates (net of tax) (II1) 37 5.64 3.50
Profit before tax 1,266.47 812.10
- Current tax 24 224.59 19411
- Deferred tax expense/(income) 24 (35.73) (113.81)
Income tax expense 188.86 80.30
Profit for the year 1,077.61 731.80
Other comprehensive income
Other comprehiensive income not to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods :
- Re-measurement (gains)/losses of defined benefit plan 29 0.59 (18.68)
- Income tax relating 1o this item 24 0.21) 6.53
Other comprehensive income that will be reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent periods
-Exchange difference on translation of foreign operations (444 81) (164.07)
Other comprehensive income for the year (net of tax) (444.43) (176.22)
Total Comprehensive income for the year (net of tax) 1,522.04 908.02
Profit for the year is aftributable to
- Equity holders of Holding Company 1,077.62 731.81
- Non-controlling interest (0.01) (0.01)
Other comprehensive income of the year is attributable fo
- Equity holders of Holding Company 444.43 176.22
- Non-controlling interest - -
Total comprehensive income of the year is attributable to
- Equity holders of Holding Company 1,522.05 908.03
- Non-controlling interest (0.01) (0.01)
Earnings per equity share
Basic 25 8.63 5.86
Diluted 25 8.27 5.61
Summary of significant accounting policies 21

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

As per our report of even date as attached
For Suresh Surana & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Registration No.: 121750W/W-100010
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Lava International Limited
Consolidated cash flow statement for the vear ended 31 March 2020
(Al amownts in Indian Rupees Million unless othervise stated)

Particulars

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

Cash flow from operating activities

Profit before tax

Adjustment to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows -
Depreciation/amortization
Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment written off
Fair value (gain) /loss on Investment at fair value through profit or loss
Dividend Income
Share based payment expense
Unrealized foreign exchange (gain)/ loss
Net gain on sale of mutual fund investments
Share of loss/(Profit) of associate/ joint venture
Balances written off
Fair value (gain)/loss on derivative financial instrument at FVTPL
Payment of principal portion of lease liabilities
Provision for Inventories obsolescence
Provision for trade receivables and advances
Amortization of prepaid security deposit
Interest expense
Interest income

Operating profit before working capital changes

Movements in working capital:

Increase/ (Decrease) in trade payables and other liabilities
Increase/ (Decrease) in provisions

(Increase)/ Decrease in trade receivables

(Increase)/ Decrease in inventories

(Increase)/ Decrease in other assets

Cash generated from operations

Income taxes paid (net of refunds)

Net cash flow used in operating activities (A)

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment,including intangible assets, capital work in
progress, intangible assets under development and cpital advances

Dilution of intangible assets including intangible assets under development
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment (including intangibles)
Investment in subsidiaries

Investment in joint venture

Movement in mutual fund investments

Investments in bank deposits

Redemption/maturity of bank deposits

Interest received

Net cash flow from/(used in) investing activities (B)

Cash flow from financing activities

Purchase of treasury shares

Proceeds from long-term borrowings

Payment of long-term borrowings

Movement in short-term borrowings

Interest paid on lease liability

Interest paid on borrowings

Net cash (used in)/from financing activities (C)

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A + B +C)

Effect of exchange differences on cash & cash equivalents held in foreign currency
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Components of cash and cash equivalents

Cash on hand

With banks on current account

- ondeposit account

- others balances

Total cash and cash equivalents (Refer note 6 (d))

1,266.47 812.10
33051 414.95
327 (0.38)
. 855
0.92 (3.35)
. (5.00)
. 432
(59.31) (172.80)
0.17 (12.02)
5.64 3.50
41.93 0.79
(13.33) -
(19.08) -
14.82 80.93
3131 16.65
7.14 -
218.96 273.96
(122.66) (160.56)
1,706.74 1,261.64
(2,790.91) (7,162.62)
(21.65) (234.27)
(3,010.14) 1,189.17
1,912.56 2,961.55
863.55 (566.16)
(1,339.85) (2,550.69)
12.60 (229.94)
(1,327.23) (2,780.63)
(184.34) (172.26)
(1.28) 644.14
1.93 0.85
0.19 -
. (2.04)
73.64 414.53
(2,186.19) 2,770.77)
2,762.85 5,063.46
99.32 278.68
566.12 3,456.59
- (28.62)
. 300.00
(120.69) (714.40)
296.56 (1,997.57)
(27.11) (205.95)
(130.66) -
18.10 (2,646.54)
(743.03) (1,970.58)
127.17 (0.40)
802.24 2,773.22
186.38 802.24
8.86 5.93
81.27 97.47
96.25 698.84
186.38 $02.24




Lava International Limited

Consolidated cash flow statement for the vear ended 31 March 2020
(All amounts in Indian Rupees Million unless othervise stated)

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities

Long teym borrowings

Short term borrowings

Interest accrued

Opening balance as on 31 March 2019 790.75 797.86 75.30
Cash Flows

- Payment {120.69) - (130.66)
- Proceeds - 296.56 -
Non-Cash

- Upfront fees and amortization 322 - 3.22
- Interest expenses - - 179.53
Closing balance as on 31 March 2020 673.28 1,094.42 127.39

Summary of significant accounting policies (refer note 2.1)

The accompanying notes forms an mtegral part of these consolidated financial statements.

1. Figures in brackets indicate cash out flow.

2. Cash flows statement has been prepared with Indirect method.

As per our report of even date as attached
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Ehartered Accountants
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Lava Infernational Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the
Yyear ended 31 March 2020

1. Corporate information

Lava International Limited (‘Company’ or ‘Holding Company’) is engaged in trading and manufacturing of mobile
phones, storage devices and other wireless telecommunication devices. The Company is a public company domiciled
in India and is incorporated under the provisions of Companies Act applicable in India. The registered office of the
Company is located in Karampura, Delhi and the principal place of business is Noida, Uttar Pradesh. The Company
has an in-house research and development center and manufacturing facilities in Noida.

The financial statements were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the directors or
2. Basis of preparation
a. Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements of Lava International Limited (the ‘Company”’ or “Holding Company™), the
trust and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as ‘Group’) and the Group’s interest in joint ventures and associate
have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended thereafter.

These financial statements are presented in Indian rupees, and all amounts have been rounded-off to the nearest
millions upto two places of decimal, unless otherwise indicated.

b. Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on going concern basis in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in India. The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical
cost basis except for the following items:

- Investments in equity instruments of other entities (at fair value through other comprehensive income)
- Investment in mutual funds (at fair value through profit or loss)
- Derivative financial instruments (at fair value through profit or loss)

¢. Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting
policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses and the disclosure of contingent
liabilities on the date of the financial statements. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Estimates and
underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Any revision to accounting estimates are recognized
prospectively in current and future periods. Information about Jjudgments made in applying accounting policies that
have the most significant effects on the amounts recognized in the consolidated financial statements is included in
the following notes:

Significant estimates

Useful lives of depreciable/amortizable assets — Management reviews its estimate of the useful lives of
depreciable/amortizable assets at each reporting date, based on the expected utility of the assets. Uncertainties in
these estimates relate to technical and economic obsolescence that may change the utility of assets. Carrying
amount of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are disclosed in Note 3 and Note 4 respectively.

Defined benefit obligation (DBO) — Management’s estimate of the DBO is based on a number of underlying
assumptions such as standard rates of inflation, mortality, discount rate and anticipation of future salary
increases. Variation in these assumptions may impact the DBO amount and the annual defined benefit expenses.
Carrying amount of defined benefit obligations are disclosed in Note 29.

Provisions for warranties — A provision is estimated for expected warranty in respect of products sold during the
year on the basis of a technical evaluation and past experience regarding failure trends of products and costs of
rectification or replacement. Carrying amount of provision is-disclosed in Note 12. S s




Lava International Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the
Year ended 31 March 2020

Significant judoments

Contingent liabilities — At each balance sheet date basis the management judgment, changes in facts and legal
aspects, the Group assesses the requirement of provisions against the outstanding contingent liabilities. However, the
actual future outcome may be different from this judgement.

Impairment of financial assets — At each balance sheet date, based on historical default rates observed over
expected life, the management assesses the expected credit loss on outstanding financial assets.

Evaluation of indicators for impairment of assets — The evaluation of applicability of indicators of impairment of
assets requires assessment of several external and internal factors which could result in deterioration of recoverable
amount of the assets.

2.1 Summary of significant accounting policies
(a) Principles of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Group and its interest in joint venture
and associate as at 31 March 2020. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee.
The nature of the Group’s operations and principal activities are set out in Note 40.

Specifically, the Group controls an investee if and only if the Group has:

e Power over the investee (i.e. existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the
investee)

¢ Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee, and

e The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights result in control. To support this presumption and
when the Group has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all
relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

o The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee
*  Rights arising from other contractual arrangements
¢ The Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights

¢ The size of the group’s holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of the holdings of the other
voting rights holders

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control. Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Assets, liabilities,
income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated
financial statements from the date the Group gains control until the date the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other
events in similar circumstances. If a member of the group uses accounting policies other than those adopted in the
consolidated financial statements for like transactions and events in similar circumstances, appropriate adjustments
are made to that group member’s financial statements in preparing the consolidated financial statements to ensure
conformity with the group’s accounting policies.

The financial statements of all entities used for the purpose of consolidation are drawn up to same reporting date as
that of the the holding company, i.e., year ended on 31 March. When the end of the reporting period of the parent is
different from that of a subsidiary, the subsidiary prepares, for consolidation purposes, additional financial
information as of the same date as the financial statements of the parent to enable the parent to consolidate the
financial information of the subsidiary, unless it is impracticable to do'sg, S
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Lava International Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the
Year ended 31 March 2020

Consolidation procedure:

a.  Combine like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows of the parent with those
of its subsidiaries. For this purpose, income and expenses of the subsidiary are based on the amounts of the
assets and liabilities recognised in the consolidated financial statements at the acquisition date

b.  Offset (climinate) the carrying amount of the parent’s investment in each subsidiary and the parent’s
portion of equity of each subsidiary.

¢.  Eliminate in full intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between entities of the group (profits or losses resulting from intragroup transactions that are
recognised in assets, such as inventory and fixed assets, are eliminated in full). Intragroup losses may
indicate an impairment that requires recognition in the consolidated financial statements. Ind AS12 Income
Taxes applies to temporary differences that arise from the elimination of profits and losses resulting from
intragroup transactions.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income (OCI) are attributed to the equity holders of the
parent of the Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a
deficit balance.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity
transaction. If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it:

¢ Derecognises the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary

e Derecognises the carrying amount of any non-controlling interests

*  Derecognises the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity

®  Recognises the fair value of the consideration received

e Recognises the fair value of any investment retained

¢ Recognises any surplus or deficit in profit or loss

¢ Reclassifies the parent’s share of components previously recognised in OCI to profit or loss or retained
earnings, as appropriate, as would be required if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities

(b) Investment in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee, but is not control or joint control over
those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have
rights to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an
arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities require unanimous consent of the
parties sharing control.

The considerations made in determining whether significant influence or joint control are similar to those necessary
to determine control over the subsidiaries.

The Group’s investments in its associate and joint venture are accounted for using the equity method. Under the
equity method, the investment in an associate or a joint venture is initially recognised at cost. The carrying amount
of the investment is adjusted to recognise changes in the Group’s share of net assets of the associate or joint venture
since the acquisition date. Goodwill relating to the associate or Joint venture is included in the carrying amount of
the investment and is not tested for impairment individually.

The statement of profit and loss reflects the Group’s share of the results of operations of the associate or joint
venture. Any change in OCI of those investees is presented as part of the Group’s OCL In addition, when there has
been a change recognised directly in the equity of the associate or Jjoint venture, the Group recognises its share of
any changes, when applicable, in the statement of changes in equity. ?U”r‘;l’géal;ised gains and losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and the assoefate or joint ventire are eliminated to the extent of the interest in the

L .




Lava International Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the
Year ended 31 March 2020

associate or joint venture.

If an entity’s share of losses of an associate or a joint venture equals or exceeds its interest in the associate or joint
venture (which includes any long term interest that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the
associate or joint venture), the entity discontinues recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses are
recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on
behalf of the associate or joint venture. If the associate or Joint venture subsequently reports profits, the entity
resumes recognising its share of those profits only after its share of the profits equals the share of losses not
recognised.

The aggregate of the Group’s share of profit or loss of an associate and a joint venture is shown on the face of the
consolidated statement of profit and loss.

The financial statements of the associate or joint venture are prepared for the same reporting period as the Group.
When necessary, adjustments are made to bring the accounting policies in linc with those of the Group.

After application of the equity method, the Group determines whether it is necessary to recognise an impairment
loss on its investment in its associate or joint venture. At each reporting date, the Group determines whether there is
objective evidence that the investment in the associate or Jjoint venture is impaired. If there is such evidence, the
Group calculates the amount of impairment as the difference between the recoverable amount of the associate or
joint venture and its carrying value, and then recognises the loss as ‘Share of profit of an associate and a joint
venture’ in the statement of profit or loss.

Upon loss of significant influence over the associate or Joint control over the joint venture, the Group measures and
recognises any retained investment at its fair value. Any difference between the carrying amount of the associate or
joint venture upon loss of significant influence or joint control and the fair value of the retained investment and
proceeds from disposal is recognised in profit or loss.

(¢) Current Vs Non-current classification

The Group presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification. An asset is
treated as current when it is:

¢ Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

e Held primarily for the purpose of trading

e Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

e Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least
twelve months after the reporting period

Current assets include the current portion of non-current financial assets. All other assets are classified as non-
current.

A liability is current when:

e Itis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

e Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading

e It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

e There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the
reporting period

Current liabilities include current portion of non-current financial liabilities. The Group classifies all other liabilities
as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.




Lava International Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the
Year ended 31 March 2020

Operating cycle

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and
cash equivalents. The Group has determined its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of classification of its
assets and liabilities as current and non-current,

(d) Property, plant and equipment
i. Recognition and measurement

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses if
any. Cost directly attributable to acquisition are capitalised until the property, plant and equipment are ready for use,
as intended by the management.

iil. Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent costs are capitalised on the carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
future economic benefits associated with the item are probable to flow to the Group and cost of the item can be
measured reliably. When significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced in regular
intervals, the Group recognises such parts as separate component of assets. All repair and maintenance are charged to
statement of profit and loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred.

The present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of the asset after its use is included in the cost of the
respective asset if the recognition criteria for a provision are met.

The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the statement of
profit and loss on the date of disposal or retirement.

Advances paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each balance sheet date is
classified as capital advances under the non-current assets and the cost of assets not put to use before such date are
disclosed under ‘Capital work in progress’.

iii. Depreciation

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of
the assets as below:

Assets Useful Lives
Office Equipment 3-5 Years
Furniture and fixtures* 3-5 Years
Demonstration Fixtures* 2-5 Years
Vehicles* 5 Years
Computer and Components* 3 Years
Plant and Machinery*

Jigs 1 Year

Other Plant and Machinery 5-15 Years
Electrical Installations 10 Years

*Based on technical evaluation, the management believes that the useful lives as given above best represent the
period over which the management expects to use these assets. Hence the useful lives for these assets are different
from useful lives as prescribed under Part C of Schedule 11 of the Companies Act 2013.

Leasehold Improvements are amortized over the lease term or 10 years whichever is less.

When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be
separately based on their specific useful lives.




Lava International Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the
vear ended 31 March 2020

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each
financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.
(e) Intangible assets
i, Recognition and initial measurement
Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition,
intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any.
Internally generated intangible assets, excluding capitalized development costs, are not capitalized and expenditure is
reflected in the statement of profit and loss in the year in which the expenditure is incurred.

ii. Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the
expenditure will flow to the Group.

iii. Amortisation

The useful lives of intangible assets is assessed as finite as stated below and the assets are amortised over their useful
lives and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that an intangible asset may be impaired.

Assets Useful Lives
Computer software (over license period) I-5 Years
Internally generated software 3- 5Years

The amortization period and the amortization method are reviewed at least at each financial year end. Changes in the
expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are
considered to modify the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting
estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets is recognised in the statement of profit and loss unless such
expenditure forms part of carrying value of another asset.

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the statement of profit and loss when
the asset is derecognized.

Research and development costs

Research costs are expensed as incurred. Development expenditure incurred on an individual project is recognized as
an intangible asset when the Group can demonstrate ail the following:

The technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will be available for use or sale
Its intention to complete the asset

Its ability to use or sell the asset

How the asset will generate future economic benefits

The availability of adequate resources to complete the development and to use or sell the asset

The ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset during development.

e 6 e © o e

Following the initial recognition of the development expenditure as an asset, the cost model is applied requiring the
asset to be carried at cost less any accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses. Amortization of
the asset begins when development is complete and the asset is available for use. It is amortized on a straight line
basis over the period of expected future benefit from the related project, i.e., the estimated useful life of one to ten
years. Amortization is recognized in the statement of profit and loss. During the period of development, the asset is
tested for impairment annually.




Lava International Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the
Yyear ended 31 March 2020

(f) Leases

The Group adopted Ind AS 116 using the Modified retrospective method of adoption, with the date of initial
application on 1 April 2019. The Group has recognised a lease liability on initial application (i.e. April 1, 2019) at the
present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted using the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate at the date of
initial application and right-of-use asset at an amount equal to the lease liability, adjusted by the amount of any
prepaid or accrued lease payments relating to that lease recognised in the balance sheet immediately before the date of
initial application.

The Group, as a lessee, recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability for its leasing arrangements, if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset.

The contract conveys the right to control the usc of an identified asset, il it iuvolves the use of an identified asset and
the Group has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset and has right to direct the use of the
identified asset. The cost of the right-of-use asset shall comprise of the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date plus any initial direct costs
incurred. The right-of-use assets is subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation, accumulated
impairment losses, if any and adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability. The right-of-use assets is
depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date over the shorter of lease term or useful life of
right-of-use asset (Refer note 38).

The Group measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date of the lease. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if that
rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot be readily determined, the Group uses incremental borrowing rate.

The Group also elected to use the recognition exemptions for lease contracts that, at the commencement date, have a
lease term of 12 months or less and do not contain a purchase option (short-term leases), and lease contracts for which
the underlying asset is of low value (Ilow-value assets).

Lessor accounting under Ind AS 116 is substantially unchanged from Ind AS 17. Lessors will continue to classify
leases as either operating or finance leases using similar principles as in Ind AS 17. Therefore, Ind AS 116 does not
have an impact for leases where the Group is the lessor.

(g) Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any
indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Group estimates the asset’s
recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and its
value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash
inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. When the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In
determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions
can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples,
quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or other available fair value indicators.

The Group bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations. These budgets and forecast
calculations generally cover a period of five years. For longer periods, a long-term growth rate is calculated and
applied to project future cash flows after the fifth year. To estimate cash flow projections beyond periods covered by
the most recent budgets/forecasts, the Group extrapolates cash flow projections in the budget using a steady or
declining growth rate for subsequent years, unless an increasing rate can be justified. In any case, this growth rate
does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the products, industries, or country or countries in which the
entity operates, or for the market in which the asset is used.

Impairment losses, including impairment on inventories, are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit and
loss. ,




Lava International Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the
Year ended 31 March 2020

(h) Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or
equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets
Recognition and initial measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value
through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.

Classification and subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

e  Debt instruments at amortised cost

®  Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

e Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Debt instruments at amortised cost
A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows,
and

b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

This category is most applicable to the Group. After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the Effective Interest Rate (“EIR”) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking
into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR
amortisation is included in finance income in the statement of profit and loss. The losses arising from impairment are
recognised in the statement of profit and loss. This category generally applies to trade and other receivables.

Debt instrument at FVTPL

FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria for
categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOC], is classified as at FVTPL.

In addition, the Group may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortized cost or FVTOCI
criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is considered only if doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or

recognition inconsistency (referred to as ‘accounting mismatch”).

Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the
statement of profit and loss. This category is applicable to investments in mutual funds.

Debt instrument at FVTOCI
A “debt instrument’ is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:

llecting contractual cash flows and selling the

a) The objective of the business model is achievedgb_oth by co
financial assets, and BRI
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b) The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPI.

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at
fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI). However, the Group
recognizes interest income, impairment losses & reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the statement of
profit and loss. On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified
from the equity to statement of profit and loss (P&L). Interest carned whilst holding FVTOCI debt instrument is
reported as interest income using the EIR method.

Equity Investments

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for
trading are classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the Group may make an irrevocable election to
present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value. The Group makes such election on an
instrument-by-instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

If the Group decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument,
excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to statement of
profit and loss, even on sale of investment. However, the Group may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within
equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value. All changes in fair value
including dividend are recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

De-recognition
A financial asset is de-recognised only when

e The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

* The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either
(a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the
asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement. In
that case, the Group also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group could be required to

repay.
Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Group applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and
recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure:

a. Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans, debt securities, deposits,
trade recejvables and bank balance
b. Loan commitments which are not measured as at FVTPL

The Group follows ‘simplified approach® for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivables. The
application of simplified approach does not require the Group to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises
impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

roup determines that whether

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure; the.
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there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased
significantly, 12-month expected credit loss (ECL) is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk
has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument

improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity
reverts to recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a
financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default events that are
possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with the contract
and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR.

The Group uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on portfolio of its trade recejvables. The
provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates over the expected life of the trade receivables and
is adjusted for forward-looking estimates. At every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated
and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/ expense in the
statement of profit and loss. For the financial assets measured as at amortised cost, contractual revenue receivables,
ECL is presented as an allowance, i.e., as an integral part of the measurement of those assets in the balance sheet.
The allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the Group does not reduce
impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss,
loans and borrowings or payables, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables,
net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank overdrafts,
financial guarantee contracts and derivative financial instruments.

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial
liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified
as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes
derivative financial instruments entered into by the Group that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge
relationships as defined by Ind AS 109.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as such at
the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as
FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit risk are recognized in OCI. These gains/ loss
are not subsequently transferred to statement of profit and loss. However, the Group may transfer the cumulative
gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the statement of profit
and loss.
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Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
EIR. Gains and losses are recognised in statement of profit and loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as
through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fee or costs that are
an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance costs in the statement of profit and loss,

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse
the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in accordance with the
terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee contracts are recognised initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted
for transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequently, the liability is
measured at the higher of the amount of loss allowance determined as per impairment requirements of Ind AS 109
and the amount recognised less cumulative amortisation.

De-recognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or
the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the
derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Reclassification of financial assefts

The Group determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After initial recognition,
no reclassification is made for financial assets which are equity instruments and financial liabilities. For financial
assets which are debt instruments, a reclassification is made only if there is a change in the business model for
managing those assets. If the Group reclassifies financial assets, it applies the reclassification prospectively from the
reclassification date which is the first day of the immediately next reporting period following the change in business
model. The Group does not restate any previously recognised gains, losses (including impairment gains or losses) or
interest

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial asset and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where there is a
legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

(i) Derivative financial instrument

The Group uses derivative financial instruments i.e., forward and futures currency contracts to hedge its foreign
currency risks. Such derivative financial instraments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as financial
assets when the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair value is negative. Any gains or losses
arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives are taken directly to statement of profit and loss. The Group has
not applied hedge accounting,.

(i) Fair value Measurement

The Group measure its financial instruments such as derivative at fair value at each balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is-based on the presumption that .
the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either: : L
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RSN




Lava International Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the
vyear ended 31 March 2020

 Inthe principal market for the asset or liability, or

¢ Inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement as a whole:

Level 1- Quoted (Unadjusted) marked prices in the active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2- Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
directly or indirectly observable

Level 3- Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable,

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

At each reporting date, the management analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities which are
required to be re-measured or re-assessed as per the Group’s accounting policies. For this analysis, the management
or its expert verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the information in the valuation
computation to contracts and other relevant documents

(k) Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present location and condition are accounted for as follows:

* Raw materials and spares: cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to

their present location and condition. Cost is determined on weighted average basis.

¢ Finished goods and work in progress: cost includes cost of direct materials and labour and a proportion of
manufacturing overheads based on the normal operating capacity, but excluding borrowing costs. Cost is
determined on weighted average basis.

¢ Traded goods: cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition. Cost is determined on first in first out basis.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

(D Revenue recognition

ts with Customers™ notified b)\&MCGA vide its
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notification dated 28 March, 2018 which supersedes Ind AS 18 — “Revenue” and related Appendices,

Group account for revenue in accordance with Ind AS 115"Revenue from Contracts with customers” using the
modified retrospective method.

The Group has recognize revenue in accordance with Ind AS 115 by applying the following 5 steps:
I Identify the contracts with the customers,

Il Identify the separate performance obligations,

HI' Determine the transaction price of the contract,

IV Allocate the transaction price to each of the separate performance obligations, and

V' Recognize the revenue as each performance obligation is satisfied.

Sale of Goods

Revenue from sale of goods is recognized when the significant risk and rewards of ownership of the goods have been
passed to the buyer which generally coincides with delivery of goods, as per the contractual terms with customers.
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into account contractually
defined terms of payment and is inclusive of excise duty and net of returns and allowances, trade discount, volumie
rebates and value added taxes. The Group has concluded that it is the principal in all of its revenue arrangements since
it is the primary obligor in all the revenue arrangements as it has pricing latitude and is also exposed to inventory and
credit risks.

The Group accounts for volume discount for pricing incentives to customers as a reduction of revenue based on
estimate of applicable discount/incentives.

Sale of Services

Revenue from sales of services is from installation of third party mobile applications in the handset and is recognized
by reference to the stage of completion, net of GST. Stage of completion is measured by reference to services
performed to date as a percentage of total services to be performed.

Interest

For all debt instruments measured either at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income,
interest income is recorded using the EIR. EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or
receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset or to the amortised cost of a financial liability. When calculating the effective interest
rate, the Group estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument
but does not consider the expected credit losses. Interest income is included in finance income in the statement of
profit and loss.

Dividend Income
Dividend Income is recognised when the Group’s right to receive the amount has been established.

Incentive Income
Group has recognized incentive income in form of, Merchant export incentive income (MEIS), Duty drawback
income based on export made, UPSDM income based on training given to apprentice.

Disaggregation of Revenue
See Note 30 (Segment Reporting) to Consolidated Financial Statements for our disaggregated revenues.

Contract Balances:

Trade Receivables
A receivable represents the Group’s right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional.

Contract Assets S
A contract asset is a right to consideration that is conditional upon factors other than the p?s/age of time,

L,
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During financial year 2019-20, out of Rs. 27.12 million contract assets as on March 31, 2019, invoicing for 90.60%
has been done and Rs.2.55 million is pending for invoicing,

Balance as at March 31, 2019 27.12 million
Deduction on account of Reclassified to receivable (24.57) million
Recognized as revenue during the year 17.72 million
Balance as at March 31, 2020 20.27 million

Contract Liabilities
A Contract liabilities is an entity’s obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the entity has
received consideration (or the amount is due) from the customer.

Balance as at March 31, 2019 656.10 million
Deduction on account of revenues recognized during the year (501.51) million
Addition on account of transaction 435.21 million
Balance as at March 31, 2020 589.80 million

Changes in the contract asset and Iiability balances during current year, were a result of normal business activity and
not materially impacted by any other factors.

(m) Foreign currencies
(i) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of the Group are measured using the respective currency of the primary
economic environment in which in which the entity in Group operates i.e. the “functional currency”. These financial
statements are presented in Indian rupees, which is also the functional currency of the parent Group. For each entity
the Group determines the functional currency and items included in the financial statements of each entity are
measured using that functional currency.

(ii) Tramsactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Group’s entities at their respective functional currency
spot rates at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition. However, for practical reasons, the group uses an
average rate if the average approximates the actual rate at the date of the transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot rates of
exchange at the reporting date.

Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss with the
exception of the following:

*  Exchange differences arising on monetary items that forms part of a reporting entity’s net investment in a foreign
operation are recognised in profit or loss in the separate financial statements of the reporting entity or the
individual financial statements of the foreign operation, as appropriate. In the financial statements that include the
foreign operation and the reporting entity (e.g., consolidated financial statements when the foreign operation is a
subsidiary), such exchange differences are recognised initially in OCIL These exchange differences are
reclassified from equity to profit or loss on disposal of the net investment.

¢ Tax charges and credits attributable to exchange differences on those monetary items are also recorded in OCL

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency
are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising on
translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on
the change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in
OCT or profit or loss are also recognised in OCI or profit or loss, respectively).

On consolidation, the assets and liabilities of foreign operations are transl

into INR at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the reporting date and their statements of profit or loss are y

‘early average/fgxchange rates.
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For practical reasons, the group uses an average rate to translate income and expense items, if the average rate
approximates the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. The exchange differences arising on translation for
consolidation are recognised in OCI. On disposal of a foreign operation, the component of OCI relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognised in profit or loss.

(n) Income taxes
Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected fo be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively
enacted, at the reporting date in India.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the
recognised amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or simultaneously.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside statement of profit and loss is recognised either in other
comprehensive income or in equity. Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either
in OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where
appropriate. Payments of tax as per Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) is included as parl of current tax in statement of
profit and loss.

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements as at reporting date. Deferred tax
is measured based on the tax rates and the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

® When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss

* In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in
joint ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable
that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits
and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused
tax losses can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it
has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside statement of profit and loss is recognised either in other
comprehensive income or in equity. Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction
either in OCI or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to set-off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and
the same taxation authority.

'MAT is applicable to the Group. Credit of MAT is recognised as deferred tax asset only when it is probable that
“taxable profit will be available against which the credit can be utilised. In the year in which the MAT credit becomes -
eligible to be recognised as an asset, the said asset is created by way of a credit to the statement of profit.and;loss
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account. The Group reviews the same at each balance sheet date and writes down the carrying amount of MAT credit
entitlement to the extent it is no longer probable that the Group will pay normal income tax during the specified
period.

(0) Retirement and other employee benefits

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The contributions to the provident
fund are charged to the statement of profit and loss for the year when an employee renders the related service. The
Group has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund.

The Group operates an unfunded defined benefit gratuity plan for its employees. The cost of providing benefits under
this plan is determined on the basis of actuarial valuation at each year-end, using the projected unit credit method and
charged to statement of profit and loss. Re-measurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the
asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability, are recognised
immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI in the period
in which they occur. Re-measurements are not reclassified to statement of profit and loss in subsequent periods.

Accumulated leave is treated as short-term employee benefit as the Group has no unconditional right to defer the
liability. The Group measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that it expects to pay as a
result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date. Such compensated absences are provided
for based on the actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method at the year-end. Actuarial gains/losses are
immediately taken to the statement of profit and loss.

(p) Provisions and Contingent Liabilities
Provisions

General

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it
is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the
statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects,
when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the
passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Warranty provisions

Provisions for warranty-related costs are recognised when the product is sold or service provided to the customer.
Initial recognition is based on historical experience. The initial estimate of warranty-related costs is revised annually.

Decommissioning liability

The Group records a provision for decommissioning costs of a leased facility. Decommissioning costs are provided at
the present value of expected costs to settle the obligation using estimated cash flows and are recognised as part of the
cost of the particular asset. The cash flows are discounted at a current pre-tax rate that reflects the risks specific to the
decommissioning liability. The unwinding of the discount is expensed as incurred and recognised in the statement of
profit and loss as a finance cost. The estimated future costs of decommissioning are reviewed annually and adjusted as
appropriate. Changes in the estimated future costs or in the discount rate applied are added to or deducted from the
cost of the asset.

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Group or a present
obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
bligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized

e it cannot be measured reliably. The Group does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its eg;iétence :
; i
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in the financial statements.

(q) Earnings per share

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the protit or loss for the year attributable to equity holders of the
Holding Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year excluding the
treasury shares.

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to equity holders of the Holding
Company (after adjusting the corresponding income/charge for dilutive potential equity shares) by the weighted
average number of Equity shares outstanding during the year, excluding treasury shares, plus the weighted average
number of Equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential Equity shares into Equity
shares.

(r) Segment reporting

Identification of segments

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision maker (CODM). Only those business activities are identified as operating segment for which the operating
results are regularly reviewed by the CODM to make decisions about resource allocation and performance
measurement,

Inter-segment transfers
The Group generally accounts for inter-segment sales and transfers at cost plus appropriate margins.

Segment accounting policies
The Group prepares its segment information in conformity with the accounting policies adopted for
preparing and presenting the financial statements of the Group as a whole.

(s) Share based payments

Employees (including senior execulives) of the Group receive remuneration in the form of share-based payments,
whereby employees render services as consideration for equity instruments (cquity-settled transactions).

Equity-setiled transactions

The cost of equity-settled transactions is determined by the fair value at the date when the grant is made using Black
Scholes Option Pricing Model.

That cost is recognised, together with a corresponding increase in share-based payment (SBP) reserves in equity, over
the period in which the service conditions are fulfilled in employee benefits expense. The cumulative expense
recognised for equity-settled transactions at each reporting date until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the
vesting period has expired and the Group’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest.
The statement of profit and loss expense or credit for a period represents the movement in cumulative expense
recognised as at the beginning and end of that period and is recognised in employee benefits expense.

Service conditions are not taken into account when determining the grant date fair value of awards, but the likelihood
of the conditions being met is assessed as part of the Group’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments that
will ultimately vest.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest because service conditions have not been met.

Where an award is cancelled by the entity or by the counterparty, any remaining element of the fair value of the award
is expensed immediately through profit or loss. ‘ ‘
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The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in the computation of diluted
earnings per share.

(t) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs to the extent directly attributable to the acquisition/construction of assets that necessarily take
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use are capitalised along with the respective property, plant
and equipment up to the date such asset is ready for use. Other borrowing costs are charged to the statement of profit
and loss.

(u) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet and for the purpose of statement of cash flows comprise cash at banks
and on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value. These do not include bank balances earmarked/restricted for specific purposes.

(v) Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will
be received and the Group will comply with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to income are deferred and recognised in the profit or loss over the period necessary to
match them with the costs that they are intended to compensate and presented within other income.

(w) Measurement of Earnings before Interest ,tax, depreciation and amortization (EBITDA)

Ind AS compliant Schedule 1II allows line items, sub-line items and sub-totals to be presented as an addition or
substitution on the face of the financial statements when such presentation is relevant to an understanding of the
Group’s financial position /performance.

Accordingly, the Group has elected to present earnings before net finance cost, tax, depreciation and amortization
(EBITDA) as a separate line item on the face of the statement of profit and loss. The Group measures EBITDA on the
basis of profit/ (loss) from continuing operations. In its measurement, the Group does not include depreciation and
amortization expense, interest income, finance costs, and tax expense.

(x) Treasury Shares

The group has created a Lava Welfare Trust (‘the trust’) for providing share-based payment to its employees. The
group uses the trust as a vehicle for distributing shares to employees under the employee remuneration schemes. The
trust buys Company’s shares from the employees of the Company as per the employee remuneration schemes. The
group treats the trust as its extension and shares held by the trust are treated as treasury shares.

Own equity instruments that are reacquired (treasury shares) are recognised at cost and deducted from total equity. No
gain or Joss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Group’s own equity
instruments. Any difference between the carrying amount and the consideration, if reissued, is recognised in general
reserve. Share options exercised during the reporting period are settled with treasury shares.
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LAVA International Limited

Notes to consolidated financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2020

(Al amounts in Indian Rupees Million unless othermvise statedj

4 Intangible assets

Computer Internally generated Total Intangible assef under
Particulars Softwares and software development
Licenses
Cost
At 31 March 2018 278.10 946.42 1224.52 72.73
Additions 61.24 37.82 99.06 .39
Deletion 10.23 886.79 §97.02 74.12
Exchange difference 49.19 17.76 66.95 -
At 31 March 2019 378.30 115.21 493.51 -
Additions - - - -
Deletion 0.17 - 0.17 -
Exchange difference 67.10 - 67.10 -
At 31 March 2020 445.23 115.21 560.44 -
Amortisation
At 31 March 2018 214.40 230.71 445.11 -
Charge for the year 52.46 93.68 146.14 -
Disposal 1.85 271.24 273.09 -
Exchange difference 39.45 8.85 48.30 -
At 31 March 2019 304.46 62.00 366.46 -
Charge for the year 40.39 29.65 70.04 -
Disposal - - - -
Exchange difference 66.40 - 66.40 -
At 31 March 2020 411.25 91.65 502.90 -
Net Block
At 31 March 2019 73.84 53.21 127.05 -
At 31 March 2020 33.98 23.56 57.54 -
Right of use asset
Office building Factory building Warehouse Building Total
Particulars
Cost
At 31 March 2018 - - - -
Additions - - - -
Deletion - - - -
At 31 March 2019 - - - -
Additions 7245 159.15 11.55 243.15
Deletion - - - -
At 31 March 2020 72.45 159.15 11.55 243.15
Amortisation
At 31 March 2018 - - - -
Amortisation - - - -
Amortization - - -
Charge for the year - - - -
Additions 11.47 21.82 1.68 34.97
Deletion - - - -
At 31 March 2020 11.47 21.82 1.68 34.97
At 31 March 2019 - - - -
At 31 March 2020 60.98 137.33 9.87 208.18




LAVA International Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
(1t amounty i ndian Rupees Miltion unless otherwise stated)

6 Financial assets
6 (a) Non-current investments 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
No of Units Amount No of Units Anmount
Investments in equity instruments of other entifics
(at fair value through other comprehensive income)
Equity Shares of .001 SGD each fully paid up of Abhriya Pte. Ltd.* 63,860 - 03,860 -
SQO.(31 March 2019: 300) Equity thares of 10,000 CNY ea'ch.fully paid up of Inone Technology (Shenzhen) 500 6017 500 5482
Limited (formerly known as Xolo T echnology (Shenzhen) Limited)
N 2 arch 2 ] quity shares of Rs. ach fully pai f Sri K& ara ile &
iO:OOO (:sl M"mh‘ 0]9. 0,000) lvqmlg S_]”_r‘-> of Rs.10 each fully paid up of Sri Venketeswara Mobile & 20,000 020 20,000 0.20
Electronics Manufacturing Hub Private Limited
60.37 55.02
Aggregate amount of unquoted investment 60.37 55.02

*As at 31 March 2020, the Group has fair valued the investment at Rs. Nil (31 March 2019 - Rs. Nil) as there is no future economic benefit expected from the investment.

6 (b) Current investments

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
No of Units Amount  No of Units Amount
Investment in Mutual funds (Quoted)(at fair value through profit or loss)
Reliance Credit Risk Fund - Growth - - 2,101,183 54.16
Union Arbitrage Fund Regulr Plan - Growth - - 149,990 1.51
Union Capital Protection Oriented Fund - Series 8 2,000,000 20.69 2,000,000 21.61
Union KBC Capital Protection Oriented Fund - Series 7 - - 1,500,000 17.22
20,69 94.50
Aggregate amount of quoted investment 20.69 94.50
Market value of quoted investments 20.69 94.50

(This space has been intentionally lefi blank)




LEAVA International Limited

Notes (o consolidated financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2020
(Al amowits in Indian Rupees Million unless othervise stated)

6 {c)

6 (d)

6 (e)

6 (D

6(g)

6 (h)

6 (i)

Trade receivables

Unsecured

- Considered good

- Receivables from related parties, considered good (refer note 31)

- Credit impaired

Less :Provision for trade receivables

- Credit impaired

For terms and conditions relating to trade receivables, refer note 28,

Cash and cash equivalents

Balances with banks:
On current accounts

Deposits with original maturity of less than three months #(Refer footnote to note 6(h))

Cash on hand

#Short-term deposits are made for varying periods of between one day and three months, depending on the immediate cash

requirements of Group, and e
Other bank balances

arn interest at the respective short-term deposit rates.

Deposits from bank for more than three months but less than twelve months
#(Refer footnote to note 6(h))

Loans (Non Current)

Security deposits

Loans (Current)

Security deposits

Other financial assets (Non-Current)

Unsecured, considered good unless stated otherwise

Other receivable (Refer note 31)

Bank deposits

Bank deposits with remaining maturity of more than twelve months #
Interest accrued on bank deposits

# Includes margin money deposits under lien (refer note 6 (d) ,6 (€) and 6 (h)):-

- against letter of credit facility
- against amount paid under protest (excluding interest accrued) (refer note 32(B)(b)(i))

Other financial assets (Current)

Unsecured, considered good unless stated otherwise

Interest accrued on bank deposits

Derivative asset
Others receivables
- Considered good
Total

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

13.148.12 10,141 45
- 1.99
54.06 18.20
13,202.18 10,161.64
(54.06) (18.20)
13,148.12 10,143.44

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

96.25 698.84
§1.27 97.47
8.86 5.93
186.38 802.24

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

1.301.75

1,774.85

1,301.75

1,774.85

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

37.05

37.05

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

11.99

22.97

11.99

22.97

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

19.33 19.33
0.86 104.42
0.31 4.36

20.50 128.11

648.31 1,144.52
300.00 300.00

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

149.27 129.24
578 -

1,149.69 1,480.76

1,304.74 1,610.00




LAVA International Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
(Al amounis in Indian Rupees Million unless othervise stated)

7 Inventories
(at lower of cost or net realisable value)

Raw materials and components 1
Finished goods 1,2

Traded goods 2

Spares 2

1 including stock in transit

- Raw materials and components
- Finished goods

2 The above inventory is net of -
a) Write down of inventory from cost to net realisable value
Finished goods
Traded goods
Spares
b) Write down for inventory obsolescence
Finished goods
Traded goods
Spares

8 (a) Other assets (Non-Current)
Unsecured, considered good, unless otherwise stated

Capital advances
Prepaid expenses

8 (b) Other assets (Current)
Unsecured, considered good, unless otherwise stated

Prepaid expenses

Balance with statutory/ government authorities (refer note 32(B) & 36)
Advances to vendors

- Considered good

- Advances to related parties, considered good (refer note 31)

- Considered doubtful

Less: Provision for doubtful advances

Others
Total(A+B+C+D)

9 Advance tax assets (net)

Advance tax asset
[net of provision for income tax Rs. Nil (31 March 2019 : Rs. Nil}]

(This space has been intentionally lefi blank)

(A)
(B)

©

((H)]

31 March 2020

31 March 20619

649.23 909.88
242,14 1,586.20
534,52 876.35
938.87 866.58
2,364.76 4,239.01
99.58 292.60
- 90.10
3.62 86.46
4.79 8.91
108.93 .
3.09 1.54
4.69 48.92
108.97 207.80

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

57.42 61.07
0.58 16.15
58.00 77.22

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

17.36 49.41
1,328.59 1,623.52
2,694.56 1,819.61

0.04 -

6548 70.03

2.760.08 1,889.64
(65.48) (70.03)

2,694.60 1,819.61
152.80 100.15

4,193.35 3,592.69

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

0.97

63.21

0.97

63.21




LAVA International Limited

Naotes to consolidated finaneial statements for the year ended 31 Alarch 2020
(AL amounts i hdan KI//?U&\ Kon untesy oihenvise Nty

10 Share capital

Authorised shares

147,900,000 (31 March 2019 :147,900,000) equity shares of Rs 16 cach

100,000 (31 March 2019: 160,000) Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares (CCPS)
of Rs 10/- each

500,000 (31 March 2019: 500,000) Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares (CCPS) of Rs 100 each

Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up shares

124,866,902 (31 March 2019 - 124,866,902) equity shares of Rs.10 each

500,000 (31 March 2019 :500,000) Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares (CCPS) of Rs 100 each
Total issued, subscribed and fully paid-up share capital

(a} Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year

Equity shares
Amount

31 March 2020 31 March 2019

1.479.00 1.479.00
1.00 1.00
50.00 50.00
1,530.00 1,530.00
1,.248.67 1,248.67
50.00 50.00
1,298.67 1,298.67

No of Shares

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

31 March 2020 31 March 2019

At the beginning of the year 1,248.67 1,248.67 124,866,902 124,866,902
Outstanding at the end of the year 1,248.67 1,248.67 124,866,902 124,866,502
Instruments entirely equity in nature - Amount No of Shares

31 March 2020 31 March 2019 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
At the beginning of the year 50.00 50.00 500,000 500,000
Outstanding at the end of the year 50.00 50.00 500,000 500,000

(b) Terms/ rights attached to equity shares

The Holding Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share and dividends in

proportion to their shareholding. In the event of liquidation of the Holding Company, the holders of equity shares will be
after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by

Terms/ rights attached to Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares (CCPS)

entitled to receive residual assets of the Holding Company
the shareholders.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Holding Company has issued 500,000 Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares (CCPS) of Rs. 100 each. The preference shares shall

collectively be entitled to dividend of 0.0001% of the aggregate face value of the preference shares.

As per the terms of Subscription and Shareholders Agreement , the preference shares may be converted, at any time

at the discretion of the CCPS holder, into fixed number of equity

shares (calculated at 3.33% of the share capital at funding date i.e. 8.32 number of equity shares per CCPS). If any of the preference shares have not been converted into equity shares
within 19 years and 11 months, such remaining preference shares shall be automatically and compulsorily converted into such number of equity shares upon the expiry of such period.

(¢} Aggregate number of bonus shares issued during the period of five years immediately preceding the reporting date:

Equity shares alloted as fully paid bonus shares

(d ) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company:*

Equity Shares of Rs, 10 each fully paid No of Shares

No of Shares

31 March 2020 31 March 2019

122,785,785 122,785,785

Percentage shareholding

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Hari Om Rai 45,083,890
Sunil Bhalla 28,390,372
Vishal Sehgal 22,104,352
Shailendra Nath Rai 11,746,028
Shibani Sehgal 7,260,720

45,083,976
28,390,372
22,104,352
11,746,028

7,260,720

36.11% 36.11%
22.74% 22.74%
17.70% 17.70%
9.41% 9.41%
5.81% 5.81%

*As per records of the Holding Company, including its register of sharcholders/ members and other declarations received from shareholders regarding beneficial interest, the above

shareholding represents legal ownerships of shares.

(e) The Holding Company has not issued any shares pursuant to contract without payment being received in cash or bought back any shares during the period immediately preceding

five years from the reporting date.

(1) Shares reserved for issue under options :

For details of shares reserved for issue under the employee stock option (ESOP) plan of the Holding Company , please refer note 33.




LAVA hiternational Limited

Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 AMarch 2020
LAH cunownts 1y Hdian Kupees 3iilienn wiess othierwise stated)

H Financial liabilities

1 (a) Long term borrowings

31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Indian rupee term loan from banks (secured) (refer note 1) 8 152.89
100,000 (Previous years 1100,000) Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares (CCPS) of Rs 10/~ each (refer note 1) 00 520.00

58 672.89
Current maturitics of Tong term borrowings frefer note 1 1{e)] 119.70 117.86

Note It

(1) Indian rupee term Joan from bank amounting to Rs 34.88 million (31 March 2019: Rs. 69,76 million) which carries inferest @ 11.80% p.a. (31 March 2019:10.20% p.a.)and
repayable in thinty equal quarterly instalments with first payment cormencing from the 7th month of date of disbursement. The loan is to be repaid by 27 March 2021, The loan is
secured on first pari-passu charge basis by way of hypothecation of movable fixed assets (present and future) and further secured on second pari-passu charge basis by way of
hypathecation of overall current assets (both present and future) of the Holding Company. Further, the loan has been personally guaranteed by certain directors of the Holding
Company.

(i) Indian rupee term loan from bank amounting to Rs. 119.42 million (31 March 2019; 205.22 million Wwhich carries interest @ 11.15% p.a (31 March 2019:11.35% p.a). and
repayable in equal monthly instalments starting afier 6 months from month of first disbursement. The loan is to be repaid by 6 August 2021. The loan is secured on first pari-passu
charge basis by way of hypothecation of machinery and equipment purchased from the term loan and further secured on second pari-passu charge basis by way of hypothecation of
overall current assets (current and future) of the Holding Company. Further, the loan has been personally guaranteed by certain directors of the Holding Company and their relatives,
Note II:

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Holding Company has issued 100,000 Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares (CCPS) of Rs. 10 each for a consideration of Rs 520.00

million. The CCPS shall carry a coupon of 0.0001% and shall be non-cumulative in nature, which is to be declared at the discretion of the shareholder of the Holding Company,

The preference shares may be converted into the equity shares at any time at the discretion of the CCPS holder, subject to the terms of the agreement. If any of the preference shares
have not been converted to equity shares within 10 years from the aliotment date, then such remaining preference shares shall be compulsorily converted into equity shares upon the
expiry of such period.

The number of shares to be allotted upon conversion of CCPS shall be based upon the conversion price arrived at on the conversion date, as per below condition defined in the
agreement.

In the event the Holding Company is not able to get listed on a recognised stock exchange within four years, the Holding Company or Promoters shall buy-back or purchase all of the
shares and CCPS held by CCPS holder at a price not less than the Sale Price. Sale Price shall be the Subscription Price and a return of 9% per annum compounded annually from

Closing date till the date of purchase of all subscription shares or CCPS.In view of the same, the Holding Company has accrued interest @ 9% every year.

11 (b) Short-term borrowings 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Cash credit from banks (secured)* 1,094 42 797 86
1,094.42 797.86

Parent Company

*Secured by way of hypothecation on first pari- passu charge basis, on overall current assets of the Holding Company (current and future) and collateral securities/personal guarantees
of promoter directors and relative of promoter directors. The said loan is further secured:

(1) by way of a first charge of hypothecation on pari-passu basis, of existing and future movable fixed assets of the company excluding software and machineries/ assets created by way
of loans from other banks and financial institutions,

(2) by way of a second charge of hypothecation on pari-passu basis, of such existing and future movable fixed assets of the borrower such machineries/ other assets which are created
by way of loans from other banks and financial institutions.

The cash credit is repayable on demand and carries interest @ 1040% p.a. to 12.90% p.a. (31 March 2019: 10.40% p.a. 1o 12.90% p.a).

(This space has been intentionally left blank)




LAV

A International Limited

Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
(AU Quiounts i1 Idian Kupees Aion iess otheneise staled)

11 (¢) Trade payables

11 (d) Other financial Habilities {Non-current)

i (e)

12 (a)

12 (b)

13 (a)

13 (b)

31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Trade payables (refer note 34 for details of dues to micro and small enterprises) * 4.965.37 7.261.83
Payable to related parties (refer note 31) 0.15 0.27
4,965.52 7,262.10

*Trade payables are not interest bearing and are normally seitfed within 30 1o 120 days.

31 March 2020 31 March 2619

Interest accrued on borrowings 120.40 73.47
Lease Liability (refer note 38) 199.96 -
320.36 73.47

Other financial labilities {current)

31 March 2020 31 March 2619

Current maturities of long term borrowings (refer note 11(a)) 119.70 117.86
Payable for capital purchases 0.83 150.11
Security deposits 282.52 132,74
Interest accrued on borrowings 6.99 1.83
Employee payables 103.03 281.77
Derivative Hability - 7.57
Lease Liability {refer note 38) 2411 -
537.18 691.88

Provisions (non-current)

31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Provision for employce benefits

Provision for gratuity (refer note 29) 42.96 43.96

Other provisions

Provision for warranties - 21.05

Provision for decommissioning liabilities 3.02 4.30
45.98 69.31

Provisions (current)

31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Provision for employee benefits

Provision for gratuity (refer note 29) 13.33 10.49
Provision for leave benefits 34.65 41.55
47.98 52,04

Other provisions
Provision for warranties 186.12 297.58
186.12 297.58
234.10 349.62

Provision for warranties

The Group provides warranty on it's products by giving an undertaking to repair/replace items to the customers, which fails to perform satisfactorily during the warranty period.
Provision made represents the amount of the expected cost of meeting such obligations of repair/replacement. The timing of the outflows is expected to be in next next 12 months (31
March 2019 : 24 months).

31 March 2020 31 March 2019

At the beginning of the year 318.63 350.94
Arising during the year 854,51 533.90
Less :Utilized /reversed during the year (987.02) (566.21)
At the end of the year 186.12 318.63

Provision for decommissioning liabilities
Under few operating lease agreements entered by the Holding Company, it has to incurr restoration cost for restoring lease premises to the orignal condition at the time of expiry of
lease period.The timing of the outflows is expected to be in next 3 years.

31 March 2620 31 March 2019

At the beginning of the year 4.30 4.30
Arising during the year (1.28) 0.00
At the end of the year 3.02 4.30

31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Other non-current liabilities

Lease equalisation reserve (refer note 38) - 4.68
- 4.68

Other current liabilities

31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Advance from customers 1,462.77 952.12
Value added tax/Central sales tax payable 67.63 31.57
Lease equalisation reserve (refer note 38) - 1.06
Tax deductable at source 11.81 17.80
Other statutory liabilities 16.74 2540

1,558.95 1,027.95

Liabilities for current tax (net)

31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Provision for income tax* 367.19 184.52
367.19 184.52

*Net of advance tax/TDS receivable amounting to Rs 2,748.12 million (31 March 2019: Rs 2686.27 million)




LAVA International Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2020

(All amornts v Indicn Rupees Million unless orherwise stated)

15

17

18

19

20

Revenue from operations

Sale of products

Sale of services

Other operating revenue
- Scrap sale

- Export incentives

Revenue from operations (net)

Finance income

Interest income on financial asset at amortised cost
Interest income on fixed deposits with banks
Interest income on others

Net gain on sale of mutual fund investments

Fair value gain on derivative financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss
Dividend income on current investments

Other income

Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment
Gain on investment at fair value through profit or loss
Exchange differences (net)

Provision for doubtful advances written back
Miscellaneous income

Cost of raw material and components consumed

Inventory materials at the beginning of the year
Purchase during the year

Less: Inventory materials at the end of the year
Cost of raw material and component(s consumed

*(net of CVD accrued including recoverable charges for delayed payment) (refer note 36)

(Increase) / decrease in inventories

Inventories at the end of the year
Traded goods

Spares for handsets

Finshed goods

Inventories at the beginning of the year
Traded goods

Spares for handsets

Finshed goods

Work in progress

Change in inventories
Less: Elimination of inventory
(Increase) / decrease in inventories

Employee benefit expenses

Salary, wages and bonus

Contribution to provident and other fund
Gratuity expense (refer note 29)

Share based payment expense (refer note 33)
Staff welfare, recruitment and training

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

51,265.36 49.330.28
1.319.36 1,701.47
5.70 11.23
52.87 40.52
52,643.29 51,083.52

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

6.44 3.42
116.22 157.14
0.18 0.16
0.00 12.02
13.35 -

- 5.00
136.19 177.74

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

- 0.38

- 3.35
31.89 -
4.55 -

13.11 2249

49.55 26.22

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

909.88 1,774.94
11,045.84 32,660.64

(649.23) (909.88)
11,306.49 33,525.70

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

534.52 876.35
938.87 866.58
242.14 1,586.20
876.35 987.83
866.58 1,090.25
1,586.20 2,623.61
- 834.81
1,613.60 2,207.37
. (1,551.76)
1,613.60 655.61

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

1,762.22 2,868.52
60.86 159.62
14.35 15.88

0.00 4.32
153.25 181.62
1,990.68 3,229.96




LAVA International Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
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21 Other expenses

31 March 2620

31 March 2019

Power and fuel 47.54 57.49
Rent 134.54 262.84
Rates and taxes 14.46 10.33
Insurance 12.45 2140
Repair and maintenance - others 84.98 165.46
Advertisement and marketing expenses 1,469.56 794.10
Sales promotion and scheme expenses 610.55 403.78
Freight and cartage 198.51 379.57
Qutsourced salary cost 26.37 61.03
Travelling and conveyance 119.07 255.81
Communication costs 12.17 32.78
Warranty 854.51 533.90
Legal and professional fees 168.84 221.21
Payment to auditor (refer details below) 4.80 4.80
Exchange differences (net) - 145.33
Donation - 0.65
Corporate social responsibilty expense (refer note 35) 4.00 -
Provision for doubtfil debts 35.86 7.56
Provision for doubtful advances - 9.09
Advances written off’ 40.33 0.79
Property, plant and equipment written off - 8.55
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment 327 -
Fair value loss on derivative financial instrumiment at fair value through profit or loss - 7.57
Loss on investment at fair value through profit or loss 0.92 -
Net loss on sale of mutual fund investments 0.17
Miscellaneous expenses 33.48 28.93
3,876.38 3,412.97

Payment to auditor (including service tax)

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

As auditor:
Audit fee
Tax audit fee

In other capacity

4.50 4.50
0.30 0.30
4.80 4.80

22 Depreciation and amortisation expense

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

Depreciation expense
- on Tangible asset
-on ROU Asset
Amortisation expense

225.50 268.81
34,97 -
70.04 146.14

330.51 414.95

23 Finance costs

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

Interest on

-Term loan 27.85 89.41
-Cash credit 104.72° 109.01
-Lease liability (Refer note 38) 27.11 -
-Security deposits 3.90 6.09
-Instruments entirely liability in nature 46.93 46.80
-Others 12.35 22.66
Bank charges 167.08 327.47
389.94 601.44

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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24 Income tax

(a) The major components of income tax expense for the years ended as follows are:

31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Current income tax:

Current income tax charge 201.60 197.86
Adjustments in respect of income tax of previous year 2299 (3.75)
Deferred tax :

Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences (35.73) (113.81)
Total tax expense on profit of the year {(a) 188.86 80.30

Other comprehensive income
Deferred tax related to items recognised in ofher comprehensive income during in the year:

- Re-measurement losses of defined benefit plan 021 6.53

- Change in fair value of FVOCT equity instruments -

Total tax expense on other comprehensive income of the year (b) (0.21) 6.53

Total tax expense on total comprehensive income of the year (a) + (b) 188.65 86.83

(b) Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India’s domestic tax rate

Particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Profit before tax 1,266.47 812.10

Applicable tax rate 34.94% 34.94%
Expected tax expense (A) 442.55 283.78

Expenses not considered in determining taxable profit {0.24) 10.39

Income not considered in determining taxable profit (10.87) (16.52)
Income exempt from tax (303.02) (664.40)
Impact of deduction w/s S0IJAA (11.44) (22.02)
Tax pertaining to earlier years 22.99 (3.75)
Tax losses for which no deferred tax asset was recognized 5431 529.06

Others (5.43) (36.26)
Total adjustments (B) (253.70) (203.48)
Actual tax expense { C= A+B}) 188.85 80.30
Tax expense recognised in statement of profit and loss 188.86 80.30

(c) Deferred tax

Deferred fax relates to the following:

31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Deferred tax assets on account of:

Property, plant and equipment (98.70) (72.81)
Employee benefits and other payable 31.77 (48.68)
Provision for doubtful debts & Advances 41.77) (30.83)
Provision for obsolescence inventories - (19.44)
Fair valuation of investment (0.32) -

Unrealised profit on unsold inventory (3.80) (2.49)
Others (1.15) (3.45)

Deferred tax related to other comprehensive
income of the year;

Re-measurement losses of defined benefit plan 4.61 4.40
Change in fair value of FVTOCI equity instruments (2.3D) 2.31)

Deferred tax liability on account of:

Tax on custom duty to be paid in future years (Refer note 36) 259.70 291.17
DDT on undistributed profit of associate - 3.18
Fair valuation of investment . 1.17
Others - 0.52
Net deferred tax liability including other comprehensive 84.49 120.43

income of the year
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25

Movement in deferred tax assets for the year ended 31 March 2020

Property, plant and equipment

Employee benefits and other payable

Provision for doubtful debts and advances
Provision for obsolescence inventories

Fair valuation of investment

Unrealised profit on unsold inventory

Others

Deferred tax related to other comprehensive
income of the year:

Re-measurement losses of defined benefit plan
Change in fair value of FVTOC] equity instruments

Deferred tax Hability on account of;

Tax on custom duty to be paid in future vears {Refer note 36)
DDT on undistributed profit of associate

Fair valuation of investment

Others

Total

Movement in deferred tax assets for the year ended 31 March 2019

Property, plant and equipment

Employee benefits and other payable

Provision for doubtful debts and advances

Provision for obsolescence inventories

Fair valuation of investment

Unrealised profit on unsold inventory

Others

Deferred tax related to other comprehensive income of the year:
Re-measurement losses of defined benefit plan

Change in fair value of FVTOCI equity instruments

Deferred tax liability on account of:

Tax on custom duty (43b) to be paid in future years
DDT on undistributed profit of associate

Property, plant and equipment

Others

Total

Earnings per share (EPS)

As at Recognised in Recognised in profit  As at
31 March 2019 other and lfoss 31 March 2020
comprehensive
income
(72.81) - (25.89) (98.70)
(48.68) - 16.91 (31.77)
(30.83) - (10.94) “41.77)
(19.44) - 19.44 -
- - (0.32) (0.32)
(A (1.321 {3.80)
(3.45) 2.72 (0.73)
4.40 (0.21) 4.19
2.31) (230
291.17 - (31.47) 259.70
3.18 (3.18) -
117 (1.17)
0.52 (0.52) -
120,43 -0.21 -35.73 84.49

As at

Recognised in

Recognised in profit

As at

31 March 2018 other and loss 31 March 2019
comprehensive
income
(61.33) - (11.48) (72.81)
(76.23) - 27.55 (48.68)
{31.14) - 031 (30.83)
(19.44) - - (19.44)
(0.95) - 0.95 .
(15.42) - 12.93 (2.49)
(0.32) (3.13) (3.45)
(2.13) 6.53 - 4.40
(2.31) - - 231
433.11 - (141.94) 291.17
3.61 (0.43) 3.18
0.26 0.91 1.17
0.52 0.52
227.71 6.53 (113.81) 120.43

The following reflects the profit and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computation:

Nominal value of equity shares

Profit attributable to equity shareholders for computing basic and dilutive EPS (A)

Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year for computing Basic EPS (B) *

Dilutive effect of share based payments on weighted average number of equity shares

outstanding during the year

Dilutive effect of compulsory convertible preference shares on weighted average

number of equity shares outstanding during the year #

Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year for computing

Diluted EPS (C)
Basic earning per share (A/B)
Diluted earning per share (A/C)

31 March 2026

31 March 2019

10

1,077.61
124,866,902
1,328,287

4,158,068

130,353,257

8.63
827

# Compulsory convertible preference shares, which are entirely liability in nature, have not been considered in the calculation of diluted EPS.

10

731.80
124,866,902
1,328,287

4,158,068
130,353,257

5.86
5.61
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26 Fair value measurement

) The carrying value of financial instruments by categories is as under:

! 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Notes
FVTPL FVTOCI Amortised FVTPL FVTOCI Amortised
Cost Cost
Assets
Non-current assets
Financial assets
Investments 6 (a) - 60.37 - - 55.02 -
Loans 6 () - - 26.15 - - 37.05
Others 6 (h) - - 20.50 - - 128.11
- 60.37 46.65 - 55.02 165.16
Current assets
Financial assets
Investinents 6 (b) 20.69 - - 94.50 - -
Trade receivables 6(c) - - 13,148.12 - - 10,143.44
Cash and cash equivalents 6(d) - - 186.38 - - 802.24
Other bank balances 6 (e) - - 1,301.75 - - 1,774.85
Loans 6(g) - - 11.99 - - 2297
Derivative asset 6 (i) 5.78 - - - - -
Others 6 (1),39 - - 1,298.96 - - 1,610.00
26.47 - 15,947.20 94.50 - 14,353.50
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 11 (@) - - 553.58 - - 672.89
Other financial liabilities 11 (d) - - 320.36 - - 73.47
- - 873.94 - - 746.36
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 11 (b) - - 1,094 .42 - - 797.86
Trade payables 11 (c), 34 - - 4,965.52 - - 7,262.10
Derivative liability 11 (e) - - - 7.57 - -
Other financial liabilities 11 (e) - - 537.18 - - 684.31
- - 6,597.12 7.57 - 8,744.27

The fair values of trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, other current financial asset, trade payables and other current financial liabilities are
considered to be same as their carrying values due to their short term nature.

The carrying amounts of other items carried at amortised cost are reasonable approximation of their fair values on respective reporting date.

For financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value, the carrying amounts are equal to the fair values.

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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26 b) Fair value hierarchy and valuation techniques nsed to determine fair values:
Ta provide an indication about the reliability of inputs used in determining fair value, the Group has classified its financial instrument into (hree levels
prescribed under the accounting standard. The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Group’s assets and liabilities.

(i) Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy for assets and liabilities as :
Fair value measurement using

At 31 Mareh 2020 Quoted prices in Significant observable Significant unobservable Total
) ’ - active markets inputs inputs ’
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Assets measured at FVTPL
Investment in mutual funds 20.69 - - 20.69
Assets measured at FVTPL
Derivative asset - 5.78 - 5.78
Assets measured at FVTOCI
Investment in equity instruments* 60.37 60.37
Fair value measurement using
Quoted prices in  Significant observable Significant unobservable Total
At 31 March 2019 active markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Assets measured at FVTPL
Investment in mutual funds 94.50 - - 94.50
Liabilities measured at FVTPL
Derivative liability 7.57 7.57
Assets measured at FVTOCI
Investment in equity instruments* - - 55.02 55.02

* Investment in Abhriya Pte. Ltd. has been valued at zero value i.e. at fair value and it has been shown in other reserve amounting to Rs 7.69 million in
Reserve and surplus.

- There were no transfers between the Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 during the years presented.
- There 1s no change in the valuation technique during the period.

Valuation techniques used to derive Level 1 fair values

The fair values of investments in mutual fund units is based on the net assef value (‘NAV’) as stated by the issuers of these mutual fund units in the
published statements as at Balance Sheet date. NAV represents the price at which the issuer will issue further units of mutual fund and the price at which
issuers will redeem such units from the investors.

Valuation techniques used to derive Level 2 fair values
Derivative asset/ liability representing forward foreign exchange contracts have been fair valued using dealer/counter party quotes at balance sheet date.

Valuation techniques used to derive Level 3 fair values

Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data. A one percent change in the unobservable inputs used in fair valuation of
Level 3 assets doesn’t have a significant impact in its value.

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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27 Capital management

The Group’s objectives while managing capital are (o safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern and to provide adequate returns for its
sharcholders and benefits for other stakeholders. The Group's policy is generally 1o optimise borrowings at an operating Group level within an
acceptable level of debt. The Group's policy is (o borrow using a mixture of long-term and short-term debts together with cash generated to meet
anticipated funding requirements.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is calculated as underlying net debt divided by total capital plus underlying net debt. The
Group’s policy is to keep the gearing ratio below 40%. The Group measures its underlying net debt as total debt reduced by cash and cash
equivalents. The Group monitors compliance with its debt covenants. The Group has complied with all debt covenants at all reporting dates.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019 |

As at 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Borrowings 1,767.70 1,588.61

Less: Cash and cash equivalents (186.38) (802.24)
Net debt _ 1,581.32 786.37

Equity 14,080.59 12,552.80
Total capital 14,080.59 12,552.80
Capital and net debt 15,661.91 13,339.17
Gearing ratio (%) 10.10% 5.90%

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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28 Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s principal financial Habilities, other than derivatives, comprise loans and overdrafts, and trade payables. The main purpose of these financial habilities is
to raise finance for the Group’s operations. The Group has various financial assets such as trade receivables, cash. and short-term deposits, which arise directly from
its operations. The Group also holds mutual fund investments and enters into derivative transactions.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are price risk, interest rate risk, liquidity risk, foreign currency risk, and credit risk.

The Board of Directors review and agree policies for managing each of these risks which are summarised below.

Price risk

The Group is mainly exposed to the price risk due to its investment in equity instruments and mutual funds. The price risk arises due to uncertainties about the future
market values of these investments. In order to manage its price risk arising from investmenis in mutual funds, the Group diversifies its portfolio in accordance with

the Timits set by the risk management policies. The Group does not have significant investment in equity instruments,

Set out below is the impact of a 1% movement in the NAV of mutual funds on the Group’s profit before tax:

As at 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Effect on profit before tax:

NAV increase by 100 bps 0.21 0.95
NAV decrease by 100 bps (0.21) (0.95)

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s borrowings with floating interest rates. The Group’s policy is to
manage its interest cost using a mix of fixed, floating rate borrowings.

The following table provides a breakdown of the Group’s fixed and floating rate borrowings:

As at 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Fixed rate borrowings 520.00 520.00
Floating rate borrowings 1,247.70 1,068.61
Total 1,767.70 1,588.61

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates, being a 0.5% increase or decrease in interest rate, with all other
variables held constant, of the Group’s profit before tax due to the impact on floating rate borrowings.

As at 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Effect on profit before tax:

PLR*- decrease by 50 bps 6.23 533
PLR*- increase by 50 bps (6.23) (5.33)

*Prime Lending Rate (‘PLRs”) set by individual Indian banks in respect of their loans.
Credit risk

The Group is alsc exposed to credit risk front trade receivables, term deposits, liquid investments and other financial instruments.

(i) Customer credit risk is managed by the Group’s established policy, procedures and control relating to customer credit risk management. All customers are subject
to credit verification procedures. In addition, receivable balances are monitored on an on-going basis. The Group is exposed to credit risk in the event of non-payment
by customers. An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date by grouping the receivables in homogencous group. Trade receivables are non-interest
bearing and are generally on original credit terms of 30 to 180 days depending upon category and nature of customers. Considering the request of certain distributors
for becoming more competitive under the current market scenario and to enhance the overall market share, the management has decided to extend the credit terms on
case-to-case basis to its distributors which shall be helpful to penetrate the potential opportunities of enhancing the overall market share. For this purpose, the
management has done credit evaluation on the distributors based on their business relationships with the Group and the market credibility as well as established a
mechanism of monitoring the availability and marketability of inventory levels lying with the retailer network.

Trade receivables (refer note 6(c)) include amounts (see below for aged analysis) of Rs.5,774.08 million with the extended credit period at the reporting date. To
ensure the recovery in such cases, the Group keeps monitoring the stocks levels lying with the distributors and in the market with the retail network through its field
sales forces. The Group territory managers are ensuring that the stocks available in the retail market are in marketable position and are also monitoring the movement
of products, which helps the Group to keep the overall control that the recoveries are certain and not dependent only upon the financial strength of any distributor. In
the post COVID scenario, the Group expects to benefit from the Atmanirbhar Bharat (self-reliant India) initiatives of the government of India, the increased thrust on
manufacturing in India resulting in enhanced competitiveness of its products which in turn shall be helpful to the Group’s distributors to reduce the inventory levels
and achieve higher sales. Considering the above, the Group is confident of the recoveries of its dues with extended credit period and the management is of the view
that these amounts are completely recoverable within the extended credit period. Based on their credit evaluation, management considers these trade receivables as
high quality and accordingly, no life time expected credit losses are recognized on such receivables. The Group considers that trade receivables are not credit
umpaired as these are receivable from credit worthy counterparties. For terms and conditions relating to related party receivables, refer note 31.
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(11) The credit risk for cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, term deposits, ete. is considered negligible, since the counterpartics are reputable banks with
high quality external credit ratings

Ageing based on original credit terms but not impaired receivables is as follows:

As at 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
0-180 days 7.428.10 9.777.73
180-365 days 3,006.37 147.54
I year plus 2,767.71 236.37
Total 13,202.18 10,161.64

The Group has provisions of Rs. 54.06 million (31 March 2019 : Rs. 1820 million) for doubtful debts. None of those trade debtors past due or impaired have had
their terms renegotiated. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the fair value of each class of debtors presented in the financial statement, The
Group does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over balances with third parties nor does it have a legal right of offset against any amounts owed by
the Group to the counterparty. For receivables which are overdue the Group has subsequently received payments and has reduced its overdue exposure.

The Group evaluates the concentration of risk with respect to trade receivables as low, as its customers are located in several Jurisdictions and operate in largely
independent markets.

Liquidity risk

The Group monitor their risk of shortage of funds using cash flow forecasting models. These models consider the maturity of their financial investments, committed
funding and projected cash flows from operations.

The Group’s objective is to provide financial resources to meet its business objectives in a timely, cost effective and reliable manner. A balance between continuity of
funding and flexibility is maintained through the use of bank borrowings. The Group also monitors compliance with its debt covenants. The maturity profile of the
Group’s financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments is given in the table below:

<lyr 1-5yrs >5 yrs Total
As at 31 March 2020
Borrowings (including interest accrued) 1,221.11 33.58 - 1,254.69
Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares (CCPS) (including interest accrued) A ) 640 40 640.40
Trade payables 4,965.52 - - 4,965.52
Other financial liability 410.49 141.93 58.03 610.45
Total 6,597.12 175.51 698.43 7,471.06
As at 31 March 2019
Borrowings (including interest accrued) 917.55 152.89 - 1,070.44
Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares (CCPS) (including interest accrued) - - 593.47 593 .47
Trade payables 7,262.10 - - 7,262.10
Derivative liability 7.57 - - 7.57
Other financial liability 564.62 - - 564.62
Total 8,751.84 152.89 593.47 9,498.20

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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Foreign currency risk

The Group has significant purchases from outside India. The Group has transactional currency exposures arising from sales or purchases by an operating unit in currencies
other than the unit’s functional currency. Accordingly, the Group’s financial state of affairs can be affected significantly by movements in the US dollar exchange rates. The
Group enters into derivative transactions, primarily in the nature of forward foreign exchange contracts on mmport payables. The purpose is to manage currency risks arising
from the Group’s operations.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and liabilities denominated in different currencies are as follows:

As at 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Financial assets  Financial liabilities  Financial assets Financial liabilities
INR INR INR INR
Indian Rupees (INR) 6,106.80 4,207.35 6,987.01 4,037.79
United States Dollar (USD) 9.836.44 2.929.36 5.720.69 5,193.81
Chinese Yuan (CNY) 13.56 144.30 194.16 131.92
Hong Kong dollar (HKD) 108.85 108.32 1,740.93 27.02
Other 15.04 81.74 25.37 107.66
Total 16,080.69 7.471.06 14.668.18 9,498.20

The Group’s exposure to foreign currency arises in part where a Group holds financial assets and liabilities denominated in a currency different from the functional currency of
that entity with USD being the major non-functional currency of the Group®s main operating subsidiaries. Set out below is the impact of a 10% movement in the US dollar on
profit before tax arising as a result of the revaluation of the Group's foreign currency financial assets and unhedged Habilities :

As at 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Effect of 10% strengthening of INR against following on profit before tax:

usD (725.52) (89.44)
CNY 13.07 6.22)
HKD (0.05) (171.39)
Others 6.67 8.23

Effect of 10% weakening of INR against following on profit before tax:

UsD 725.52 89.44
CNY (13.07) 6.22
HKD 0.05 171.39
Others (6.67) (8.23)

The Group enters into future contracts to mitigate the risk arising from fluctuations in foreign exchange rates to cover foreign currency payments,

The Group has taken future contract of the following amount to hedge against currency risk against movement in INR/US dollar. The contract as on year end are as follows :

As at 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Amount in INR 348.14 367.50

(This space has been intentionally lefi blank)
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29 Post-employment henefits pian
Gratuity

The Holding Company has unfunded defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee who has completed five vears or more of service gets a gratuity on departure at 15 days salary (last drawn salary) for each completed
year of service or part thereof in excess of 6 months

The following table summarizes the components of net benefit expense recognized 1 the statement of profit and loss for gratuity plan and amounts recognized in the balance sheet in respect of same

Statement of profit and loss

Net employee benefit expense recognized in the em ployee cost

31 March 2620 31 March 2019
Current service cost 10.49 12.23
Interest cost on benefit obligation 3.86 3.65
Net benefit expense 14.35 15.88
Balance sheet
Benefit asset/liability

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Present value of defined benefit obligation (56.29) (54.45)
Net asset/(Hability) recognised in balance sheet (56.29) (54.45)
Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:

31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Opening defined benefit obligation 54,45 103.98
Current service cost 10.49 12.23
Interest cost 3.86 3.65
Total amount recognised in profit & loss 14,35 15,88
Re-measurement (gains)losses of defined benefit plan :
- Due to changes in financial assumptions 1.97 (0.02)
- Due 10 experience adjustment {1.38) {18.66)
Total amount recognised in other comprehensive income 0.59 (18.68)
Benefits paid (13.10) (46.73)
Closing defined benefit obligation 56.29 54.45
The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity benefits are as below:

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Discount rate 6.00% 7.20%
Emplovee turnover* 30.00% 30.00%
Salary Escalation Rate 7.00% 7.00%

*In the retail executives categoty, the employee tumover ratio is above 100% based on which none of such category of employees will remain with the Company for 5 years from the date of joining. Hence, the
average turnover ratio of other category of employees has been considered for the calculation of the gratuity liability for these category of employees.

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market.
The average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation at the end of the reporting period is 4.86 years (31 March 2019: 6.80 years)

Amounts for the current and previous four periods are as follows:

Particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019 31 March 2018 31 March 2017 31 March 2016
Gratuity

Defined benefit obligation 56.29 54.45 103.98 90.02 53.50
Experience adjustments on liabilities gain / (loss) 138 18.66 4.43 (4.83) (5.24)

Sensitivity Analysis:
A quantitative seasitivity analysis for significant assumption is as shown below:

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Projected benefit obligation on current assumptions 56.29 54.45
Delta effect of +1 % change in discount rate (1.65) (1.72)
Delta effect of -1 % change in discount rate 1.76 183
Delta effect of +1 % change in salary escalation rate 1.89 1.98
Delta effect of -1 % Change in salary escalation rate (1.81) (1.89)
Delta effect of +10 % change in rate of employee turnover {1.16) (L.71)

Delta effect of -10 % change in rate of employee turnover 125 1.80
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30 Segment information

Ind AS 108 establishes standards for the way the companies report information about operating segments and related disclosures about products and services, geographic
areas, and major customers. The Group's operations relate to sales of mobile handsets through the distributor and retailers network. The Chief Operating Decision Maker
(CODM) evaluates the Group's performance and allocates resources based on analysis of various performance indicators pertaining to business as a single segment.
Accordingly, for the purpose of entity wide disclosures, only geographical information has been presented.

Business segment of the Group is primarily sale of mobile handsets. The Group has started manufacturing of handsets recently and does not identify sales of traded
handsets and sale of manufactured handsets differently given the risks and rewards are the same.

Geographical information on revenues are collated based on individual customers invoiced or in relation to which revenue is otherwise recognized.

Geographical information:
The following table presents geographical information regarding the Group’s revenue

As at 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
India 16,346.73 27,885.54
UAE 15,236.64 4,205.21
China 788.81 5,683.28
Hong Kong 15,007.71 6,366.13
Others 5,312.95 6,969.58
Total 52,692.84 51,109.74

The following tables present geographical information regarding the Group’s non current assets as defined in Ind AS 108 :

As at 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
India 960.89 960.81
Hong Kong 241.19 337.42
Others 2.00 9.92
Total 1,204.08 1,308.15

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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31 Related parties disclosures

In accordance with the requirements of Ind AS 24 on ** Related party disclosures™ the names of refated party whose control exist and/or with whom transactions have taken place during
the year and description of the relationship, as identified and certified by the management are as below:

Names of refated parties and related party relationship

Country of

Nature of Relationship

Mr. Hari Om Rai - Managing director
Mr. Shailendra Nath Rai - Whole time director

Mr. Sunil Bhalla - Non Executive director
Mr. Vinod Rai -Independent director

Mrs. Chitra Gouri Lal - Independent director
Mr. Rahul Kansal - Independent director

Mr. Vishal Sehgal - Non Executive director w.e.f. 24 March 2019 (Whole time director till 23 March 2019)

Mr. Vineet Jain - Independent director (from 16 September 2016 to 19 June 2019)

Mr. Ritesh Suneja — Chief Financial Officer (up to 19 August 2018)

Mr. Rati Ram - Chief Financial Officer (from 1 November 2018 to 1 August 2019)

Mr. Asitava Bose - Chief Financial Officer (with effect from 9 August 2019)

Mr. Saurabh Misra - Company Secretary (with effect from 20 August 2018 upto 2 November 2018)
Mr. Bharat Mishra - Company Secretary (with effect from 19 March 2019)

Sr.No. Related Party
N Incorporation 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
1{MagicTel Solutions Private Limited India Associate Associate
2} Yamuna Electronics Manufacturing Cluster Private Limited india Joint venture Joint venture
(YEMCPL) (Indirect) (Indirect)

3{Am express worldwide Logistics (Partnership Firm) India Enterprises owned or Enterprises owned or
significantly influenced by |significantly influenced by
key management key management personnel
personnel or their relatives {or their relatives :

410ttomate International Private Limited India Enterprises owned or Enterprises owned or
significantly influenced by |significantly influenced by
key management key management personnel
personnel or their relatives |or their relatives

5{Key Management Personnel :

Nature of transaction

Joint Venture

2019-20 2018-19

A. Transactions

Investment made In joint venture

Yamuna Electronics Manufacturing Cluster Private Limited
(YEMCPL)

Advances given

Yamuna Electronics Manufacturing Cluster

Private Limited (YEMCPL)

B. Amount due to / from related parties
Advance given

Yamuna Electronics Manufacturing Cluster
Private Limited (YEMCPL)

Other Receivables

Yamuna Electronics Manufacturing Cluster
Private Limited (YEMCPL) (Refer Note 6(h))

0.04 -

o
152
(95

Nature of transaction

Associate

Parties in which Key Management Personnel of the

Group are interested

2019-20 2018-19

2019-20

2018-19

Sale of Services
MagicTel Solutions Private Limited

5.06 22.60
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b) Outstanding Balances with related parties

, Parties in which Key Management
Nature of transaction Associate Personnel of the Group are interested
31 March 2020 31 March 2019 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
B. Amount duc to / from related parties
Receivables
MagicTel Solutions Private Limited . 1.83
Ottomate International Private Limited - 0.16
Pavables
Am Express worldwide Logistics - - 0.15) ~ 0.27
Advance from Customer .
MagicTel Solutions Private Limited 0.07 - - -
¢} Key management personnel compensation
Remuneration of Key Management
Nature of transaction Personnel
2019-20 2018-19
Short-term employee benefits 9.61 28.42
Post-employment benefits 1.84 146

All transactions with related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length transactions. Outstanding balances at the year-end are unsecured and their
settlement occurs in cash. For the year ended 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019, the Group has not recorded any impairment of receivables relating to amounts owed by related parties.

(This space has been intentionally lefi blank)
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32 Commitments and contingencies

(A) Capital and other commitments

31 Marclh 2020 31 March 2019

(a) Estimated amount of contracts to be executed on capital account

N . . . o . - . N 1.0l 0.13
[net of capital advances amounting to Nil million (31 March 2019: Nil miliion) and not provided for] (refer note 8(b)) ?

(B) Contingent labilities

31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Bank guarantees 198.23 233.54
Claims against the Holding Company not acknowledged as debts (excluding cases

where the possibility of any outflow in settlement is remote):

(i) Sales tax demands [refer note ()} (amount paid under protest Rs. 86.80 million (31 o

March 2019: Rs.72.78 million) 438.55 229.17

(it Others {refer note (»] (amount paid under protest Rs. Nil (31 March 2019:
Rs.143.27 million) -

(a) Sales tax demands

(1) The Hon’ble Supreme Court of India vide its order dated 17 December 2014 in the case of State of Punjab Vs. Nokia India Pvt. Limited, has held that the mobile charger contained in the mobile
phone retail pack is an independent part and shall be separately charged to VAT at rate as applicable to the chargers. The appellant has already approached the Hon'ble Supreme Court in a review
petition challenging the judgement. In view of this judgement, the VAT Authorities of various states have raised demands along with interest and penalties aggregating to Rs. 102.63 million (31 March
2019: Rs. 169.56 million). The Company has filed appeal against these demands. Amount paid under protest against demands amounting to Rs. 42.02 million (31 March 2019: Rs. 59.51 million) have
been disclosed under balance with statutory/government authorities in other assets.

Based on the legal assessment, management believes that the possibility of materialising sales tax demands is low. Accordingly, no provision is made in the financial statements for such demands.

(i) Sales tax demands received of Rs 34.31 million (31 March 2019 : Rs. 36.85 million) (amount paid under protest of Rs 7.39 million (31 March 2019 : Rs. 8.49 million)) from various sales tax
authorities for which the management believes that the possibility of materializing the demand is remote.

(1) Sales tax demands received of Rs 301.60 million (31 March 2019 : Rs. 22.77 million) (amount paid under protest of Rs 37.39 million (31 March 2019 : Rs. 4.78 million) )classifying mobile phone
under residuary entry under schedule- V, whereas as per lawyer's opinion product is well covered in specific entry 39 under schedule -1V for which management also believes that the possibility of
materializing the sales tax demand is low. Accordingly, no provision is made in the financial statements for such demands.

(This space has been intentionally left blank)




(b} Others

» 2015 The said Suit was part of the ser

=

(1) MYs Telefonakiiebolaget LM Ericsson Fricsson') filed a suit for infringement of patents ag the Holding Company in the month of M

being filed by Ericsson against many mobile handset manufscturers in India. During 2013, the Holding Company has filed a counter civil suit a
before the Honble District Court, Gautam Budh Nz

cainst Telefonaktiebolaget LM Ericsson (*Ericss

¢

ar due to certain breaches

Subsequent to Lava's institution of the suit in the District Court of Gautam Buddha } {agar. Ericsson has filed a suit for permanent injunction against the Holding Company before Hon'ble High Court,
Delhi. on 23 March 2015 for infringement of Ericsson’s certain patents.

Hon'ble District Court, Gautam Budh Nagar has issued notice to Ericsson. Before Ericsson filed its written statement, on application of the parties, Hon'ble Supreme Court ordered for transfer of (he
matter to Delhi High Court vide its order dated 31 July 2015 and the same is clubbed with the pending suit of Ericsson before the Delhi High Court.

Hon’ble High Court, Delhi vide its order dated 22 June 2016 has passed an fnterim order wherein the Holding Company was injuncted from manufacturing, importing, seliing its devices, subject to
the condition of deposit of Rs. 300.00 million with the Registrar General of Delhi High Court. However, the operation of Interim Order was stayed ull the final disposal of the main suit. The Holding
Company has complied with the said order and deposited a sum of Rs. 300,00 million. Presently the aforesaid appeal is pending adjudication before the Delhi High Court and the suit is now posted for
final arguments in January 2020 which has been adjourned for a future date. . Based on legal advice the Holding Company does not expect any financial statement exposure upon final settlement and
accordingly no provision has been made in the financial statement of the Holding Company.

Apart from above, there is no claim/case being contested with any other standard essential patent providers and the Company is confident that there is no in fringement of patents.

(i1) In certain States, an entry tax is levied on receipt of material from outside the State. This position has been challenged by the Holding Company in the respective States, on the grounds that the
specific entry tax is ultra vires the Constitution. The Holding Company has been paying entry tax and recording the amount of Rs. Nil (31 March 2019: Rs 143.27 million) as recoverable, The amount
has been disclosed under “Balance with statutory/government authorities”. The Holding Company based on legal opinion was of the view that the entry tax paid was not constitutional and the
Holding Company expected the refund ultimately. However based on the recent development vis-a-vis the judgment passed by the Hon'ble Allahabad High Court which has been affirmed by the
Hon’ble Supreme Court that such entry tax paid is not refundable. Accordingly the management doesn't expect the recovery of such entry tax and intends to withdraw the existing petition, hence the
same has been charged to profit & loss statement.

(iti) On 01.07.2017, Research and Collaboration Agreement (‘RCA’) was executed between the Holding Company, Mintellectuals LLP and Nokia Technologies as a confirming party. Under the
RCA, the parties were to explore and work towards the possibility of technical and research collaborations between Mintellectuals/Nokia and the Holding Company.

The Holding Company made payments to Mintellectuals LLP under the RCA, with a view 1o receive the Research and Collaboration deliverables envisaged under the Agreement. The Parties also
agreed not to challenge/assert any legal rights in relation to Technically Necessary Patents during the term of this agreement. The payments in question were being made by the Holding Company in
licu of the executory consideration/promise/obligation of Mintellectuals/Nokia to enable and assist research and collaboration in terms of the RCA.

However, it is a matter of fact that nothing under the RCA was ever delivered by Mintellectuals/Nokia Technologies to the Company. As a result, the Holding Company declared the RCA as
frustrated and repudiated. As a result of the dispute between Mintellectuals and the Holding Company, arbitration proceedings are going on wherein the Holding Company has denied liability to pay
any amount to Mintellectuals and also sought refund of the entire amounts already paid on the ground that the Agreement stood frustrated/repudiated. Mintellectuals has categorically dented any
research and collaboration benefit to the Holding Company under the RCA and has in fact taken a stand there is no research and collaboration deliverable under the scope of the agreement.

Management has also taken legal opinion from the lawyers and accordingly entire amount paid by Holding Company under this agreement is fully recoverable on good legal grounds.

(iv) On 29.11.2017, Share Subscription & Shareholder Agreement ('SSSHA’) was executed between the Holding Company, Sponsors of the Holding Company and UNIC Memory Technology (HK)
Ltd. ("UNIC”). Pursuant to the SSSHA, UNIC has invested USD 30 millions in consideration of Compulsory Convertible Cumulative Preference shares along with 1 Equity Share representing 3.33%
of the Equity rights of the Holding Company after conversion into Equity Shares. '

The SSSHA contained certain exit rights for UNIC to exit from the companies in certain scenarios. Based on that, UNIC has requested the Holding Company/Sponsors of the Holding Company, inter
alia, to facilitate the exit transaction with respect to UNIC’s position by either purchasing UNIC’s shares or procuring a sale of the same by a third party.

The Holding Company/sponsors are in process to facilitate their request however there are certain disagreements about timing hence the parties are going through an arbitration procedure.
Management has taken legal opinion from the lawyers and as per opinion Holding Company has a strong case before the Arbitral Tribunal on the grounds presented by the Holding Company.

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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33 Employee stock option plans:

The plans existing during the year are as follows -

Number of options approved 10,343,100

Method of settlement (Cash / Equity) Equity

The employee should

Vesting conditions be on rolf of the

Company

The details of activity under ESOP Schemes have been summarized below:

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

Number of options “ﬂght?d m’(imge Number of options W cl,g'm.)d N L:mg(*
exercise price exercise price
Outstanding at the beginning of vear 5,036,840 41.62 5,046,840 41.62
Options granted during the year - - - -
Exercised / Settled during the vear - - 10,000 43.81
Qutstanding at the end of the year 5,036,840 42.76 5,036,840 41.62
Exercisable as at end of the year 5,036,840 42.76 5,036,840 41.62

The details of the ESOP outstanding are as follows:

Options Outstanding as at 31 March 2020

Options Outstanding as at 31 March 2019

No. of shares arising Weighted Average

Range of exercise ; s
out of options remaining contractual

Weighted Average
Exercise price

No. of shares arising
out of options

Weighted Average
remaining

Weighted
Average

price per share life contractual life _ Exercise price
Rs1-Rsi25 - - - - - -
Rs 12.5-Rs 25 - - - 267,240 5.85 18.58
Rs25-Rs 375 409,800 6.18 30.86 679,800 7.27 30.86
Rs37.5-Rs 50 4,627,040 2.08 43.81 3,609,800 0.11 43.81
Rs 50 - Rs 62.5 - - - 480,000 0.78 53.20

The share based payment expense incurred during the year is shown in the following table:

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

Expense arising from equity-settled share-based payment transactions - 4.45
(Income) / Expense arising from settlement of options - 0.13)
- 4.32

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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34

36

Details of ducs to micro and small enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006

S. .
N Particulars 31 March 2020 | 31 March 2019
No.
1 _|The principal amount remaining unpaid 10 any supplier as at the end of each accounting year 11.07 2049
2 _|The interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of each accounting year Ni} Nil
., |The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 along with the amounts of the payment made to Nil Nil
ol . . . . i i
the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year.
4 The amount of interest due and payable for the period of defay in making payment (which have been paid but Nil Nil
. ) ) . . s . i i
beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under this Act
5 |The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year; and Nil Nil
6 The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when Nil Nil
. . . i
the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise.

Pursuant to the requirement of section 135 of Companies Act, 2013 and rules thereon, the Holding Company is required to spend Rs.21.56 million (31
March 2019: Rs.37.49 million) on corporate social responsibility. During the year the Holding Company has spent Rs. 4.00 Mn (31 March 2019: Nil
amount), on various CSR activities for purpose other than construction or acquisition of any asset.

Import of mobile phones only attracts Special Duty of Customs in lieu of Excise (CVD) which is equivalent to excise duty applicable on like goods as if
manufactured or produced in India. Accordingly, mobile phones manufactured in India are subject to excise duty at the rate of 13.5% (including NCCD of
196) if Cenvat Credit on inputs and capital goods is availed (rate of duty was 7.21% (including NCCD of 1%) till 28 February 2015) and 2% (including
NCCD of 1%) if such Cenvat Credit on inputs and capital goods is not availed.

This has been further clarified by the Hon’ble Supreme Court of India in the matter of M/S SRE Limited in Civil Appeal No. 9440 of 2003 by ruling that
the benefit of exemption / concessional rate of excise duty, which is subject to a condition that no Cenvat credit on inputs or capital goods used in the
manufacture of such goods shall be taken, is also available to the importers of like goods for payment of CVD under Customs.

During the financial years 2014 -2015 and 2015 - 2016, the Holding Company was clearing the imported mobile phones by paying CVD of customs at
higher rate of 7.21% before 1 March 2015 and 13.50% from 1 March 2015 instead of 2% during respective periods. The Holding Company got re-assessed
bills of entries amounting to Rs 638.47 million during the financial year 2017-18 Post clarification issued by the Hon’ble Supreme Court in M/s SRF case
discussed above, and after re-assessment of bills of entries, the above said CVD amount became fully recoverable. Accordingly, the Holding Company has
claimed refund as per the Customs Act 1962.

As at 31st March 2020, total amount recoverable amounting to Rs. 737.18 million (31 March 2019: Rs. 827.30 million) (including recoverable charges for
delayed payment amounting to Rs. 331.98 million (31 March 2019: Rs. 422.10 million)) was recorded, has been disclosed under “Balance with
statutory/government authorities” based on legal opinion obtained.
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37 lnvestments accounted for using the equity method

Set out below are the associates and joint ventures of the group as at 31 March 2020 which. in the opinion of the directors, are material 1o the group. The entities listed below have
share capital consisting solely of equity shares, which are held directly by the group.The country of incorporation or registration is also their principal place of business, and th

proportion of ovwnership interest is the same as the proportion of veoting rights held

Name of the Nat Principal place of Carrying amount
- Nature .
entity business 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
MagicTel Solutions Private Limited Associate India 1571
Yamuna Electronics Manufacturing Cluster Private Limited* Joint venture India 48.08
Total 63.79

* o, - . . . . N . . . o A R
Through the shareholder agreement of Yamuna Electronics Manufacturing Cluster Private Limited, the Group has joint control over the entity, even though it only holds 45.33%,

effectively, of the voting rights.

(1) Commitments and contingent labilities in respect of associates and joint ventures

The group has no contingent liabilities or capital commitments relating to its interest in MagicTel Solution Private Limited and Yamuna Electronics Manufacturing Cluster Private

Limited as at 31 March 2020 and 2019.

The tables below provide summarised financial inf
financial statements of the relevant associates and Jaint ventures and not the Lava International Limited’s share of those amounts.

Summarised Balance Sheet

MagicTel Solutions Private Limited Yamuna Electronics Manufacturing
Cluster Private Limited

31 March 2020 31 March 2019 31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Current assets 26.67 61.07 0.22 0.22
Non-current assets 41.28 40.40 124.29 124.35
Current liabilities 4.63 16.37 19.51 19.38
Non-current liabilities 0.47 0.07 - -
Net assets 62.85 85.03 105.00 105.19
Proportion of Group's ownership 25.00% 25.00% ’ 45.33% 45.33%
Carrying amount of the Investment 151 21.26 48.08 48.17
Summarised statement of profit and loss

MagicTel Solutions Private Limited Yamuna Electronics Manufacturing

Cluster Private Limited

31 March 2020 31 March 2019 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Revenue 41.98 61.58 - -
Other income 1.59 0.30
Interest income 4.54 298 - -
Cost of Sales (40.23) (42.90)
Depreciation and amortisation (0.84) 0.32) (0.06) (0.06)
Interest expense (0.08) 0.14) (0.00) (0.00)
Income tax expense/(income) 0.00 0.04 0.00 0.00
Employee benefit expense (24.94) (28.64) (0.10) (1.31)
Other expenses (4.20) (4.57) (0.03) (0.13)
Profit for the year (22.18) (11.67) 6.19) (1.50)
Other comprehensive income - - - -
Total comprehensive income (22.18) (11.67) .19y (1.50)
Tax adjustment of earlier years N 0.38
Proportion of Group's ownership 25.00% 25.00% 45.33% 45.33%

Gain/ (Loss) from profit of associate/ joint venture (3.55) (2.82) (0.09) (0.68)

ormation for those joint ventures and associates of the group. The information disclosed reflects the amounts presented in the
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38 Leases

The Group adopted Ind AS 116 using the Modified retrospective method of adoption, with the date of initial application on Ist April 2019. This has resulted in recognizing a right of
use assets (an amount equal 1o lease lability, adjusted by the prepaid lease rent) of Rs.243.15 million as at 1st April 2019, In the statement of profit and loss for the current period,
operating lease expenses has changed from rent to depreciation cost for the right of use assets and {inance cost for interest accrued on lease liability.

Impact of implementation of new standards/amendmenis

Lease equalisation reserve of Rs. 5.74 million has been reversed in current year. To this extent, performance for the year ended 31st March, 2020 is not comparable with previous year.

Reconciliation for the effect on balance sheet and statement of profit and loss for the year ended 315t March, 2020 as follows:

Impact on balance sheet (increase / (decrease)):-

Notes 31 March 2020 31 March 2019 1 April 2018
Assets
Right-of-use assets 5 208.18 - -
Total assets 208.18 - -
Liabilities
Lease labilities 11(d),11 (e) 224.07 - -
Liabilities for current tax (net) (5.55) - -
Total liabilities 218.52 - -
Impact on statement of profit and loss (increase/ (decrease)):-
Adjustment to increase / (decrease) in net profit Year ended Year ended 31.03.2020 Increase/

Notes 31.03.2020 (As per Ind AS-116) (Decrease) in

{Erstwhile basis) profit
Other Expenses rent 21.39 135.85 89.65 46.20
Finance costs 23 281.77 308.88 (2711
Depreciation and amortisation expense 22 238.33 273.30 (34.97)
Income tax expense 24 170.97 176,52 535
Profit/(loss) before tax 826.92 848.35 (10.33
Impact on statement of cash flows (increase/(decrease)):-
FY 2019-20 FY 2018-19
Operating lease payments (19.08) -
Net cash flows from operating activities (19.08) -
Payment of interest portion of lease liabilities (27.11)
Net cash flows from financing activities (27.11) -
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
(A+B+QC) (46.19) -

There is no material impact on other comprehensive income or the basic and diluted earnings per share.

Contractual maturities of lease liabilities:-

The details of contractual maturities of lease labilities as at March 31, 2020 on an undiscounted basis are as follows:-

Particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Payable not later than 1 year 24.11 -
Payable later than 1 year and not later than 5 year 141.93 -
Later than 5 year 58.03 -
224.07 -

Lease liability
Particulars Office building Factory building Warehouse Building Total

As at 31 March 2019 - - - .

Addition in lease Hability 72.45 159.15 11.55 243.15
Interest expense on lease liability 8.08 17.74 1.29 27.11
Payment made during CY 14.62 29.51 206 46.19
As at 31 March 2020 65.91 147.38 10.78 224.07
Non Current portion 57.11 133.13 9.72 199.96

Current maturities of lease liability 8.80 14.25 1.06 24.11
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39 Previous year figures have been reclassed/regrouped. wherever considered necessary to make them comparable with those for the current year

(a) The summary of regrouping related to consolidated balance sheet as at 31 March 2019 are as follows:

Particulars

Notes 31 March 2019 Regrouping 31 March 2019
Regrouped
Current assets
Others 6 (i) 1.013.25 (596.75) 1,610.00
Other current assels 8 (L) 4,189 44 596.75 3,592 69
(b) The summary of regrouping related 1o consolidated statement of profit and loss for the year ended 31 March 2019 are as follows
Particulars Notes 31 March 2019 Regrouping 31 March 2019
Regrouped
Income
Revenue from operations 15 51,083.07 (0.45) 51,083.52
Other income 17 2692 0.70 2622
Expenses
Other expenses 21 3,494.15 0.25 3,493.90
The above regrouping does not have material impact on the financial statements.
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L.AVA International Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
{All amounts in Indian Rupees Million unless otherwise stated)

41 Research and development expenditure:

The Group has duly carried out its research and development activities during the year and the details of related expenditure are given below:

31 March 2020 31 Mareh 2019

Amount charged to Statement of Profit and Loss 84.84 392.86
Amount capitalised

- Intangible assets 4.52 17.25

89.36 ’ 410.11

42 The Outbreak of Coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic globally and in India is causing significant disturbance and slowdown of economic activity. The manufacturing
activities and the sales and distribution of the products of the Company were disrupted due to lock downs and the general economic slowdown.
The Company believes the current disruptions in operations are temporary in nature and based on the business outlook and various initiatives announced by the
respective Central and state governments, this may not result in any significant financial impact on the Company. The Management has considered internal and
external sources of information up to the date of approval of these financial statements, in assessing the recoverability of investments and assets, trade receivables,
liquidity, financial position and operations of the Company and based on the management’s assessment, there is no material impact on the financial results of the
Company.
Considering the uncertainties involved in estimating the impact of this pandemic, the future impact of this pandemic may be different from those estimated as on the
date of approval of these financial statements, and this will continue to be monitored in future periods.
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